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Highlights for the Year 2018

—E-\FRE

o Revenue increased 10.1% to approximately HK$2,052.7 million e WA MNI0.1%E £92,052.78 BB T
(2017: approximately HK$1,863.6 million). (ZZ—+tF : 41,863.6BEET) °

e Gross profit increased 5.3% to approximately HK$465.3 million o  FEFIE HN5.3%ZF £9465.3F &8 7T (=
(2017: approximately HK$442.0 million). T—LF D42 088ET) °

o Gross profit margin decreased 1.0 percentage point to 22.7% e EFRMEFDI1I0EBDEE22.7% (=&
(2017: 23.7%). —+F :23.7%) ¢

e Operating profit is approximately HK$128.7 million (2017: o & EF 1287 EBT(ZZE—+

approximately HK$141.7 million) and the profit attributable to F-RNTEEBT) RARAHEE
owners of the Company is approximately HK$100.2 million ABEMERFOI02BEE BT (ZF
(2017: approximately HK$108.9 million). —EF  H1089B BB T) °

. A proposed final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 o Bz_2—N\E+-_A=+—HIHF

December 2018 of HK5.0 cents per share of the Company (the ENEZAEREATRAR KRG
“Share") was recommended, together with the interim dividend (TR 1) 5.0 1L - R H A& B
of HK2.0 cents per Share, representing a total of HK7.0 cents fg2.0% 1ML - BEAEBR7.OBW (=ZF
per Share (2017: HK7.0 cents per Share) and the dividend —tF:BRIOBIW URIEEEXRE
payout ratio of 50.4% (2017: 46.4%). 50.4% (ZZF—+H%F : 46.4%) °
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Five Years Financial Summary

f B ﬁ%ﬁ%g

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

Years ended 31 December

BE+-A=t+-HLEE
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
“F-mE  —T-0F ZFRF T-tF CZE-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FTHET FAET FET THT
Revenue WA 1,626,016 1,710,885 1,698,005 1,863,559 2,052,708

Profit/(loss) before REFTSRiAT

income tax siFl/ (E51) 78,216 (199,299) 191,439 143,248 130,931
Income tax expenses ETiSHAY (19,483) (26,839) (42,355) (34,408) (34,850)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEHF/ (B18) 58,733 (226,138) 149,084 108,840 96,081

CONSOLIDATED ASSETS, EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
mEEE REEREAE

As at 31 December

W+=ZA=+-H
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
—E-mF —E—hF ZE-RF ZE—F —E-N\&E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAET FET FET THET
ASSETS BE

Non-current assets EREEE 828,410 546,604 331,064 380,180 467,444
Current assets REEE 1,094,901 1,075,041 1,322,931 1,269,650 1,237,607
Total assets BEQE 1,923,311 1,621,645 1,653,995 1,649,830 1,705,051

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EazREaE
Total equity B 1,296,392 1,011,378 975,036 1,060,440 1,090,530
Non-current liabilities ErRHAE 31,526 22,179 2,612 2,792 10,339
Current liabilities MEAE 595,393 588,088 676,347 586,598 604,182
Total liabilities BERE 626,919 610,267 678,959 589,390 614,521
Total equity and liabilities BiEzkaE 1,923,311 1,621,645 1,653,995 1,649,830 1,705,051

BEERERERAR —E—A\FE% 05



Key Shareholder Value Indices

FTERREERER

Revenue Profit attributable to owners of the Company
L'ON RRAREE AEGER
N B 108.9
2,052.7 . 100.2
R 1,863.6 B 84.9% 04
1626.0 1,710.9 1,698.0
é e Sk 63.3
2| =
o ol
X o | Fho -
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
—ZT-WFE ZT-HF ZZT—XRF ZT—+F ZB-N\F —2-NF —T-HF —B—F —T—+tF ZB-N\F
Years Years
FRE FE
Basic earnings per Share attributable to owners Dividend per Share
of the Company BRES
AARBEEAEBEEBREREF
26.0
= 15.1 1o n
13.
12.8°
S 11.5% .
e 5=
Sh| 2 Sw
T - - -
7.0 7.0
| | 4.5 5.0 . l
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
—T-mF —B-HF —F-AF —BtF —B-NF “T-mE —F-HF “F-AF —“F-LF -F-NF
Years Years
FE FE
Gearing ratio
EESEL=
= 5.5
B 3.2
27
j I I :
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
—T-mFE —T-RF ZT—RE ZT—+tF ZZT-N\F
Years
FE
* Before recognition of sig¥nificant non-recurring items
BREARELE AR A
# Excluding fair value gains
TEER T EN
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KEY SHAREHOLDER VALUE INDICES (CONTINUED)
FTERREEES (E)

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
“E-mFE TR —F-RF —T—+tF ZE-NF

Revenue (HKS$ million) WA (B&#T) 1,626.0 1,710.9 1,698.0 1,863.6 2,052.7
% Change % &5 (3.4)% 5.2% (0.8)% 9.8% 10.1%
Profit attributable to owners RABHER AEIE G

of the Company (HK$ million) (BE#T) 63.3 84.9* 90.4" 108.9 100.2
% Change % E) 58.1% 34.1% 6.5% 20.5% (8.0)%

Basic earnings per Share attributable to  ARFEA AEIG TR

owners of the Company (HK cents) EABR &) 9.1 11.5% 12.8* 15.1 13.9
% Change % &) 59.6% 26.4% 11.3% 18.0% (7.9)%
Dividend per Share (HK cents) SRR GE) 4.5 5.0 26.0 7.0 7.0
% Change % &) 28.6% 1.1% 420.0% (73.1)% -
Gearing ratio (%) BEABEE%) 2.5% 5.5% 2.7% 2.1% 3.2%

Before recognition of significant non-recurring items
HREBAEEEMIAR A

Excluding fair value gains

TeEATFERER

PEERZERERAR —E—AFE% 07



Chairman’s Statement

ERWE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of Ming Fai International Holdings Limited (the “Company")
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”), | am pleased to present
the audited annual results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018.

The Gross Domestic Product (“GDP"”) growth of China was 6.6% in
2018, however, according to the 2018 Tourism Economic Operation
Summary Report by the China Tourism Academy, China’s travel
economy experienced a higher growth rate than its GDP and the
domestic tourism market continued to maintain rapid growth
throughout the year 2018, with steady development of both
outbound and inbound travel. The Group was favoured by this strong
momentum.

Due to the strong tourism momentum, the Group’s hospitality
supplies business recorded a satisfactory performance in 2018. As a
result, the Group recorded an overall revenue of approximately
HK$2,052.7 million (2017: approximately HK$1,863.6 million), a
10.1% year-on-year increase compared to 2017. Gross profit for the
year was approximately HK$465.3 million (2017: approximately
HK$442.0 million), representing 5.3% increase compared to 2017.
However, the Group suffered from higher raw materials and labour
costs which caused a dip in gross profit margin. Gross profit margin
decreased by 1.0 percentage/point 10 22.7% (2017: 23.7%).
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The profit attributable to owners of the Company stood at
approximately HK$100.2 million (2017: approximately HK$108.9
million), a decrease of 8.0% compared to 2017. Based on the
Group’s financial performance in 2018, the board of directors (the
“Directors”) of the Company (the “Board"”) suggests a final dividend
of HK5.0 cents per Share with an interim dividend of HK2.0 cents per
Share, for a total annual dividend of HK7.0 cents per Share (2017:
HK7.0 cents per Share), with a dividend payout ratio of 50.4%
(2017: 46.4%).

For the hospitality supplies business, we have noted that both retail
and corporate customers care more on the environmental impact of
today’s products than those they have consumed in the past.
Therefore, we seize the trend in eco-friendly products and businesses,
and have committed to its direction to capture such demand and
opportunities. We gradually eliminate non-eco-friendly products and
increase investments in eco-friendly hospitality supplies products as
well as related research and development. We believe that
eco-friendly hospitality supplies products will open us with new
market opportunities.

Moreover, our Operating Supplies and Equipment (“OS&E") business
was one of the revenue contributors of the Group. Its revenue was
mainly contributed by hotel customers. In the coming year, the
Group will continue to explore new hotel customers and setting
strategies to increase re-order rates among existing hotel customers.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
FREHEE (&)

RARHE ABRMMEF1002B8EET(Z
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FRA80% REAEBMR T — \FH
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) ERRERERESRS.0BM  ERF
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BEAE504% (ZE—tF :46.4%) °
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BB -
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
ITFEHES (&)

The Group also put great efforts in exploring new markets and
enhancing cost efficiencies. In 2017, we acquired a new production
plant in the Kingdom of Cambodia (“Cambodia”) to capture market
opportunities. It not only increased the production capacity of the
whole Group, but also helped us to extend our products to clientele
worldwide, especially in the Southeast Asia markets. The production
plant in Cambodia mainly supplied our customers in Europe and
North America in 2018. It positions us well to cater our potential
growth in existing customers and new markets. The new production
lines in Cambodia specialising in manufacturing products for airline
operators and hotels has commenced production since last year.

Looking ahead, although we face the risk of a continuing China-U.S.
trade war, the Group intends to capitalise all the opportunities we
find and aim at generating greater returns for the shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”).

On behalf of the Board, | am sincerely grateful to all Shareholders,
business partners and our dedicated, cautious, and conscientious

employees and management for their continued loyalty, professionalism
and contributions to the Group.

CHING Chi Fai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the total revenue recorded an
increase of 10.1% to approximately HK$2,052.7 million compared
with approximately HK$1,863.6 million in 2017. The hospitality
supplies business, the core business of the Group, displayed
satisfactory performance with a revenue of approximately
HK$1,892.9 million for the year under review, which represented
92.2% of the Group's total revenue. The revenue of OS&E business
stood at approximately HK$154.3 million, comprising 7.5% of the
Group's total revenue.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2018 was approximately HK$100.2 million (for the year
ended 31 December 2017: approximately HK$108.9 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEEBSwmR DM (E)

Basic earnings per Share attributable to owners of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2018 was HK13.9 cents (for the year
ended 31 December 2017: HK15.1 cents).

Gross profit margin decreased 1.0 percentage point to 22.7% from
23.7% in the prior year due to the growing of manufacturing and
labour costs, and increasing competition of the hospitality supplies
business.

The Board has resolved to propose a final dividend of HK5.0 cents
per Share for the year ended 31 December 2018. A sum of the
interim and final dividends is expected to be HK7.0 cents per Share
(2017: HK7.0 cents per Share). The proposed final dividend is subject
to approval at the annual general meeting of the Company to be
held on 29 May 2019 (“"AGM").

BHE-_Z—N\FE+_A=+—HLEEE K
NEEE ANBESREARZFN A13.981 (&
2T +F+_A=Z+—BHItFE 151
BAL) o

ENMEHEF23 7% R PDI10EEDEHE
22.7% W AR EE &S TRHRA LK -
AN BEHERITEZRFBBAZ -

ExgrarRgata=zE—_=-N\F1+-A
=+ B IEFEIRERPR SR8
BHF AR KRR ES AT RERT.0EA
—E—LFFR7.0EM) - EFRHK
BAFKBR _ZE-NFREA-TNLBETH
ARmEERAFA S ([REBFRE]) £4#t
FERTAEE -

12 Ming Fai International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Set out below are the consolidated key financial highlights of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2018:

EEENRE DN (E)

AEEEZE_Z—\FF+-_A=+—HLHF
EHNGEEZEYHRBEHMOT

Year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=1+—HLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —_T—+F
HK$ million HK$ million % Change
BHEBTT BAEAT FEEHOL
Revenue N 2,052.7 1,863.6 10.1%
Gross profit EF 465.3 442.0 5.3%
Profit attributable to owners ViN/NEIEZ ¥ BN
of the Company JE 165 338 ) 100.2 108.9 (8.0)%
Net asset value BEFE 1,090.5 1,060.4 2.8%
Basic earnings per Share attributable KABIHEAE AERER
to owners of the Company (HK cents) HEARBFRCGENM) 13.9 15.1 (7.9)%
Diluted earnings per Share attributable RRRHEE ANEMLER
to owners of the Company (HK cents) BSERF OEM) 13.8 14.9 (7.4)%

BUSINESS REVIEW

The global economic growth remained robust at 3.1% in 2018.
However, as the international trade tensions continued, the
manufacturing industry was weakened, some large developing
economies experienced pressure in the financial markets. Despite this
fact, the Group was still able to demonstrate a relatively optimistic
performance on its annual results through prudent planning and
execution over the past few years. During the year ended 31
December 2018, the Group's core hospitality supplies business
maintained a satisfactory performance, while its OS&E business
demonstrated a stable growth.

According to the World Bank, the global economic growth in 2018
was lower than in 2017. Corporations became less confident over the
economic outlook due to the influence of trade protectionism,
however, the depreciation of the Renminbi (“RMB"”) and the strong
momentum of China’s travel industry enabled the Group to result in
a relative optimistic performance. The Group’s total revenue
increased by 10.1% to approximately HK$2,052.7 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018, compared with approximately HK$1,863.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2017. The Group's
hospitality supplies business grew 9.4% as compared to prior year.
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BR-AM FNEREZREFERER  H
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEEBwmR DM (E)

Due to the growing of manufacturing and labour costs, and
increasing competition of the hospitality supplies business sector, the
Group’s gross profit margin decreased by 1.0 percentage point to
22.7%, compared with 23.7% for the year ended 31 December
2017. Gross profit increased by 5.3% to approximately HK$465.3
million, compared with approximately HK$442.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017; however, due to a saturated hospitality
supplies business market, profit attributable to owners of the
Company was approximately HK$100.2 million, compared with
approximately HK$108.9 million for the year ended 31 December
2017, with a decrease of 8.0%.

As at the date of this report, all the PRC retail chain outlets under
retail business of the Group were closed down due to the termination
of all franchise contracts.

Hospitality Supplies Business

According to the recent UN World Tourism Organization (“UNWTO")
statistics, the total international tourist arrivals grew 6% in 2018,
followed by Europe and Asia Pacific regions, the international arrivals
for these two regions grew 6% respectively over the previous year.
Supported by the growth of international tourist arrivals in 2018, the
Group’s hospitality supplies business contributed heavily to the
Group's revenue, bringing in approximately HK$1,892.9 million, an
increase of 9.4% compared to approximately HK$1,730.3 million for
the year ended 31 December 2017. Gross profit from the hospitality
supplies business was approximately HK$420.9 million, a 4.3%
increase compared to approximately HK$403.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017. The segment’s gross profit margin
decreased 1.1 percentage point to 22.2%, compared with 23.3% for
the year ended 31 December 2017. This was mainly due to fierce
competition within the global hospitality supplies sector and rising
production costs.

Despite China’s GDP growth decreased to 6.6% as compared to the
prior year, the number of China’s domestic tourists rose to 5.5
billion, representing an increase of 10.8% as compared to the prior
year according to the 2018 Tourism Economic Operation Summary
Report by the China Tourism Academy. Benefiting from the travel
industry’s strong momentum, the revenue of hospitality supplies
business from the PRC increased 19.2% to approximately HK$630.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2018 (for the year ended 31
December 2017: approximately HK$528.8 million), representing
33.3% (2017: 30.6%) of the hospitality supplies business segment
revenue. However, the revenue from Hong Kong decreased 2.4% to
approximately HK$280.9 million (for the year ended 31 December
2017: approximately HK$287.8 million), accounted for 14.8% (2017:
16.6%) of the hospitality supplies business segment revenue.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the North America market
recorded a revenue of approximately HK$411.3 million (for the year
ended 31 December 2017: approximately HK$399.7 million),
accounted for 21.7% (2017: 23.1%) of the hospitality supplies
business segment revenue. For the European market, it registered a
revenue of approximately HK$240.5 million (for the year ended 31
December 2017: approximately HK$193.9 million) and 12.7% (2017:
11.2%) of the hospitality supplies business segment revenue. The
other Asia Pacific regions recorded a revenue of approximately
HK$277.4 million (for the year ended 31 December 2017:
approximately HK$267.0 million), which comprises 14.7% (2017:
15.4%) of the hospitality supplies business segment revenue. For
Australia market, the revenue was approximately HK$48.6 million for
the year under review, (for the year ended 31 December 2017:
approximately HK$49.9 million), representing 2.6% (2017: 2.9%) of
the hospitality supplies business segment revenue.

Hospitality supplies business segment revenue by
geographical location
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEEBwmR DM (E)

In order to sustain the growth of its hospitality supplies business, the
Group has gradually expanded its production scale in Cambodia since
last year. The Group believes that the new production lines in
Cambodia will reduce the production costs and is beneficial to the
Group’'s plan in enlarging its market share in Cambodia and other
Southeast Asian countries nearby, therefore, the Group will extend
the production lines to its core hospitality supplies products in
Cambodia. The production lines specialising in manufacturing of
products for airline operators and hotels has commenced operation
since last year. Leveraging opportunities brought to the Group’s
business under the China-U.S. trade war, the Group has escalated its
production expansion in Cambodia.

Operating Supplies and Equipment Business

Cultivated since the second half of 2014, the OS&E business achieved
a growth of approximately HK$37.0 million in revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2018, representing an increase of 31.6%
compared with approximately HK$117.3 million in revenue for the
year ended 31 December 2017, and comprising 7.5% (2017: 6.3%)
to the Group’s total revenue.

Supported by the rising number of new hotel projects in China, the
gross profit from the OS&E business increased by 31.0% to
approximately HK$36.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2018, compared to approximately HK$27.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017. The segment’s gross profit margin
decreased 0.1 percentage point to 23.6% for the year ended 31
December 2018 (for the year ended 31 December 2017: 23.7%).

The OS&E business revenue from the PRC increased 42.0% to
approximately HK$104.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2018 (for the year ended 31 December 2017: approximately HK$73.6
million), representing 67.8% (2017: 62.8%) of the OS&E business
segment revenue.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the other markets recorded a
revenue of approximately HK$49.8 million (for the year ended 31
December 2017: approximately HK$43.6 million), accounted for
32.2% (2017: 37.2%) of the OS&E business segment revenue.

OS&E business segment revenue by geographical
location
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Although OS&E business is still accounting for a relatively small
proportion of the Group’s total revenue, the Group believed that it
will benefit to the Group’s total revenue through continuously
increasing its customer base among those newly established high and
mid-level hotels in China.

Moreover, the Group realised that the frequency of re-order by
customers is also essential to maintain the growth of OS&E business,
therefore, the Group keeps on building a long-term cooperative
relationship with its customers by providing them vertically-integrated
services on hotel products purchasing.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEEBwmR DM (E)

PROSPECTS

According to a recent report from UNWTO, international arrivals are
forecasted to increase by 5% to 6% in 2019. Stable fuel prices,
better air connectivity, and strong outbound traffic from emerging
markets, will all drive an increase in international tourism in 2019.

Looking forward, the Group will focus on its hospitality supplies and
OS&E businesses in any potential markets. The Group will continue to
put effort in developing the markets in Southeast Asian countries,
including Cambodia, Thailand, Malaysia and Singapore.

The Group's cautious expansion of its production in Cambodia will
bring enhancement of manufacturing efficiencies and the reduction
of labour costs. The Group believes this will strengthen its competitiveness
and bring growth to its gross profit. Most importantly, Cambodia will
serve as the gateway for the Group’s expansion plans, including but
not limited to Southeast Asia markets.

With the increasing “eco-friendly” trend in today’s society, the
Group will pay more efforts and resources on “eco-friendly”
hospitality supplies products as well as the related research and
development, and capitalised on this growing demand through
increasing its investment in eco-friendly products.

Finally, the Group will continue to capture more strategic
opportunities, and to expand its market share in hospitality supplies
and OS&E businesses. The Group will continue to explore different
potential new business streams to increase its profit margin and
profit attributable to the owners of the Company.

DISCLOSEABLE TRANSACTION

On 21 October 2017, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
Ming Fai Holdings Limited, entered into (i) a share sale and purchase
agreement and (ii) a land and building sale and purchase agreement
with independent third parties in relation to (i) the acquisition of the
entire issued share capital in, and the shareholders’ loan due by, the
target company, which is registered under the laws of Cambodia (the
“Share Acquisition”); and (ii) the acquisition of a land parcel and the
properties on that land parcel located in Cambodia (the “Land
Acquisition”), respectively. The consideration for the Share
Acquisition and the Land Acquisition is US$3,500,000 and
US$3,500,000 respectively.

Details of the Share Acquisition and the Land Acquisition are set out
in the announcements of the Company dated 22 October 2017 and
19 January 2018. The Share Acquisition and the Land Acquisition
were completed on 27 April 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
amounted to approximately HK$272.5 million (as at 31 December
2017: approximately HK$367.8 million).

In September and October 2015, the Group obtained two Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"”) denominated mortgage loans and certain
banking facilities, which bore interest at the higher of 1.7% per
annum over one-month Hong Kong Inter-Bank Offered Rate
("HIBOR") or the cost to the bank of funding the facilities, for
acquiring certain properties in Hong Kong. As at 31 December 2018,
the outstanding bank borrowings of these mortgage loans and
banking facilities amounted to approximately HK$14.6 million (as at
31 December 2017: approximately HK$16.5 million). These properties
were pledged against the mortgage loans and certain banking
facilities and included in property, plant and equipment in the
consolidated financial statements of the Group, with net carrying
values of approximately HK$50.1 million as at 31 December 2018 (as
at 31 December 2017: approximately HK$52.4 million).

In October 2015, the Group obtained a HK$ denominated loan from
a banking facility which bore interest at 1.7% per annum over
one-month HIBOR for its working capital. In January 2018, the Group
further drew down HK$20 million from this banking facility for its
working capital. As at 31 December 2018, the outstanding bank
borrowings of this facility amounted to approximately HK$20.0
million (as at 31 December 2017: approximately HK$5.7 million). This
banking facility was secured by property, plant and equipment in the
consolidated financial statements of the Group, with net carrying
values of approximately HK$3.4 million as at 31 December 2018 (as
at 31 December 2017: approximately HK$3.6 million).

Details of the bank borrowings are set out in Note 21 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The gearing ratio as at 31 December 2018, calculated on the basis of
bank borrowings over total equity, was 3.2% as compared with 2.1%
as at 31 December 2017.

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various
currency exposures, primarily with respect to RMB. The Group
currently does not deploy a foreign currency hedging policy.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEEBwmR DM (E)

The Group primarily sourced its raw materials in the PRC. The related
currency exposure with respect to RMB is managed through
increasing sales denominated in the same currency.

With the current level of cash and cash equivalents as well as
available banking facilities, the Group’s liquidity position remains
strong and has sufficient financial resources to meet its current
working capital requirement and future expansion.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2018, certain subsidiaries of the Company
pledged assets with aggregate carrying value of approximately
HK$53.6 million (as at 31 December 2017: approximately HK$56.1
million) to secure drawn bank borrowings.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS, OPERATING LEASE
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of the capital commitments and operating lease commitments
are set out in Note 34 to the consolidated financial statements. The
Group has no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2018.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2018, the total number of employees of the
Group was approximately 3,800 and the employee benefit expenses
including Directors’ emoluments were approximately HK$437.9
million. The Group offers a comprehensive remuneration package
which is reviewed by management on a regular basis. The Group also
invests in continuing education and training programs for its
management staff and other employees with a view to constantly
upgrading their skills and knowledge.

The Group values employees as our most valuable assets and believes
effective employee engagement is an integral part of business
success. In this context, effective communication with employees at
all levels is highly valued with the ultimate goal to enhance the
efficiency in providing quality service to the customers. The Group
also has “Commendation Annual Award Scheme” to motivate its
employees and recognise their outstanding performance.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEAEZBEFE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHING Chi Fai, aged 57, is an Executive Director and Chairman
of the Company. He is the chairman of the Nomination Committee,
the Executive Committee and the Investment Committee of the
Company, a member of the Remuneration Committee of the
Company and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. CHING Chi Fai is also a founder of the Group. He has been
responsible for sales and marketing, production of our products and
the formulation of the overall corporate direction and business
strategies of our Group. Mr. CHING Chi Fai has over 20 years of
experience in the hospitality supplies industry. Mr. CHING Chi Keung
is a brother of Mr. CHING Chi Fai and Mr. CHING Tsun Wabh is the
son of Mr. CHING Chi Fai.

Mr. CHING Chi Keung, aged 54, is an Executive Director of the
Company. He is a member of the Executive Committee of the
Company and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. CHING Chi Keung is also a founder of the Group. He has been
responsible for human resources and administrative matters.
Mr. CHING Chi Keung has over 20 years of experience in the
hospitality supplies industry. Mr. CHING Chi Fai is a brother of
Mr. CHING Chi Keung and Mr. CHING Tsun Wah is a nephew of
Mr. CHING Chi Keung.

Mr. LIU Zigang, aged 53, is an Executive Director of the Company.
He is a member of the Executive Committee of the Company and a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. LIU has been
responsible for sales and marketing since he joined our Group in May
1995. He oversees direct sales in the Greater China Region as well as
the Southeast Asia markets. Mr. LIU has over 20 years of experience
in the hospitality supplies industry. He obtained a Master degree of
Business Administration in Centenary College of New Jersey, USA in
2011. Mr. LIU also holds a diploma from Shenzhen University, the
PRC and completed a course on International Business Management
of Tsinghua University organised by Yangtze Delta Region Institute of
Tsinghua University, the PRC.

Mr. CHING Tsun Wah, aged 37, is an Executive Director of the
Company and a member of the Executive Committee of the
Company. He is currently the business development director of the
Group and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. He
graduated in Seneca College Toronto of Canada in marketing
administration in 2003. He joined the Group since 2006 to assist in
production and has been actively involved in both the business and
product development of the Group. Mr. CHING Tsun Wah has
extensive experience in the hospitality supplies industry. Mr. CHING
Tsun Wah is the son of Mr. CHING Chi Fai and a nephew of
Mr. CHING Chi Keung.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

ESRGREBABZEBEST (&)

Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung, aged 46, is an Executive Director of the
Company, the Chief Financial Officer and the Company Secretary of
the Company. He is also a member of the Executive Committee and
the Investment Committee of the Company and a director of a
subsidiary of the Company. Mr. KEUNG joined the Group in July
2010 and he is responsible for finance and accounting matters. He
has over 20 years of experience in accounting and financial
management. He holds a Bachelor degree in Accountancy from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University and is a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. KEUNG is an
independent non-executive director of Milestone Builder Holdings
Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. CHAN Yim Ching, aged 51, is a Non-Executive Director of the
Company and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Ms. CHAN was responsible for sales and marketing when she joined
our Group in 1995 and she oversaw export sales to overseas markets
when she acted as an Executive Director of the Company from 2007
to 2015. Ms. CHAN has over 20 years of experience in the hospitality
supplies industry. Prior to joining our Group, she worked in several
companies engaged in hospitality supplies business.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan, aged 64, is an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company since 2007. He is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Audit Committee of the Company. Mr. HUNG has over 20 years of
senior management experience in managing hotel operations and
hotel investments. In 1992, he was a deputy managing director of
Top Glory International Holdings Limited (“Top Glory”), a former
Hong Kong listed company which was privatised in August 2003 and
acted as its executive director from July 1997 to January 2001,
During the period with Top Glory, Mr. HUNG assisted Top Glory to
develop and manage hotels/resorts. He resigned from such positions
due to the restructuring of Top Glory (by its holding company). In
2005, Mr. HUNG started a hotel development consultancy service to
work with various hotel developers and prestigious hotel chains on
design and project management.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. MA Chun Fung Horace, aged 48, is an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company since 2007. He is the
chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of each of the
Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Investment Committee of the Company. Mr. MA is a seasoned
accountant with extensive experience in risk and internal control.
Mr. MA is a Certified Public Accountant (Practicing) registered with
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, a
Certified Internal Auditor registered with the Institute of Internal
Auditors and holder of Certification of Control Self-Assessment of
the Institute of Internal Auditors. Mr. MA also holds various degrees
including Master of Science and Bachelor of Business Administration
conferred by The Chinese University of Hong Kong and Bachelor of
Laws conferred by the University of London.

Mr. NG Bo Kwong, aged 62, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company since 13 June 2013. He was a
Non-Executive Director of the Company from 9 July 2007 to 31
December 2012. He is a member of the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. NG has over 20 years
of management experience in different industries (including the
hospitality supplies industry). He is the chairman of the International
Quality Service Management Promotion Association (BIF¢ (8 HE iR 7% &
E{E# &) and a full member of the Hong Kong Management
Association (BB EEHEZEWE). He had assisted a number of
medium to large sized enterprises in formulating company
development strategies and establishing management systems in the
areas of sales and marketing, human resources and production
management. Mr. NG is also a guest lecturer of Master of Business
Administration programs and senior executive development programs
of several universities. He had been a director of a number of
non-listed companies and is currently a director of Advance
Management Consultants Limited and Guangzhou Advance Cultural
Events Limited. He received a Master degree of Business
Administration from the University of East Asia and a Doctor degree
of Philosophy in Business Administration from Tarlac State University.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

ESNRGREBAECEBEST (A)

Mr. SUN Yung Tson Eric, aged 42, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company since 2016. He is also a member of the
Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. He graduated with Bachelor degree of
Commerce in the University of New South Wales, Australia in July
2000. He has been the managing director of Kin Hip Metal & Plastic
Factory, Limited and KINOX Trading Limited since 2006 whom
succeeded the family business from his father Mr. SUN Kai Lit Cliff, a
former Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company.
“KINOX" is a famous international quality manufacturer of
fashionable cookware, houseware, insulated beverage servers, grills
and electrical appliances in household and catering industries,
especially in European and American countries. Mr. SUN Yung Tson
Eric has been involved in investing KINOX products and pioneering
KINOX brand exposure in emerging markets. Mr. SUN Yung Tson Eric
is the chairman of a brand joint venture named Hong Kong Quality
Brands Alliance Limited (HKQBA) (B& &M EX B A F]) where he
devotes his utmost in joining force with the second and the third
manufacturers’ generations with the aims of enhancing local brand
exposure. Mr. SUN Yung Tson Eric is the honorary and founding
president of Youth Executive Council (9% & €) of Federation of
Hong Kong Industries (BB T4 <) ("FHKI”) which aimed to
facilitate communication platform for expertise exchange among
young industrialists as well as the founding Vice Chairman and
Secretary General of Hong Kong 020 E-Commerce Federation (7%
O20EFE FH5#E) stimulating digitalisation and 020 business
development of Hong Kong Industries. His effort on social
responsibility also dedicates to his positions of Vice Chairman of FHKI
Hong Kong Q-Mark Council (BEEZIZF#BP) and committee
member of FHKI Pearl River Delta Council k=BT %% €). Mr. SUN
Yung Tson Eric is the Chairman of Hong Kong Plastics Manufacturers
Association Limited (BB 2 RBERE AR A F]) and the Vice
Chairman of The Hong Kong Exporters’ Association (& £ OR).
Mr. SUN Yung Tson Eric practices active roles in different public
services in both Hong Kong and China.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. CHAN Yick Ning, aged 56, is our research and development
director of the Group and a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Ms. CHAN is responsible for overseeing various aspects of
our chemical production such as chemical production quality control,
research and development of product formulations, the operations of
the chemical and microbiological laboratory, the performance of the
senior chemists and technicians, quality control and research and
development. Ms. CHAN is also the vice chairman of Compliance
Committee of the Group to provide the technical expertise in vary
aspects to ensure the regulatory compliance and product safety.
Ms. CHAN joined our Group in 2005 and has over 20 years of
experience in cosmetics production and laboratory operation.
Ms. CHAN was awarded a Master of Science degree from University
of Warwick in 2013 and a Diploma in Management Studies jointly by
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and Hong Kong Management
Association in 1992. Ms. CHAN is also a founder member and the
President of Hong Kong Society of Cosmetic Chemists, which is in
affiliate member of The International Federation of Societies of
Cosmetic Chemists.
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The Directors of Ming Fai International Holdings Limited are pleased to
present their annual report together with the audited financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in manufacturing and trading of hospitality supplies
products and trading of operating supplies and equipment. Details of the
principal activities of the principal subsidiaries of the Group are set out in
Note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's results for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in
the consolidated financial statements on pages 63 to 164 of this annual
report.

Dividend policy

The Board intend to strike a balance between maintaining sufficient
capital to grow the business of the Group and rewarding the
Shareholders. The declaration and payment of any dividends by the
Company would be subject to the Board’s decision and any final
dividend for a financial year of the Company would be subject to the
Shareholders’ approval. The decision to declare or to pay any dividend,
and the amount of any dividends, will depend on the Group’s earnings,
financial condition, cash requirements and availability, and any other
factors the Board may consider relevant. These factors and the payment
of dividends is at the discretion of the Board and the Board reserves
the right to change its plan on any future payment of dividends. The
payment of dividend is also subject to any restrictions under the laws of
Hong Kong and the Cayman Islands and the Articles of Association of the
Company.

Dividend

An interim dividend of HK2.0 cents per Share for the six months
ended 30 June 2018, amounting to a total dividend of approximately
HK$14,556,000 was paid on 5 October 2018, including dividend paid to
Shares held for the share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”).

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK5.0 cents
per Share for the year ended 31 December 2018. Subject to the approval
by the Shareholders at the annual general meeting of the Company to
be held on 29 May 2019, the final dividend will be paid on or around 17
June 2019 to the Shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on 6 June 2019.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
B85 (&)

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For ascertaining the eligibility of the Shareholders to attend and vote at
the AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Friday, 24 May 2019 to Wednesday, 29 May 2019 (both dates inclusive),
during which period no transfer of Shares will be effected. In order to
be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all documents in respect of
transfers of Shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-16,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 23 May 2019.

For ascertaining the entitlement of the Shareholders to the proposed final
dividend, the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Tuesday, 4 June 2019 to Thursday, 6 June 2019 (both dates inclusive),
during which period no transfer of Shares will be effected. In order
to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all documents in respect of
transfers of Shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-16,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 3 June 2019.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018
is set out in “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 8 to 10 and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 11 to 20 of this annual report.

Analysis of financial key performance indicators

The financial key performance indicators and analysis of the Group's
business are set out in “Five Years Financial Summary” on page 5 and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 11 to 20 of this annual
report.

Principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group

Risks pertaining to the reliance on direct sales customers
and distributors for the sale of products

Our hospitality supplies products are sold either by direct sales to our
customers, mainly hotels and airline operators, or to distributors for
supplying to other end-users. There is no assurance that such customers
will continue to purchase or maintain their purchase volumes of our
products in the future. In addition, there is no assurance that we will be
able to maintain business relationship with our customers. In the event
that any of our customers ceases to purchase from us or reduces the
purchase volume of orders placed with us and we are unable to obtain
replacement orders, our business and profitability may be adversely
affected.
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Risks pertaining to price fluctuations of raw materials

The principal raw materials used in our production may be subject to
substantial price volatility and periodic shortages caused by external
conditions, such as fluctuations in commodity prices and foreign
exchange rates. There is no guarantee that the costs of raw materials will
be stable in the future. To the extent that we are unable to cover any
increased costs of raw materials by either reduction in other production
costs or increase of our product prices, our profits will be adversely
affected.

Operation risks

The operation of the Group is subject to a number of risk factors
distinctive to the respective markets. Default on the part of the Group's
customers, distributors, suppliers and business partners, and inadequacies
or failures of internal processes, people and systems or other external
factors may have various levels of negative impact on the results of
operations. Additionally, accidents may happen despite systems and
policies set up for their prevention, which may lead to finance loss,
litigation or damage in reputation.

Market risks

The Group is also subject to market risks such as currency fluctuations,
volatility of interest rates, credit risks and liquidity risks in the
normal course of the Group’s businesses. Particulars of financial risk
management of the Group are set out in Note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Risks relating to compliance with laws and regulations

We are required to comply with all relevant laws and regulations
promulgated by the governments of the respective jurisdictions. There is
no assurance that the existing laws and regulations will not be changed
or additional or more stringent requirement will not be imposed,
compliance with which may cause us to incur significant expenditure.
Moreover, if we fail to comply with the present or future laws and
regulations, we may be required to pay substantial fines, suspend
production or cease operations. Consequently, our financial condition,
business and reputation may be adversely affected.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group strives to enhance governance, promote employee
benefits and development, protect the environment and fulfill social
responsibilities in order to achieve sustainable growth. The Group has
complied with the relevant laws and regulations that have significant
impact on the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
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Environmental policies and performance

The Group is committed to the principle of sustainable development and
fulfill corporate social responsibilities (“CSR") by applying “commercial
morality, the kindness towards people and protecting environment”.
Being one of the world’s leading suppliers of hospitality supplies
products, we comply with the laws and respect commercial morality.
We manage our operation based on the legal, compliant and reasonable
basics. We respect human rights, care for public welfare. We value
integrity and achieve win-win situation by cooperation. We follow
our philosophy of respecting morality and giving back to society. We
value resources and promote environmental protection. Relying on
scientific improvements to reduce impacts on the environment, while
we are seeking for environmental technologies to maintain sustainable
development.

The Group believes that CSR is not just about philanthropy, but also a
responsibility towards the community and being able to provide a good
platform to contribute in any way that is meaningful, fulfilling and
sustainable. CSR will remain a prominent feature in the Group’s agenda,
and environmental management is always an integral part of the Group's
business planning and daily operations.

Details of environmental policies and performance of the Group in
2018 are set out in the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report
2018", which is being prepared in accordance with “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” contained in Appendix 27 to
the Listing Rules and will be published on the HKEXnews website of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and the
Company’s website.

Key relationships with employees, customers and
suppliers

The Group recognises the accomplishment of the employees by providing
comprehensive benefit package, career development opportunities and
internal training appropriate to individual needs. The Group provides a
healthy and safe workplace for all employees.

The Group maintains working relationships with suppliers to meet our
customers’ needs in an effective and efficient manner. Our departments
work closely to make sure the tendering and procurement process is
conducted in an open, fair and just manner. The Group’s requirements
and standards are also well-communicated to suppliers.

The Group values the views and opinions of all customers through
various means and channels to understand customers’ trends and needs
and regularly analyses on customers’ feedback. The Group also conducts
comprehensive tests and checks to ensure that only quality products and
services are offered to the customers.
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THE GROUP’S FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five years is set out in “Five Years Financial Summary” on page 5
of this annual report.

SHARES AND DEBENTURES ISSUED

During the year ended 31 December 2018, 1,656,000 Shares were issued
with proceeds of approximately HK$1,027,000 received by the Company,
due to the exercise of share options of the Company.

The Group did not issue any debentures during the year ended 31
December 2018.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 67 and Note 18 and Note 37 to
the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2018, distributable reserves of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$1,014,000,000.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

No pre-emptive rights exist under the Company’s Articles of Association,
or the laws of the Cayman Islands, in which the Company incorporated.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2018, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any listed securities of the
Company, except that the trustee of the Share Award Scheme, pursuant
to the terms of the scheme rules and trust deed of the Share Award
Scheme, purchased on behalf of the Group on the Stock Exchange a total
of 3,550,000 Shares at a total consideration of approximately HK$4.0
million.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to the
date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. CHING Chi Fai (Chairman)
Mr. CHING Chi Keung

Mr. LIU Zigang

Mr. CHING Tsun Wah

Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung

Non-Executive Director
Ms. CHAN Yim Ching

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan
Mr. MA Chun Fung Horace
Mr. NG Bo Kwong

Mr. SUN Yung Tson Eric

In accordance with article 130 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. CHING Chi Fai, Mr. CHING Chi Keung, Ms. CHAN Yim Ching and
Mr. MA Chun Fung Horace shall retire at the AGM and being eligible,
shall offer themselves for re-election.

Confirmation of independence of Independent
Non-Executive Directors

The Company has received from each Independent Non-Executive
Director an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). The Company considers that Messrs.
HUNG Kam Hung Allan, MA Chun Fung Horace, NG Bo Kwong and SUN
Yung Tson Eric are independent. Details are set out in the section headed
“Board responsibilities and delegation” in the “Corporate Governance
Report” on pages 43 to 44.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM has a service contract which is not determinable by
the employer within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

For the year ended 31 December 2018, none of the Directors has any
interest in any business apart from the Group’s business, which competes
or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of
the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in which a
Director or an entity connected with a Director had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year ended 31 December 2018.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than Directors’ service contracts and employment contracts with
the Group’s senior management in full-time employment, no contracts
concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Group were entered into or in
existence during the year ended 31 December 2018.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision was in force during the year ended 31
December 2018 and up to the date of this report.

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, every Director shall
be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against
all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him/her as a Director in
defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which judgement
is given in his/her favour, or in which he/she is acquitted. There is
appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the
directors and officers of the Group.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in Note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements. None of them constituted discloseable
non-exempted connected transactions or non-exempted continuing
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

EZERS (H)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND

DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of the
Directors in shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporation (within the meaning of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) as recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the “Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” (the “Model Code")
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:

EERARAREEBEE RS -
HEROEEEE2EER AR

RZE—N\E+-A=+—8 BFRNAARQ
AN EEMAEEE (TEREFRBEK
Bl (TEHREBEEG])) 2 B&h - HERHD
MERESR  BAZAREE S RS KD
FIREAETHEFZELMFPHECRELST
RAKMSE T EMBITAZESTETESFRS
MiZESF A (MEZESF R BAAR R &
Rz R AR IT

Long positions in Shares and underlying Shares REBRAREBRG Z2HE
Number of
underlying
Shares held
under equity
derivatives
Number of Shares held (Note 1)
BURAST 4
IABEZ
HERGEA
BERGOEA (Hisz1)
Approximate
Corporate percentage of
Personal Family Interests Personal issued Shares
Interests Interests (interests of Interests as at
(beneficial (interests of controlled (beneficial 31 December
Name of Directors owner) spouse) corporation) owner) Total 2018
R-EB-N\F
+=A=+-8
BAER RikER LEER BAER BRTRGZ
EEpE (BERERAN) (BRERz) (TELEER) (BEHEBA) @t BABA
Mr. CHING Chi Fai 16,444,000 - 197,666,200 - 214,110,200 29.40%
BEBELE (Note 2 & 3)
(Hft2k3)
Mr. CHING Chi Keung 2,000,000 - 32,499,600 2,000,000 36,499,600 5.01%
BERTE (Note 3)
(h#3)
Mr. LIU Zigang 2,000,000 - 20,057,200 2,000,000 24,057,200 3.30%
21FRIEE (Note 4)
(Hit4)
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah 3,734,000 775,000 - - 4,509,000 0.62%
BEZELE (Note 5)
(h#5)
Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung - - - 1,158,000 1,158,000 0.16%
ZRERE
Ms. CHAN Yim Ching - - 32,499,600 - 32,499,600 4.46%
BEEzt (Note 3)
(Hit3)
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EEEHRE (R)

Number of
underlying
Shares held
under equity
derivatives
Number of Shares held (Note 1)
BURA ST 4
IAKEZ
HERGEA
BERGEE (Hiit1)
Approximate
Corporate percentage of
Personal Family Interests Personal issued Shares
Interests Interests (interests of Interests as at
(beneficial (interests of controlled (beneficial 31 December
Name of Directors owner) spouse) corporation) owner) Total 2018
RZE-N\E
tT=ZA=+-8H
AR KR LEER BAER BETRAZ
EEpE (BREEAN) (BEEz) (FTRIEER) (BREBA) @t BB
Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan 600,000 - - - 600,000 0.08%
FLIR ST AE
Mr. MA Chun Fung Horace 600,000 - - - 600,000 0.08%
BiRELE
Mr. NG Bo Kwong 600,000 - - - 600,000 0.08%
RERAKE
Notes: Kzt -
1. These underlying Shares held under equity derivatives represented the 1. WEURASTETAEBE 2 HEERMIIARX T

share options granted by the Company (being regarded as unlisted
physically settled equity derivatives). Details of the share options granted
to the Directors are set out in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
of this report.

2. 165,166,600 Shares were held by Prosper Well International Limited,
which was wholly-owned by Mr. CHING Chi Fai.

3. 32,499,600 Shares were held by Targetwise Trading Limited, which
was owned as to 50%, 31.54% and 18.46% by Mr. CHING Chi Keung,
Ms. CHAN Yim Ching and Mr. CHING Chi Fai respectively.

4. 20,057,200 Shares were held by Favour Power Limited, which was
wholly-owned by Mr. LIU Zigang.

5. 775,000 Shares were held by Ms. SO Wai Yin Tracy, the spouse of
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the Directors
had any interest or short positions in shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporation (within
the meaning of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

REzZBERE BB RAEMEE 2 LTR
ATETR) - RTEFZEBREFABHARAE
HETEEES 8 —5 -

2. 165, 166,6000% % 15 FProsper Well International
Limited#$48 © MZARBEEELEZEHRE -

3. 32,499,6000% B% 7 fATargetwise Trading
Limited¥$ 8 ' M ARIMIBERELE  FREE
T REEEL & DB AS0% - 31.54% K%
18.46% & ©

4. 20,057,2000% % 5 fiFavour Power Limited#F
B MzABBTFRITEZEESR -

5. 775000t ARBEEL L CRLEBEEB L
ITHA-

BEXHEREEN R_ZBE-NEF+A
=t—B BMEEENARFHETMBE
B(EEREFRBMEEMN) 2ty - HERD
NEEEDEREALCAREESKBEED
FIGMEATHEIELM P HREBFTE
STRIBBAAR B R R SORR
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

EZERS (H)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER ABREREMATREAATRSE
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS RAABERAZEEZR AR
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE

COMPANY

As at 31 December 2018, so far as it was known by or otherwise notified R-ZT—N\F+_-_A=+—0  gE@AMEEFR
by any Director, the interests and short positions of the substantial BB EANEM T NERA - AR L EA
shareholders and other persons (other than a Director), in Shares and A+ (EEBRIN) RIRMO RBEAKRMDTEELA
underlying Shares as recorded in the register required to be kept under RBIEZEH KB EIEHIE3361KB FHFHEL

Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Mz R OREWT

Long positions in Shares REGBZEE
Number of Shares held
BERHEA
Approximate
Corporate percentage of
Personal Family Corporate Corporate Interests issued Shares
Interests Interests Interests Interests (interests of as at
(beneficial (interests of (beneficial (investment controlled 31 December
Name owner) spouse) owner) manager) corporation) Total 2018
RZB-N§
+ZA=1-H
BARE FhER EEER EEES EEER BETRGZ
3982 (BEHEA) (REgs) (EEEBA) (RELE) =8 @t BHEAL
Prosper Well International Limited (Note 1) - - 165,166,600 - - 165,166,600 22.68%
Prosper Well International Limited (47527
Ms. LO Kit Ling (Note 1) - 214,110,200 - - - 214,110,200 29.40%
EgRat i)
Ms. PO Fung Kiu (Note 2) - 36,499,600 - - - 36,499,600 5.01%
RRERL (i)
Mr. David Michael WEBB (Note 3) 33,495,504 - - - 61,057,496 94,553,000 12.98%
David Michael WEBBS: 4 (/223
Preferable Situation Assets Limited (Note 3) - - 61,057,496 - - 61,057,496 8.38%
Preferable Situation Assets Limited (#/3)
Wykeham Capital Asia Value Fund (Note 4) - - 44,570,000 - - 44,570,000 6.12%
Wykeham Capital Asia Value Fund (#/24)
Wykeham Capital Limited (Note 4) - - - 44,570,000 - 44,570,000 6.12%
Wykeham Capital Limited (47z24)
Mr. Howel Gruffudd Rhys THOMAS (Note 4) - - - - 44,570,000 44,570,000 6.12%

Howel Gruffudd Rhys THOMAS 4 (#:24)
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Notes:

1. 165,166,600 Shares were held by Prosper Well International Limited, which
was wholly-owned by Mr. CHING Chi Fai (an Executive Director and the
Chairman of the Company). 32,499,600 Shares were held by Targetwise
Trading Limited, which was owned as to 18.46% by Mr. CHING Chi Fai.
Mr. CHING Chi Fai also beneficially held 16,444,000 Shares. Ms. LO Kit
Ling, being the spouse of Mr. CHING Chi Fai, was deemed to be interested
in the 214,110,200 Shares in which Mr. CHING Chi Fai interested.

2. Ms. PO Fung Kiu, being the spouse of Mr. CHING Chi Keung (an Executive
Director), was deemed to be interested in the 36,499,600 Shares in which
Mr. CHING Chi Keung interested.

3. Based on the disclosure of interests notice of Preferable Situation Assets
Limited with the date of relevant event on 10 July 2017 received by
the Company, 58,035,665 Shares were held by Preferable Situation
Assets Limited, which was wholly-owned by Mr. David Michael WEBB,
representing 8.00% of the issued Shares as at that day. Based on the
disclosure of interests notice of Mr. David Michael WEBB with the date of
relevant event on 26 April 2018 received by the Company, 61,057,496
Shares were held by Preferable Situation Assets Limited, which was
wholly-owned by Mr. David Michael WEBB, who also beneficially held
33,495,504 Shares. Save as disclosed above, no further respective
disclosure of interests notices of Mr. David Michael WEBB and Preferable
Situation Assets Limited with the date of relevant event on or before 31
December 2018 were received by the Company.

4. Based on the disclosure of interests notices with the date of relevant event
on 17 May 2017 received by the Company, Mr. Howel Gruffudd Rhys
THOMAS was deemed to be interested in the 44,570,000 Shares owned
by Wykeham Capital Asia Value Fund by virtue of his 100% shareholding
interest in Wykeham Capital Limited (which was the investment manager
of Wykeham Capital Asia Value Fund). Save as disclosed above, no further
respective disclosure of interests notices of Wykeham Capital Asia Value
Fund, Wykeham Capital Limited and Mr. Howel Gruffudd Rhys THOMAS
with the date of relevant event on or before 31 December 2018 were
received by the Company.

Save as disclosed above and in the section headed “Directors’ interests
and short positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations” of this report, as at 31
December 2018, so far as it was known by or otherwise notified by
any Director, none of the substantial shareholders and other persons
(other than a Director), had any interest or short positions in Shares and
underlying Shares as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO.
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B & #7H16,444,0000 1 - BRI L+ /12
EBEEMNRER WRARELSEBLEHGRE
#=[9214,110,20008 R D R #EH % o

2. MEBZTARTESRERTENES
RANRELRE LB % 136,499,6004% i%
MR -

3. iR 3% A A &) Y BlPreferable Situation Assets
LimitedRBEEHRPA-T—tFLA+H
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

EETEWRS (&)
SHARE OPTION SCHEME i8R gt &l
The Company has conditionally adopted a share option scheme (the ZARBR-_ZEZT+F+ARBHEIEERMNER

“Share Option Scheme”) on 5 October 2007. Particulars of movements %‘ﬁ%u (TEER#EE])) - HE-_2E—N\F+=
in the share options during the year ended 31 December 2018 wereas A =+—HIFFE @ BREZFESHFBHOT -
follows:

Number of share options
BREHR

Outstanding Outstanding
as at Granted  Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed asat
Exercise 1 January during during during during 31 December
Grantee Date of grant Exercise period price 2018 theyear  theyear  theyear the year 2018
R=B-N% R=B-N§
-A-A R £ £ £l tZA=t-H
ARA RHEH A ﬁfsg WA R’ [k HH b3 HAGTE
BT
Directors
£
Mr. CHING Chi Keung 04-09-2012 23-06-2013 to 22-06-2019 0.62 2,000,000 = = - - 2,000,000
BERtE “E-CEAAEA ZE-CERAZT=8E
“E2-AFRAZTCR
Mr. LIU Zigang 04-09-2012 23-06-2013 to 22-06-2019 0.62 2,000,000 - - - - 2,000,000
ARk —ZZ-ZFNAEA ZE-ZFRAZTZHE
ii NERRZtZA
Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung ~ 04-09-2012 09-09-2012 to 08-09-2021 0.62 579,000 - - - - 579,000
ZHERE “E-Z¥NAmA ZB-ZENANEE
SN
04-09-2012 09 09 2013 t0 08-09-2021 0.62 579,000 - = - - 579,000
ZE-Z¥AAMA
Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan ~ 04-09-2012 04-09-2012 to 22-06-2019 0.62 300,000 - (300,000) - - -
b5 “E-ZFNARB ZE-ZFAAMAZ
“E-NERAZTCA
04-09-2012 23-06-2013 to 22-06-2019 0.62 300,000 - (300,000) - - -
“E-“EAAMA  ZE-ZERF-tZREZ
ZE-AERAZTZA
Employees
=
In aggregate 04-09-2012 04-09-2012 to 22-06-2019 0.62 1,437,000 - (388,000) - - 1,049,000
A “E-Z¥NAMA % ‘ﬁhﬂlﬁ‘
E-NFRAZTZA
04-09-2012 23-06-2013 t0 22-06-2019 0.62 2,130,000 - (456,000) - - 1,674,000
“T-ZEAARR  ZE-ZERF-tZHEZ
ZE-NERAZTZA
04-09-2012 09-09-2012 to 08-09-2021 0.62 944,000 - (50,000) - - 894,000
ZZ-ZEAARR ZE-ZEARNEEZ
“RC-EAANA
04-09-2012 09-09-2013 to 08-09-2021 0.62 944,000 - (50,000) - - 894,000
“E-Z¥NAMA z
04-09-2012 0.62 404,500 = (56,000) - (50,000) 298,500
“E-CENARRA
04-09-2012 04-09-2014 t0 03-09-2022 0.62 516,500 - (56,000) - (50,000) 410,500
ZZ-ZENARA “2-RMEAARBEEZ
“ECFNAZH
Total 12,134,000 - (1,656,000 - (100,000) 10,378,000
@t
The weighted average closing price of the Shares immediately before the R&EZ-_ET—NF+_A=+—HILFE

dates on which the share options were exercised for the year ended 31 {7 B # ﬁ% R RE1T{E B H9 2 B A9 AN $§$i’-ﬂﬁz
December 2018 was HK$1.15 per Share (for the year ended 31 December FHEABZRI1.I5B T (HEZE T —+tF+=-A
2017: HK$1.20 per Share). =+—HIEFE : 8&1.2087T) °
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The following is a summary of the principal terms of the rules of the
Share Option Scheme:

(1)

(2)

(3)

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme was to enable the Board
to grant options to selected employees (whether full time or part
time, including the Directors) of any member of the Group (the
“Eligible Persons”) as incentives or rewards for their contribution or
potential contribution to the Group.

The terms of the Share Option Scheme provided that in granting
options under the Share Option Scheme, the Board was entitled
to determine whether there is any minimum holding period, and
whether there is any performance target which must be achieved,
before an option granted under the Share Option Scheme is
exercised. The Board was also entitled to determine the option
price per Share payable on the exercise of an option (the “Exercise
Price”) according to the terms of the Share Option Scheme. Such
terms, together with the incentives that the option would bring
about, the Board believed, would serve the purpose of the Share
Option Scheme.

Period of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme was effective during the period of ten
years commencing on 2 November 2007 (the date on which the
Share Option Scheme become unconditional) and the Share Option
Scheme was expired on 1 November 2017. On expiry of the Share
Option Scheme, no further option shall be granted but in all other
respects the provisions of the Share Options Scheme shall remain
in force. All options granted and accepted prior to such expiry shall
continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with their terms
and terms of the Share Option Scheme.

Basis of eligibility

The Board at its absolute discretion and on such terms as it might
think fit, granted options to any Eligible Person to subscribe at
the Exercise Price for such number of Shares as determined in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme.

The basis of eligibility of any of the Eligible Persons to the grant
of options were determined by the Board on the basis of his
contribution or potential contribution to the development and
growth of the Group.
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(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

38

Price for subscription of Shares

The Exercise Price was determined by the Board at the higher of:

(@) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of
grant of the options which must be a business day; and

(b)  the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily
guotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant,

provided that the Exercise Price shall in no event be less than the
nominal amount of one Share.

Acceptance of offers

The amount payable to the Company as acceptance of the offer for
the grant of an option was HK$1.

Maximum number of Shares

The maximum number of Shares which might be issued upon
the exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
(excluding, for this purpose, options which have lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme or
any other share option schemes of the Company) must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue on the listing date (i.e.
2 November 2007) (the “Scheme Limit").

The Scheme Limit could be refreshed at any time subject to
Shareholders’ approval provided that such limit as refreshed should
not exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of approval
of the renewed limit. Share options previously granted under the
Share Option Scheme (including those outstanding, cancelled,
lapsed or exercised) would not be counted for the purpose of
calculating the Scheme Limit as refreshed. On 23 May 2013, the
refreshment of the Scheme Limit was approved by the Shareholders
at the annual general meeting. As at the date of this annual report,
the number of Shares available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme is 9,990,000 Shares which represents approximately 1.37%
of the total number of issued Shares.

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Person

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued upon the
exercise of options granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company to any Eligible
Person (including cancelled, exercised and outstanding options), in
any 12-month period should not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue
from time to time.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 23 September 2016, the Company adopted the Share Award Scheme
in which the Group's employees, directors, consultants or advisers
will be entitled to participate. During the year ended 31 December
2018, a sum of approximately HK$4.0 million has been used to acquire
3,550,000 Shares from the market by the independent trustee (Bank
of Communications Trustee Limited) which is independent and not
connected with the Company. No Shares have been granted to eligible
persons under the Share Award Scheme up to the date of this report.

The objectives of the Share Award Scheme are (i) to recognise the
contributions by certain eligible persons; and (ii) to offer suitable
incentives to attract and retain targeted talents and personnel for the
continuance of operations and future development of the Group.

The Share Award Scheme shall be subject to the administration of the
Board and the independent trustee in accordance with the scheme
rules and the trust deed of the Share Award Scheme. Subject to any
early termination as may be determined by the Board, the Share Award
Scheme shall be valid and effective for a term of ten years commencing
on its adoption date (i.e. 23 September 2016).

The Board shall not make any further award of awarded Shares which
will result in the nominal value of the Shares awarded by the Board under
the Share Award Scheme exceeding 5% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time. The maximum number of Shares which may
be awarded to a selected person under the Share Award Scheme shall
not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company from time to
time.

Details of the Share Award Scheme were set out in the announcement of
the Company dated 23 September 2016.

ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option Scheme” and
“Share Award Scheme” of this report, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate at the end of the year or at
any time during the year ended 31 December 2018.
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CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements, no
contract of significance between the Company or any of its subsidiaries
and a controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries were entered into
or subsisted during the year ended 31 December 2018.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option Scheme” and
“Share Award Scheme” of this report, no equity-linked agreement was
entered into or subsisted during the year ended 31 December 2018.

REMUNERATION POLICY

Remuneration of our employees (including the Directors) are generally
structured by reference to market terms and individual merits. Salaries
are reviewed annually with reference to market conditions and the
performance, qualifications and experience of individual employees.
Discretionary bonuses are paid on an annual basis based on the results
of the Group, individual performance and other relevant factors. The
Company has also introduced the key performance indicators assessment
scheme to boost performance and operational efficiency.

The Company has also adopted the Share Option Scheme and the Share
Award Scheme to recognise and reward the eligible employees for their
contributions to the business and development of the Group.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

The aggregate revenue attributable to the Group's five largest customers
accounted for less than 30% of the Group's total revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total number of issued Shares was held by the public as at the date of
this report.
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group made charitable
donations amounting to approximately HK$15,000.

AUDITOR

The Company’s auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers who shall retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the AGM.

On behalf of the Board

CHING Chi Fai
Chairman
Hong Kong, 27 March 2019
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Corporate Governance Report

A\ /A—[\-\\ =+
TEERRE

The Company is dedicated to maintaining and ensuring high standards
of corporate governance practices. The corporate governance principles
of the Company emphasise accountability and transparency and are
adopted in the best interest of the Company and the Shareholders. The
Board reviews its corporate governance practices from time to time in
order to meet the rising expectations of the Shareholders and to fulfill its
commitment to excellence in corporate governance.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board has reviewed its
policies and practices on corporate governance, and policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Group has complied with all the code provisions set out in the
“Corporate Governance Code” (the “CG Code”) during the year ended
31 December 2018, as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, except
the deviation of code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code that the Board
has not appointed an individual to the post of chief executive officer up
to the date of this report and the role of the chief executive officer has
been performed collectively by all the Executive Directors, including the
Chairman of the Company. The Board considers that this arrangement
allows contributions from all Executive Directors with different expertise
and is beneficial to the continuity of the Company’s policies and
strategies.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the year and up to the date of this report, the Board comprises
the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. CHING Chi Fai (Chairman)
Mr. CHING Chi Keung

Mr. LIU Zigang

Mr. CHING Tsun Wah

Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung

Non-Executive Director
Ms. CHAN Yim Ching

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan
Mr. MA Chun Fung Horace
Mr. NG Bo Kwong

Mr. SUN Yung Tson Eric
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
EXRERRS (&)

Board responsibilities and delegation ESERERRE

The Board collectively determines the overall strategies of the Company ZFe@HFEETANF 2 EEFREERAD
and monitors performance and risks in pursuit of the strategic objectives TS KEMBEE 7 E2ELER - ARTHEE
of the Company. Day-to-day management of the Company is delegated ETHTFHITESHEEZ T ZaRhEEA
to the Executive Directors or the senior management in charge of each B -G AEBRATEREAZTELHCDHNAS
division. All Directors (including Non-Executive Director and Independent BEEE (BIEFERTESTERBIIIEHNTESE) -
Non-Executive Directors) have been consulted on all major and material

matters of the Group.

The Board has delegated some of its function to the Board committees, EHEDWHIBOBETHTFTEEEES B
details of which are set out below. Matters specifically reserved for the FHBEHATX - B ERBLEES 2B &
Board, including convening Shareholders’ meetings, implementing the fEBRAREEE  NITRERZER ETFLAsE
Shareholders’ resolutions, determining the Group’s business plans and BMEKBTEILRER GEAEENFEEE
strategies, formulating the Group’s annual budget and final accounts, RZ2EEE - $ITIES « 5 £ A3 10 =k &5 IR
formulating proposals for dividend and bonus distributions and for ZAMAFERE EBETAEBMNDERE  HTFTERE
increase or reduction of share capital, determining the Group’s corporate =t 2| A RITE AR A GIAG S MBI TE T 2
structure, formulating investment plans as well as exercising other  Efh#E - BeE MBS -

powers, functions and duties as conferred by the Articles of Association

of the Company.

The attendance of the Directors at Board meetings, committee meetings HE-Z—N\F+_A=+—BIFFEE AR
and annual general meeting of the Company during the year ended 31 ARAREEze s ZEeeBNBRIEAEARS
December 2018 were as follows: WmESHERNT :

Number of meetings attended/held

EELIVZ St |
Audit  Nomination Remuneration Executive Investment Annual
Board Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
28 EKZEE REZEE HMZEE  UTZEE  REZEE RRBEE
EE EE g EE ] g3 EE Ag
Executive Directors BTES
Mr. CHING Chi Fai Eaod bt 4/4 - 71 2 4/4 7n 17
Mr. CHING Chi Keung EFC 4/4 - - - 4/4 - 17
Mr. LIU Zigang 21FMEIEE 414 - - - 4/ - 7
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah BRELE 404 - - - 4/4 - 1/1
Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung ZEETE 4/4 - - - 44 n 1
Non-Executive Director FUTES
Ms. CHAN Yim Ching REERL 4/4 - - - - - 11
Independent BUKHTES
Non-Executive Directors
Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan AFsEE 4/4 22 - 22 - - 11
Mr. MA Chun Fung Horace BRELE 4/4 22 17 22 - I 11
Mr. NG Bo Kwong RERETE 4/4 2 - 2 - - 171
Mr. SUN Yung Tson Eric BRpLE 4/4 22 i 20 - - 17

ARERERERAR —T—N\FFH 43



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
EXRERRS (B)

Each Executive Director has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years while each Non-Executive Director
and Independent Non-Executive Director has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of one year. All the aforesaid
service contracts or letters of appointment may be terminated by either
party giving written notice in accordance with the terms of service
contracts or letters of appointment. All the Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general meetings
of the Company in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company.

The Company has appointed sufficient number of Independent
Non-Executive Directors in accordance to the requirements of the Listing
Rules and Mr. MA Chun Fung Horace has appropriate accounting
professional qualifications. The Company has received from each
Independent Non-Executive Director, namely Messrs. HUNG Kam Hung
Allan, MA Chun Fung Horace, NG Bo Kwong and SUN Yung Tson Eric,
an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. Save that Mr. SUN Yung Tson Eric is the son of Mr. SUN Kai
Lit Cliff, who was a former Independent Non-Executive Director, Mr. SUN
Yung Tson Eric is not and was not connected with any of the Directors,
the chief executive of the Company or a substantial Shareholder within
two years immediately prior to the date of his appointment and up to
the date of this report. The Directors are of the view that all Independent
Non-Executive Directors meet the independence requirements as set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Mr. CHING Chi Fai (the Chairman of the Company and an Executive
Director) and Mr. CHING Chi Keung (Executive Director) are brothers.
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah (Executive Director) is the son of Mr. CHING Chi Fai
and a nephew of Mr. CHING Chi Keung.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, four Board meetings were
held. Minutes of the Board meetings are being kept by the Company
Secretary of the Company and are available for inspection by the
Directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the following committees:

. Audit Committee;

. Nomination Committee;
o Remuneration Committee;
o Executive Committee; and
o Investment Committee.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises Mr. MA Chun Fung Horace (Chairman
of the Audit Committee), who has appropriate accounting professional
qualifications and relevant expertise, and Messrs. HUNG Kam Hung
Allan, NG Bo Kwong and SUN Yung Tson Eric, all are Independent
Non-Executive Directors. The Audit Committee held two meetings during
the year ended 31 December 2018.

The Audit Committee is responsible for assisting the Board in fulfilling
its audit duties through the review and supervision of the Group's
financial reporting system, risk management system and internal control
procedures, details of responsibilities are set out in the terms of reference
of the Audit Committee, which are published on the HKEXnews website
of the Stock Exchange and the website of the Company.

The work performed by the Audit Committee during the year ended
31 December 2018 are summarised below:

° reviewed the interim and annual results, the relevant statements
and reports of the Group, the significant financial reporting
judgements, in order to monitor the integrity and whether in
accordance with the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group and the applicable accounting standard;

o reviewed the external auditor’s audit plan and terms of
engagement;
o reviewed management letter and any materials queries raised

by the external auditor to the management in relation to the
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control and
management’s responses;

o reviewed the key audit matters and discussed with external auditor
and the management;
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
EXRERRE (B)

o reviewed the independency and objectivity of the external auditor,
the effectiveness of audit process and the non-audit service fee
payable to the external auditor;

o recommended to the Board the re-appointment of the external
auditor and the audit fee payable to the external auditor for
Shareholders’ approval at the annual general meeting;

. reviewed the effectiveness of financial control, risk management
and internal control systems of the Group involving financial,
operational and compliance control;

o reviewed the internal audit report prepared by the internal auditor
and the management’s responses to the findings by the internal
audit function;

o considered and reviewed the proposals of internal audit plan;

o reviewed the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, budget of the Group’s financial reporting and internal
audit functions; and

o reviewed the terms of reference of the Audit Committee and
recommended for the Board'’s approval.

Auditor’s remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the fees payable by the Company
to the external auditor of the Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers are
HK$2,680,000 for audit services and HK$381,000 for non-audit services.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises Mr. CHING Chi Fai (Chairman
of the Nomination Committee), Executive Director and Messrs. MA
Chun Fung Horace and SUN Yung Tson Eric, both are Independent
Non-Executive Directors. The Nomination Committee held a meeting

during the year ended 31 December 2018.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for the identification and
recommendation to the Board of possible appointees as Directors, making
recommendations to the Board on matters relating to appointment
or re-appointment of Directors, succession planning of Directors and
assessing the independence of the Independent Non-Executive Directors,
details of responsibilities are set out in the terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee, which are published on the HKEXnews website
of the Stock Exchange and the website of the Company.
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The work performed by the Nomination Committee during the year
ended 31 December 2018 are summarised below:

reviewed the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge, experience and diversity) of the Board;

recommended to the Board regarding the re-election of directors
for Shareholders’ approval at the annual general meeting;

assessed the independence of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors; and

reviewed the nomination policy and the Board diversity policy of
the Company and terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
and recommended for the Board’s approval.

Nomination policy

Selection criteria

The Nomination Committee would assess the suitability of a proposed
candidate based on a number of factors, including but not limited to:

character and integrity;

professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience that
are relevant to the Group’s business and corporate strategy;

potential time commitment to discharge duties as a Director and/
or committee member and other directorships and significant
commitments;

Board diversity policy and any measurable objectives adopted for
achieving the Board'’s diversity;

relevant requirements as stipulated under the Listing Rules of the
Stock Exchange, the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, other
applicable laws and regulations in Hong Kong and the Cayman
Islands and the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the
Company;

independence requirements for the Independent Non-Executive
Directors.

Nomination procedures

Appointment of Director(s)

The Nomination Committee shall upon receipt of the biographical
details of the proposed candidate(s), evaluate the candidate(s) based
on the selection criteria of the nomination policy to determine his/
her qualification as a Director and make recommendation for the
Board’s consideration. The selected individual(s) will be subject
to re-election by Shareholders at the next general meeting of
the Company after his/her initial appointment as Director(s) in
accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
EXRERRE (B)

o For any person as nominated by a Shareholder for election as a
Director at a general meeting of the Company, the qualification
of the candidate(s) shall be evaluated first by the Nomination
Committee and then by the Board based on the selection criteria of
the nomination policy. The Board shall make recommendation to
the Shareholders in respect of such proposed election as Director(s)
at the general meeting of the Company.

Re-election of Director(s)

o The Nomination Committee shall review and determine whether
the retiring Director(s) continue to meet the selection criteria of
the nomination policy and make recommendation for the Board'’s
consideration. The Board shall then make recommendation to the
Shareholders in respect of the proposed re-election of Director(s) at
the general meeting.

Summary of the Board diversity policy

The Board diversity policy of the Company setting out the approach to
diversity on the Board. The Company continuously seeks to enhance
its effectiveness and to maintain the highest standards of corporate
governance and recognises diversity at Board level as an essential
element in maintaining a competitive advantage, Board diversity has
been considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The Nomination
Committee and the Board will also take into account factors based
on the Group’s business model and specific needs from time to time.
The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises Mr. CHING Chi Fai, Executive
Director, and Messrs. HUNG Kam Hung Allan (Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee), MA Chun Fung Horace, NG Bo Kwong and
SUN Yung Tson Eric, all are Independent Non-Executive Directors. The
Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31
December 2018.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making recommendations
to the Board on the Group’'s remuneration policy and structure,
the remuneration packages of the Executive Directors and senior
management, and the remuneration of Non-Executive Director and
Independent Non-Executive Directors, details of responsibilities are set
out in the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee, which
are published on the HKEXnews website of the Stock Exchange and the
website of the Company.
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The work performed by the Remuneration Committee during the year
ended 31 December 2018 are summarised below:

o considered and reviewed the remuneration packages, including
the discretionary bonus, and the performance, time commitment
and responsibilities of each Executive Director and the senior
management, with reference to the prevailing market conditions,
and recommended for the Board’s approval on the adjustments
of remuneration of each Executive Director and the senior

management;
o considered and reviewed the Group’s remuneration policy; and
o reviewed the respective letter of appointment and director’s fee

of each Non-Executive Director and Independent Non-Executive
Director and recommended for the Board’s approval.

The remuneration of senior management by band for the year ended
31 December 2018 is as follows:
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Executive Committee

The Executive Committee comprises Messrs. CHING Chi Fai (Chairman of
the Executive Committee), CHING Chi Keung, LIU Zigang, CHING Tsun
Wah and KEUNG Kwok Hung, all are Executive Directors. The Executive
Committee held four meetings during the year ended 31 December 2018.

The Executive Committee has been delegated with the general powers
to deal with the daily operations and management of the Company,
including but not limited to, setting up new companies, opening bank
accounts, arranging banking facilities, affixing the Common Seal, issue of
Shares upon exercise of any subscription or conversion rights under any
share option schemes of the Company, warrants or convertible notes.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
EXRERRE (B)

Investment Committee

The Investment Committee comprises Messrs. CHING Chi Fai (Chairman
of the Investment Committee) and KEUNG Kwok Hung, both are
Executive Directors and Mr. MA Chun Fung Horace, Independent
Non-Executive Director. The Investment Committee held a meeting during

the year ended 31 December 2018.

The Investment Committee has been delegated by the Board to assess,
consider and approve/recommend any potential investments and/or
divestments of the Group, which are less than US$20 million, or 5%
of the total market capitalisation of the Company, in aggregate in
each financial year, whichever is lower, and approve each investment/
divestment reaching/exceeding HK$3 million but not exceeding 10% of
the aforesaid aggregate amount.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions as set out in
the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code. During the year ended
31 December 2018, the Board reviewed the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, continuous professional development
of the Directors and the senior management, the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
the compliance of the Listing Rules and its updates, the compliance of
the Model Code by the Directors and employees and the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.
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Directors’ continuous professional development

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the
Board remains informed and relevant. All the Directors understand the
importance of continuous professional development and are committed
to participating any suitable training or reading relevant materials in
order to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company
has received from each Director his/her training record of participation in
continuous professional development for the year ended 31 December
2018:

Attending seminar(s)
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Executive Directors BITES
Mr. CHING Chi Fai BEBEE - v
Mr. CHING Chi Keung BEREE - v
Mr. LIU Zigang 27 M5k A4 - v
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah TREELE - v
Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung EH I RE v v
Non-Executive Director FHITES
Ms. CHAN Yim Ching PR )5 22 + - 4
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIFHTES
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Mr. SUN Yung Tson Eric R T E - v

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES ESETRSRINEETEH

TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions on 5 October 2007. Having made specific enquiries to
all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code for the year ended 31
December 2018.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
EXRERRE (B)

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for overseeing the
preparation of the financial statements for each financial period which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group, and of
results and cash flow for the financial period. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2018, the Directors have
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently;
adopted appropriate Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and Hong
Kong Accounting Standards; made prudent and reasonable judgements
and estimates and have prepared the financial statements on a going
concern basis. The Directors also warrant that the Group’s financial
statements will be published in a timely manner.

The statement of the reporting responsibilities on the financial statements
of the Group of the auditor of the Company is set out in the “Independent
Auditor’s Report” on pages 56 to 62 of this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound and effective
risk management and internal control systems of the Group and reviewing
their effectiveness annually. The Group’s internal control system includes
a well defined management structure with limits of authority which is
designed for the achievement of business objectives, safeguarding assets
against unauthorised use or disposition, ensuring proper maintenance
of books and records for the provision of reliable financial information
for internal use or publication, and ensuring compliance with relevant
legislations and regulations. In addition, the Group has established
risk management procedures to identify and prioritise risks for the
business to be addressed by management. At least on an annual basis,
management identifies risks that would adversely affect the achievement
of the Group’s objectives, and assesses and prioritises the identified risks
according to a set of standard criteria. Risk mitigation plans and risk
owners are then established for those risks considered to be significant.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board appointed a
professional consulting firm with the responsibility to conduct internal
audit function and assess risks of the Company and perform the
agreed-upon procedures in relation to the internal controls of the
business of the Group. The Audit Committee and the management will
follow up the suggestions from the aforesaid professional consulting firm
to further improve the risk management and internal control systems. The
Group is committed to the identification, monitoring and management of
risks associated with its business activities.
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The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of risk management
and internal control systems of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018 and satisfied with the scope and effectiveness of the
systems. The review included but not limited to the Group’s ability to
cope with its business transformation and changing external environment;
the scope and quality of management’s review on risk management and
internal control systems; result of internal audit work; the extent and
frequency of communication with the Board in relation to result of risks
and internal control review; significant failures or weaknesses identified
and their related implications; and status of compliance with the Listing
Rules. The Board considers the Group's risk management and internal
control systems are effective and adequate.

Procedures and internal controls for handling and
dissemination of inside information

The Group complies with requirements of the SFO and the Listing
Rules. The Group discloses inside information to the public as soon as
reasonably practicable unless the information falls within any of the
safe harbours as provided in the SFO. Before the information is fully
disclosed to the public, the Group ensures the information is kept
strictly confidential. If the Group believes that the necessary degree of
confidentiality cannot be maintained or that confidentiality may have
been breached, the Group will immediately disclose the information
to the public. The Group is committed to ensuring that information
contained in published documents are not false or misleading as to a
material fact, or false or misleading through the omission of a material
fact in view of presenting information in a clear and balanced way, which
requires equal disclosure of both positive and negative facts.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

Communication with Shareholders is given high priority by the Group. A
Shareholder communication policy has been adopted for the purpose of
ensuring that the Shareholders are provided with ready, equal and timely
access to the balanced and understandable information about the Group.

Extensive information about the Group's activities has been provided
in the annual reports and the interim reports which are sent to the
Shareholders and are available on the HKExnews website of the Stock
Exchange and the Company’s website. Shareholders may communicate
with the Directors and senior management in the general meetings of the
Company. External auditor is also invited to attend the AGM to answer
questions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of
the independent auditor’s report, the accounting policies adopted by the
Company in relation to the preparation of the financial statements and
independence of the auditor in relation to the conduct of the audit.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
EXRERRE (B)

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening an extraordinary general meeting by the
Shareholders

The procedures of convening an extraordinary general meeting by the
Shareholders are as follows:

Pursuant to article 79 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
general meetings may be convened on the written requisition of any
two or more members of the Company deposited at the principal office
of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to
have such a principal office, the registered office, specifying the objects
of the meeting and signed by the requisitionists, provided that such
requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company. General meetings
may also be convened on the written requisition of any one member of
the Company which is a recognised clearing house (or its nominee(s))
deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or,
in the event the Company ceases to have such a principal office, the
registered office, specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by
the requisitionist, provided that such requisitionist held as at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company which carries the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company. If the Board does not within 21 days from the date
of deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to
be held within a further 21 days, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any
of them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of
all of them, may convene the general meeting in the same manner, as
nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may be convened by the
Board, provided that any meeting so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of three months from the date of deposit of the requisition,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of
the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

Putting forward proposals at Shareholders’ meetings

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to move new resolution
at general meetings under the Articles of Association of the Company.
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the Company
to convene a general meeting following the procedures set out in the
preceding paragraph.

Making enquires to the Board

Shareholders may make enquires to the Board in writing to the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Unit D3, 8/F, TML
Tower, No. 3 Hoi Shing Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
TERERHRE (K)

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS HEBEREXXH

There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents during HZ-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HIFE  &Q
the year ended 31 December 2018. AERERXHREZSY -

On behalf of the Board REEZE

CHING Chi Fai E

Chairman BEE

Hong Kong, 27 March 2019 B —T-hF=ZA=++tH
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
AVR R GRS

e
pwec

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
MING FAI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Ming Fai International Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on
pages 63 to 164, which comprise:

the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2018;
o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,;
and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a
summary of significant accounting policies.
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Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BYRAMBRSE (&)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter
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Provision for impairment of trade receivables

Refer to Notes 3(a)(iv), 4 and 12 to the consolidated financial
statements for the related disclosures.

As at 31 December 2018, the provision for impairment of trade
receivables amounted to HK$23.0 million, of which HK$22.1 million
was attributable to customers located in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC™). Provision is made for lifetime expected credit losses on
trade receivables.

Customers located in the PRC generally have a slower settlement
pattern and may settle after the contractual credit period. Management
applied judgement in assessing the expected credit losses. Receivables
relating to customers with known financial difficulties or significant
doubt on collection of receivables are assessed individually for provision
for impairment allowance. Expected credit losses are also estimated
by grouping the remaining receivables based on the shared credit risk
characteristics and collectively assessed for the likelihood of recovery,
taking into account the nature of the customer, its geographical
location and its ageing category, and applying expected credit loss
rates to the respective gross carrying amounts of the receivables. The
expected credit loss rates are determined based on the historical credit
losses experienced of up to past 3 years and are adjusted to reflect
current and forward-looking information such as macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables.

We focused on this area due to the estimation and judgement involved
in determining the expected credit losses allowance of the trade
receivables.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BYRAMBRSE (&)

BMWETNAEEBRETSEE

We understood and validated the credit control procedures performed
by management, including its procedures on periodic review on
aged trade receivables and assessment on the expected credit losses
allowance of trade receivables. We tested on a sample basis, the
accuracy of ageing profile of trade receivables by checking to the
underlying sales invoices. We tested on sample basis, the subsequent
settlement of trade receivables against bank receipts. We obtained
management’s assessment on the expected credit losses allowance of
receivables. We corroborated and validated management’s assessment
based on the historical settlement pattern of up to past 3 years,
correspondence with the customers and market research regarding the
relevant forward-looking information such as macroeconomic factors
used in management’s assessment.

Based upon the above, we found that the estimation and judgement
made by management in respect of the expected credit losses
allowance and the collectability of trade receivables were supportable
by the available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BYRAMBRSE (&)

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BYRAMBRSE (&)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional #ERIE(E BB LR ETETHBES -
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We — (B T EXHE - R T EEEREE -
also: BAITT

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BYRAMBRSE (&)

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Tak Wai, Daniel.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

meEEEAER
As at 31 December R+=HA=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
k=3 THExT TAT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Goodwill EES 9a) 5,413 -
Land use rights T b5 AR 6 67,716 39,888
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENMERE 7 351,093 269,492
Investment property KA 8 14,005 14,289
Intangible assets mILEE 9(b) 2,598 1,886
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTISHE E 10 3,610 6,111
Other non-current assets HiIERs)EE 15 16,923 6,317
Investment in an associated company R—EBEAANEE 5,408 3,602
Investments in joint ventures REEREMNIRE 307 212
Other financial assets at IR SR AN BE 2
amortised cost HthemEE 14 371 38,383
Total non-current assets RBEELTE 467,444 380,180
Current assets REBEE
Inventories 75 11 243,817 261,695
Other current assets Hireh&E 15 35,030 26,348
Tax recoverable ol Y B 75 18 4,100 1,722
Other financial assets RS BR 2
at amortised cost HismiEE 14 11,863 23,278
Amounts due from joint ventures B & 3R IE 265 59
Amount due from an associated company & Y — &1 Bt & A &) FIE 13 3,125 8,138
Trade and bills receivables EWE SETRRERE 12 666,408 580,573
Short-term bank deposits RERERITIF K 16 521 78
Cash and cash equivalents He MRS EEIER 17 272,478 367,759
Total current assets REBEEHARE 1,237,607 1,269,650
Total assets EEHE 1,705,051 1,649,830
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners ERREEA
of the Company Bz
Share capital R AR 20 7,282 7,265
Reserves s 1,078,847 1,045,149
Final dividend proposed EEmARBRE 32 36,428 36,350
1,122,557 1,088,764
Non-controlling interests JEVE AR 25 (32,027) (28,324)
Total equity BRER 1,090,530 1,060,440
HEEERZERERA —E-NEER 63



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
REEEBEBR(E)
As at 31 December W+ A=+—H

2018 2017
—E2-—N\F —E—+4F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Kt FET FAT
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities kREBEE
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEMESREE 10 7,460 2,792
Other non-current payables HMIE RS EN HIE 23 2,879 -
__Totalnon-current liabilities  JFndhfes 10339 2,792 |
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade payables ERE SRR 22 226,516 230,530
Accruals and other payables FExt B R R E M EN R IE 23 299,246 289,969
Current income tax liabilities BIERFTE i B E 28,164 29,335
Bank borrowings Ri7EE 21 34,588 22,170
Loans from non-controlling interests KEFERER 2 ER 24 15,492 14,492
Dividends payable FENT AR B 176 102
__Total current liabilites  nB&fes 604,182 586,598
Total liabilities BERE 614,521 589,390
Total equity and liabilities HERREE 1,705,051 1,649,830

FEIEIAAMGEEHBRENR T NEF=
AZTtAREZTSRHES AU TEERR
RE e

The consolidated financial statements on page 63 to 164 were approved
by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2019 and were signed on its
behalf.

CHING Chi Fai CHING Tsun Wah
BEE BhE
Director Director

- EFE

48

The notes on pages 69 to 164 are an integral part of these consolidated  £569F 1648 K sF A1t S 454 B 15 R 2= &
financial statements. e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
e mElE

For the year ended 31 December

HET-_A=1T—HILFE

2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—tF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt FHExT FHEIT
Revenue WA 5 2,052,708 1,863,559
Cost of sales & AR 25 (1,587,373) (1,421,565)
Gross profit EF 465,335 441,994
Distribution costs SN =1 N 25 (231,181) (207,567)
Administrative expenses THHAX 25 (122,817) (97,434)
Net reversal of impairment losses on TREEREBE
financial assets by EIpE - 25 11,351 214
Other income H A 26 6,056 4,474
Operating profit Fed—Pi=g 128,744 141,681
Finance income B A 28 877 834
Finance costs B 75 A AR 28 (1,206) (613)
Share of profit of an associated company [ {5 — 15k 4 A &34 7] 1,948 1,344
Share of profit of a joint venture Eih—ReEtEaT 95 2
Fair value gain on an investment property —IB#% &Y% 2 N E K 8 473 -
Profit before income tax KREtFr BB AR F 130,931 143,248
Income tax expenses FiisBiFAX 30 (34,850) (34,408)
Profit for the year FERF 96,081 108,840
Other comprehensive (loss)/income Hi2mE (BR) Wi
Item that may be subsequently HEEEF 7 HEE
reclassified to profit or loss Ba s EHH
Currency translation differences HiEihE (12,358) 19,385
Total comprehensive income FE2M
for the year W48 %8 83,723 128,225
Profit/(loss) attributable to: EAEER (5E) :
Owners of the Company NANBER A 100,249 108,923
Non-controlling interests SRR HE A (4,168) (83)
96,081 108,840
Total comprehensive income/(loss) EEEmEkE S (E8)
attributable to: BE:
Owners of the Company KABEE A 87,426 128,879
Non-controlling interests eI R (3,703) (654)
83,723 128,225
Earnings per share attributable to KATEEA
owners of the Company EiEERAR
(expressed in HK cents) (AL FIR)
Basic HK 31(@) 13.9 15.1
Diluted e 31(b) 13.8 14.9

The notes on pages 69 to 164 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

i A EE DL 454
e E

Bk

For the year ended 31 December

BEF—A=t+—AILEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

NG 2PN
Shares held
for the share Non-
Share  award scheme Share Other controlling Total
capital (the "Scheme”) premium reserves Sub-total interests equity
LR 2B
(R
BA  mERG  KhEE  EtEE PN FEERES BiER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TR THT THT THT THTL AT
Balance at R=B-t%F
1 January 2017 -A-Az&8% 7,238 (1,038) 606,905 389,601 1,002,706 (27,670) 975,036
Comprehensive income/(loss) 2 W3/ (F18)
Profitiloss) for the year rEEEH/ (BB) - - - 108923 108,923 (83) 108,840
Other comprehensive Bt 2ENE/
income/(loss) (B8
Currency translation differences  S##HE 2% - - - 19,956 19,956 (571) 19,385
Total comprehensive 2EKE/ (F8R)
income/(loss) i - - - 128,879 128,879 (654) 128,225
Exercise of share options T RRE
(Notes 19(a) (Hizt196) 27 - 1633 - 1,660 - 1,660
Purchase of shares for the FEEBA RS
Scheme (Notes 19(b)) (Biz190) - (1,051) - - (1,051) - (1,051)
Final dividend relating to ZT-REEZ
2016 RERE - - - (28930)  (28,930) - (28,930)
Interim dividend relating to ZEtEEY
2017 RERE - - - (14,500) (14,500) - (14,500)
Balance at RZE-t&E+=A
31 December 2017 St-Az&ES 7,265 (2,089) 608,538 475,050 1,088,764 (28,324) 1,060,440

The notes on pages 69 to 164 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)

REeRE2F X (E)
For the year ended 31 December #HE+Z—A=+—HLLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ADRHER AR
Shares held Non-
Share for the Share Other controlling Total
capital Scheme  premium reserves  Sub-total interests equity
mhat &l

Bx REZRG  BHeE  EtRe Mt FERER B
HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
TR TR TiEn TiEn TR TER TR

Balance at RZB-N\E

1 January 2018 -B-Az&4% 7,265 (2,089) 608,538 475,050 1,088,764 (28,324) 1,060,440
Comprehensive income/(loss) ~ 2EW&E/ (F8)
Profit/(loss) for the year REERH/ (BE) - - - 100,249 100,249 (4,168) 96,081
Other comprehensive Hth2E (58) /

(loss)/income g
Currency translation differences ~ S¥HEZE - - - (12,823)  (12,823) 465 (12,358)
Total comprehensive 2EKE/ (F8)

income/(loss) aE - - - 87,426 87,426 (3,703) 83,723
Exercise of share options TR ERE

(Note 19(a)) (Hi##196) 17 - 1,010 - 1,027 - 1,027
Purchase of shares for the FEtEBAZRA

Scheme (Note 19(b) (H#190) - (3,962) - - (3,962) - (3,962)
Final dividend relating to “E-HEEIRERE

2017 (Note 32) (Hr#32) - - - (36,2060  (36,206) - (36,206)
Interim dividend relating to “E-\EEZTHRE

2018 (Note 32) (Hi#32) - - - (14492) (14,492 - (14,492)
Balance at RZB-NE

31 December 2018 TZA=tT-Hz&H 7,282 (6,051) 609,548 511,778 1,122,557 (32,027) 1,090,530

The notes on pages 69 to 164 are an integral part of these consolidated — £569F 1645 BIMI 3 A itk Z 454 B & R &
financial statements. B2 o
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CONSOUDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
an\ EE:%/)HJE%

For the year ended 31 December HE+-—A=+—HLFE

2018 2017
—E-)N\F —ZT—+F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
k=3 FET T
Cash flows from operating activities RETHHNRERE
Cash generated from operations KEERSNIES 33(a) 109,718 130,394
Interest paid BEAFE (1,206) (613)
Income tax paid BT (35,024) (23,595)
Net cash generated from operating RETHFRE
activities REFH 73,488 106,186
Cash flows from investing activities RETZEBNRERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BB A% B E L& E (73,798) (26,987)
Purchase of land use rights BE A L 3 A i (33,029) (105)
Purchase of intangible assets BARVEE (637) (1,566)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWME - WEREHE
plant and equipment P18 ®UE 33(b) 468 498
Payments for business combination, %j‘w\{ﬁﬂ’]ﬁﬁ - HIBR
net of cash acquired BlENRS 35 (16,290) (38,252)
Interest received 2R & 877 834
Short-term bank deposits with maturity over 3 %I 83 H 838 = 1 A &9 %2 H8
months RITHEK (460) -
Dividend received from an associated B2 — R E R R]
company Az B 286 180
Net cash used in investing activities RETEHFTARSERE (122,583) (65,398)
Cash flows from financing activities RETHNRERE
Purchase of shares for the Scheme METBIB A ZIRH (3,962) (1,051)
Proceeds from bank borrowings ﬁEfﬂ%%Fﬁ%?ﬂ 33(c) 50,000 30,000
Repayments of bank borrowings EEIRITIEE 33(c) (37,582) (34,074)
Short-term bank deposit with maturity FIHHBA =AM
over 3 months EHIRITIE R - (10)
Dividends paid to Company's shareholders 215 2 A BIAX B A% & (50,624) (188,003)
Proceeds from loans from non-controlling REFERERE N
interests Fri8 IR 33(c) 1,000 900
Proceeds from exercise of share options 1718 E%Hﬂéﬁ FriS 18 19(a) 1,027 1,660
Net cash used in financing activities REETHRARSERE (40,141) (190,578)
Net decrease in cash and cash ReRBELZEEER
equivalents B FEE (89,236) (149,790)
Cash and cash equivalents at the FYMNEE ERE
beginning of the year £EIAE 367,759 508,616
Exchange (loss)/gain on cash and RekAeEFEEREE D
cash equivalents BE X (E5HR) Was (6,045) 8,933
Cash and cash equivalents at the end FRORERES
of the year £EEA 17 272,478 367,759

The notes on pages 69 to 164 are an integral part of these consolidated ~ $69% 164 & B/ i & Itk 43 & B 1§ R A
financial statements. B 4 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is an
investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in manufacturing and trading of hospitality supplies products and
trading of operating supplies and equipment.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
29 May 2007 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law (2007 Revision) of the Cayman lIslands. Its
registered address is at the offices of M&C Corporate Services
Limited, P.O. Box 309GT, Ugland House, South Church Street,
George Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands.

The Company has its primary listing on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of units of Hong Kong dollars (“HK$'000"), unless otherwise stated.
These consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the board of directors (the “Board”) on 27 March 2019.

Significant events and transactions

Acquisition of 100% equity interest in Teng Xun Limited
and land and properties in Cambodia

On 21 October 2017, the Group entered into agreements in relation
to the acquisition of 100% equity interest in Teng Xun Limited, a
private limited company registered under the law of Cambodia,
and land and properties, at a consideration of approximately US
dollars (“US$") 7,017,000 (equivalent to approximately Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$") 54,977,000 at transaction date). Before acquisition,
Teng Xun Limited was principally engaged in the manufacturing
of handbags business on the acquired land and properties. This
transaction was completed on 27 April 2018 (Note 35).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MBHEEME (R)

AN

iy

=

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial statements
are for the Group consisting of the Company and its subsidiaries.

(a)

(b)

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by
the revaluation of an investment property, which is carried at
fair value.

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

A number of new or amended standards became applicable
for the current reporting period. Of these, the following are
relevant to the Group's consolidated financial statements.

. HKFRS 9 Financial instruments, and

o HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

The other standards did not have material impact on
the Group’s accounting policies and did not require any
adjustments.

The below explains the impact of adoption of HKFRS 9
Financial instruments (“HKFRS 9”) and HKFRS 15 Revenue
from contracts with customers (“HKFRS 15”) on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(b) New and amended standards adopted by the

Group (Continued)

The adoption of HKFRS 15 did not have any material impact
on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 9 replaces the provisions of HKAS 39 that relate to the
recognition, classification and measurement of financial assets
and financial liabilities, derecognition of financial instruments,
impairment of financial assets and hedge accounting.

The adoption of HKFRS 9 from 1 January 2018 resulted in
changes in accounting policies as described below.

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments

On 1 January 2018 (the date of initial application of HKFRS
9), the Group’s management has assessed which business
models apply to the financial assets held by the Group and
has classified its financial instruments into the appropriate
HKFRS 9 categories.

The financial assets held by the Group mainly represent debt
instruments previously classified as loans and receivables
and measured at amortised cost, meet the conditions for
classification at amortised cost under HKFRS 9. Accordingly,
there is no impact on the Group’s accounting for financial
assets.

There is no impact on the Group’s accounting for financial
liabilities, as the new requirements only affect the accounting
for financial liabilities that are designated at fair value through
profit or loss and the Group does not have any such liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MBHEEME (R)

=
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(b) New and amended standards adopted by the
Group (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has the following types of financial assets that are
subject to HKFRS 9's new expected credit loss model:

trade and bills receivables, amount due from an
associated company and amounts due from joint
ventures

other financial assets carried at amortised cost

The Group was required to revise its impairment methodology
under HKFRS 9 for each of these classes of assets.

While short-term bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents
are also subject to the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9,
the identified impairment loss was immaterial.

(1)

Trade and bills receivables, amount due from an
associated company and amounts due from joint
ventures

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide
for expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9,
which permits the use of the lifetime expected credit
losses for all trade and bills receivables, amount
due from an associated company and amounts due
from joint ventures. To measure the expected credit
losses, receivables relating to customers with known
financial difficulties or significant doubt on collection
of receivables are assessed individually for provision for
impairment allowance.

Expected credit losses are also estimated by grouping
the remaining receivables based on the shared credit
risk characteristics and collectively assessed for the
likelihood of recovery, taking into account the nature of
the customer, its geographical location and its ageing
category and applying expected credit loss rates to the
respective gross carrying amounts of the receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(b) New and amended standards adopted by the
Group (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(1)

(ii)

Trade and bills receivables, amount due from an
associated company and amounts due from joint
ventures (Continued)

The expected credit loss rates are determined based
on the historical credit losses experienced of up to
past 3 years and are adjusted to reflect current and
forward-looking information such as macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle
the receivables.

Management has closely monitored the credit qualities
and the collectability of the trade and bills receivables,
amount due from an associated company and amounts
due from joint ventures. The adoption of the simplified
expected credit loss approach under HKFRS 9 has not
resulted in any additional impairment loss for trade
and bills receivables, amount due from an associated
company and amounts due from joint ventures as at 1
January 2018.

Other financial assets carried at amortised cost

For other financial assets carried at amortised cost,
including deposits and other receivables in the
consolidated balance sheet, the expected credit loss
is based on the 12-month expected credit loss. It is
the portion of lifetime expected credit loss that results
from default events on a financial instrument that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
However, when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since origination, the allowance will be
based on the lifetime expected credit loss. Management
has closely monitored the credit qualities and the
collectability of the other financial assets at amortised
cost and considers that the expected credit loss is
immaterial.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AN
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MEmEAME (F)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(c) New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted

HKFRS 16, “Leases”

HKFRS 16 Leases (“HKFRS 16") was issued in January 2016.
It will result in almost all leases being recognised on the
consolidated balance sheet by lessees, as the distinction
between operating and finance leases is removed. Under the
new standard, an asset (the right to use the leased item) and
a financial liability to pay rentals are recognised. The only

exceptions are short-term and low-value leases.

The accounting for lessors will not significantly change.

The standard will affect primarily the accounting for Group’s
operating leases. As at the balance sheet date, the Group
has non-cancellable operating lease commitments of
approximately HK$11,316,000, see Note 34(b). However,
the Group has not yet determined to what extent these
commitments will result in the recognition of an asset and
a liability for future payments and how this will affect the

Group's profit and classification of cash flows.

Some of the commitments may be covered by the exception
for short-term and low-value leases and some commitments
may relate to arrangements that will not qualify as leases

under HKFRS 16.

The Group will apply the standard from its mandatory
adoption date of 1 January 2019. The Group intends to
apply the simplified transition approach and will not restate
comparative amounts for the year prior to first adoption.
Right-of-use assets for property leases will be measured on
transition as if the new rules had always been applied. All
other right-of-use assets will be measured at the amount of
the lease liability on adoption (adjusted for any prepaid or

accrued lease expenses).

There are no other standards and interpretations that are
not yet effective that would be expected to have a material

impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting

(1)

(ii)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries
are fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from
the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group (refer
to Note 2(e)).

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between Group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated
balance sheet respectively.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control or joint control. This
is generally the case where the Group holds between
20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity method
of accounting (see (iv) below), after initially being
recognised at cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBREME (E)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

(ifi)  Joint arrangements

Under HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements, investments
in joint arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures. The classification depends
on the contractual rights and obligations of each
investor, rather than the legal structure of the joint
arrangement. The Group has investments in joint
ventures.

Joint ventures

Investments in joint ventures are accounted for using
the equity method (see (iv) below), after initially being
recognised at cost in the consolidated balance sheet.

(iv) Equity accounting

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in
profit or loss, and the Group’s share of movements in
other comprehensive income of the investee in other
comprehensive income. Dividends received or receivable
from associates and joint ventures are recognised as a
reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted
investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity,
including any other unsecured long-term receivables, the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated
to the extent of the Group's interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity
accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

(iv) Equity accounting (Continued)

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments
is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy

described in Note 2(n).

(v)  Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A
change in ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the controlling and
non-controlling interests to reflect their relative interests
in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount
of the adjustment to non-controlling interests and
any consideration paid or received is recognised in a
separate reserve within equity attributable to owners of

the Group.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of control,
joint control or significant influence, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value
with the change in carrying amount recognised in
profit or loss. This fair value becomes the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting
for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture
or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect
of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This
may mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/

permitted by applicable HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an
associate is reduced but joint control or significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where

appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBREME (E)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHBEHMEm
POLICIES (Continued)

(e) XBAH

(e) Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations, regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

° fair values of the assets transferred;

o liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired
business;

o equity interests issued by the Group;

o fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement; and

o fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with limited
exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable
assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
The excess of the
° consideration transferred,;

o amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired
entity; and

° acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquired entity
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Business combinations (Continued)

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair
value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired,
the difference is recognised directly in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase.

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a
financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability are
subsequently re-measured to fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair
value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising from
such re-measurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker,
who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the Board that makes strategic decisions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBREME (E)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(h) Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in HK$, which is the
Company’s functional and the Group’s presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions or valuation where
items are re-measured.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

- assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

- income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated at
the dates of the transactions); and

- all resulting currency translation differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

(h) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(i)  Group companies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate. Currency translation differences arising are

recognised in other comprehensive income.

(iv) Disposal of foreign operation and partial

disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a disposal
involving loss of joint control over a joint venture that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of significant influence over an associate that includes
a foreign operation), all of the currency translation
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company

are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result
in the Group losing control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, the proportionate share
of accumulated currency translation differences are
re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals
(that is, reductions in the Group’s ownership interest
in associates or joint ventures that do not result in the
Group losing significant influence or joint control) the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange

difference is reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBREME (E)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income during
the financial year in which they are incurred.

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences
amortisation from the time when the land interest becomes
available for its intended use and is amortised on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Depreciation for buildings is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate cost over its estimated useful lives of 20
years.

Depreciation for other property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost
over their estimated useful lives, at the following rates per
annum:

Leasehold improvements  Shorter of 10 years or lease period

Plant and machinery 10% - 33%

Motor vehicles 20%
Furniture and fixtures 33%
Computer equipment 33%

The assets’ residual value and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

()

(k)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount and are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment under construction or pending installation, and is
stated at cost less impairment losses. Cost comprises direct
costs of construction including borrowing costs attributable
to the construction during the period of construction. No
provision for depreciation is made on construction in progress
until such time as the relevant assets are completed and ready
for intended use.

Land use rights

Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Cost represents up-front
prepayments made for the rights to use the land for periods
varying from 20 to 50 years.

Amortisation of land use rights is expensed in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease or when there is impairment,
the impairment is expensed in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Investment property

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both and is not occupied by the Group, is
classified as investment property.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including
related transaction costs. After initial recognition, investment
property is carried at fair value, representing open market
value determined annually by external valuer. Fair value is
based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any
difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific
asset. If this information is not available, the Group uses
alternative valuation methods such as recent prices from less
active markets or discounted cash flow projections. These
valuations are reviewed annually by external valuer with
changes in fair values recorded in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.

RERMBHERRME (F)

2 EBEASTHEHBE@

()

()

(k)

RAERRERER QA

ME - BERRE @

HEMNRBIZEHRIAEKREE
MERET TN E2E KRS

RHER

ERIREEZTRBFLRZ
ME - BB R&E - THIR R AR
MEBEIE RABFEET
BAAR(BERIRETHRERE
TRENEERR) -REBEET
TRA{EREE B&A - TE8ME
BETIRRERITERE -

1 it 5E FH A

= 3 {5 FR A Ty 9% AR AR B 51 8
MR BB B ER - B 2N $8 5L A
Tz #F (AER20ES50F T~ &
i At 2 FBAS FOE o

TR BERNERRNIRE
MERFAEEEERIHE X
EHERBER RETENEAS
2HEHKERHE

REME

AEBLSESRYHESREHR
BEARFELAMEREBMNHAEL
BEHRZOEIBRREME -

BREMEVTHEKATE B
EHRBEZR KA - £ T HER
% REVERRAFEINE B
SNEBAEMESFRMEE L ART
B AFENREEDSEBRRK
B YEARERLENEELZ
HE - EHMREREHAE -
HEZMBHITEER  A5HE
A ZREMATHRENE W2
ZEREEMBELMS RO Z
ERFMRBESREFRNE - Uk
FEESFHIMNE[ERMINAR
A MARQFEZEI AL
BEEKERA -

—T-N\FFH 83



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MBHEEME (R)

=
)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

)

Investment property (Continued)

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed, any
difference resulting between the carrying amount and the
fair value of this item at the date of transfer is recognised
in equity as a revaluation of property, plant and equipment.
However, if a fair value gain reverses a previous impairment
loss, the gain is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as described in Note 2(e). Goodwill
is not amortised but it is tested for impairment annually,
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on the
disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill
relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units (“CGUs") for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to
those CGUs or groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit
from the business combination in which the goodwill arose.
The units or groups of units are identified at the lowest level
at which goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes, being the operating segments (Note 5).

(m) Intangible assets

(i) Trademarks, investment in club debentures and
software licences
Separately acquired trademarks, investment in club
debentures and software licences are shown at
historical cost. These assets have a finite useful life and
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses.

Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate the cost of trademarks, investment in club
debentures and software licences over their estimated
useful lives of 5 to 10 years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Intangible assets (Continued)

(i)  Brandname and operating licence
Brandname and operating licence acquired in a
business combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. These assets have a finite useful life
and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses.

Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method over the expected life of the brand name and
operating licence of 2 to 10 years.

(n) Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that they might be impaired. Other assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest level for which
there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups
of assets (CGUs). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at each balance sheet date.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries, an
associated company or joint ventures is required upon
receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary,
associated company or joint venture in the period the dividend
is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in the
separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwvill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBREME (E)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(o) Financial assets

(i)

(ii)

Classification

From 1 January 2018, the Group classifies its financial
assets in the following measurement categories:

- those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income, or
through profit or loss); and

- those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this will
depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to account
for the equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI").

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets
changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(o) Financial assets (Continued)

(ili)  Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL"), transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial asset carried
at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There
are three measurement categories to classify the debt
instruments:

(1)  Amortised cost
Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss. Impairment
losses are presented as separate line item in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBREME (E)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(o) Financial assets (Continued)

(ili)  Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

@)

Fair value through other comprehensive income

Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows and for selling the financial assets,
where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured
at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount
are taken through other comprehensive income,
except for the recognition of impairment gains
or losses, interest income and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised in profit or
loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income using
the effective interest rate method. Impairment
expenses are presented as separate line item in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Fair value through profit or loss

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or
loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at FVPL is recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which it arises.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(o) Financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

v)

Impairment

From 1 January 2018, the Group assesses on a forward
looking basis the expected credit losses associated
with its debt instruments carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade and bills receivables, amount due from an
associated company and amounts due from joint
ventures, the Group applies the simplified approach
permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime
losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables.

Accounting policies applied until 31 December
2017

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively, but has
elected not to restate comparative information. As a
result, the comparative information provided continues
to be accounted for in accordance with the Group’s
previous accounting policy.

Until 31 December 2017, the Group's financial assets
are loans and receivables. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired. Management determines the classification at
initial recognition.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement at initial recognition did not change
on adoption of HKFRS 9, see description above. Loans
and receivables are initially recognised at fair values
plus transaction costs and are subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBREME (E)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(o) Financial assets (Continued)

(v) Accounting policies applied until 31 December
2017 (Continued)

Impairment

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated.

Assets carried at amortised cost

For loans and receivables, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced through the use of an allowance account, and
the amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. When a receivable
is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
accounts for the receivables.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in
the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the previously
recognised impairment loss is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

(a)

(r)

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the consolidated balance sheet when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Company or the counterparty.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is assigned to individual items of inventory on the
basis of weighted average method. The cost of finished goods
and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour,
other direct costs and related production overheads based on
normal operating capacity.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
and distribution costs necessary to make the sale.

Trade, bills and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course
of business. If collection of trade, bills and other receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle
of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets.
If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are recognised
at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables with the
objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less provision for impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MBHEEME (R)

=
)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

(s)

(t)

(u)

Trade, bills and other receivables (Continued)

When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account for trade receivables.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits
held at call with banks with original maturities of three
months or less.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables represent liabilities for goods or services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year which
are unpaid. Trade and other payable are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they
are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are unsecured, recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair values, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value
is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee
is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(u) Borrowings (Continued)

(v)

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred
to another party and the consideration paid, including
any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in profit or loss as other income or finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability
for at least twelve months after the balance sheet date.

Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date in the countries where the Company and its
subsidiaries, associated company and joint ventures operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate
on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AN

iy

2

=

MEmEAME (F)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(v) Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset
is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, an
associated company and joint ventures, except for deferred
tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(v) Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(w)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Employee benefits

(1)

(ir)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave and long-service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.

Bonus entitlements

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised
as a liability when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of services rendered
by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation
can be made.

Liabilities for bonus are expected to be settled within
twelve months and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when they are settled.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBREME (E)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii)  Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the Group pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity. The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if the fund
does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the
benefits relating to employee service in the current and
prior periods. A defined benefit plan is a pension plan
that is not a defined contribution plan.

Typically defined benefit plans define an amount
of pension benefit that an employee will receive on
retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors
such as age, years of service and compensation.

The Group companies in the PRC participate in defined
contribution retirement benefit plans organised by
relevant government authorities for its employees
in the PRC and contribute to these plans based on
certain percentage of the salaries of the employees
on a monthly basis, up to a maximum fixed monetary
amount, as stipulated by the relevant government
authorities.

The government authorities undertake to assume the
retirement benefit obligations payable to all existing and
future retired employees under these plans.

The group companies in Hong Kong participate in a
mandatory provident fund scheme (“MPF Scheme”) for
its employees in Hong Kong. MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution scheme in accordance with the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance. Under the rules
of MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are
required to contribute 5% of the employees’ salaries,
up to a maximum of HK$1,500 per employee per
month. The assets of MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the group companies in an independently
administered fund.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Employee benefits (Continued)

(iv) Termination benefits

v)

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement
date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary
redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits when it is demonstrably
committed to a termination when the entity has a
detailed formal plan to terminate the employment of
current employee without possibility of withdrawal.
In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy, the termination benefits are measured
based on the number of employees expected to accept
the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12 months
after balance sheet date are discounted to their present
value.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan, under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Company. The fair value
of the employee services received in exchange for the
grant of the options is recognised as an expense. The
total amount to be expensed is determined by reference
to the fair value of the options granted:

3 including any market performance conditions (for
example, an entity’s share price);

3 excluding the impact of any service and
non-market performance vesting conditions
(for example, profitability, sales growth targets
and remaining an employee of the entity over a
specified time period); and

o including the impact of any non-vesting conditions
(for example, the requirement for employees to
save).

2

RERMBHERRME (F)

BEASTHERE @

(w) EERR (@)

(iv)

v)

RAERRERER QA

REBL1E )
HMBENEEEEELTRR
KRB R AN SR E K ERE A 3
18 B & X 8 BRRER AR Bl
FRAMEFNZ/A - A&
| 7E L 3B B DA T A A A HE AR
BEBRA  REBE—BFHAN
EAFERIABEENE
PR B BE r AT BE » 1R
BB B FERERAIB
ST BEREN RIEE S
BEXZHNNESABGE -
EHEERRERI12EA 28
Xtz RMEMBRRRE-

KR 17 3 1T 89 B =
FAEBEREURELERE
U2 Est 8 &
It FREREXEER ZR
BERRRAZEERAT
R (BRE) 2RE-REER
PR A AR 75 A HR HRUR B R
BZAFEIIERBFE
BT ZBBILI2EMRE
HERE A EEE

o  BEEMWSRIEMI
(n—FHEBHNE)

o TEEEMRSEKFE
MERINEE G
TEPIMBABEER
5 E HiE 2 & RE
HEERBERRER
REE) R

o  BIREMIERB KM

TE(WREERZ
RE) °

—T-N\FFH 9/



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBREME (E)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Employee benefits (Continued)

(v)

Share-based compensation (Continued)
Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are
expected to vest. The total expense is recognised over
the vesting period, which is the period over which all
of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.
At the end of each reporting period, the entity revises
its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to vest based on the non-marketing vesting
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to
original estimates, if any, in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues
new shares. The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share
capital (nominal value) and share premium when the
options are exercised.

When the options are cancelled during vesting periods,
the Group recognises immediately the amount that
otherwise would have been recognised for services
received over the remainder of the vesting period.

When the options are modified, the Group will include
the incremental fair value granted in the measurement
of the amount recognised for services received as
consideration for the equity instruments granted. The
incremental fair value granted is the difference between
the fair value of the modified equity instrument and that
of the original equity instrument, both estimated as at
the date of the modification. If the modification occurs
during the vesting period, the incremental fair value
granted is included in the measurement of the amount
recognised for services received over the period from
the modification date until the date when the modified
equity instruments vest, in addition to the amount
based on the grant date fair value of the original equity
instruments, which is recognised over the remainder of
the original vesting period. If the modification occurs
after vesting date, the incremental fair value granted is
recognised immediately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RERMBHERRME (F)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EARSTBERBME@
POLICIES (Continued)
(w) Employee benefits (Continued) (w) EEEF 80
(v)  Share-based compensation (Continued) V) URG TR E (&)
The grant by the Company of options over its equity PN =Y NS E T (=]
instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings BRRIEEFMBEERA
in the Group is treated as a capital contribution. The Iﬁzﬁﬁ %Eﬁ?‘réﬁ$ﬁ
fair value of employee services received, measured by B-FEGEEREZA
reference to the grant date fair value, is recognised EN2ERLEBHRAZA 3?13
over the vesting period as an increase to investment in FE-REBRHAERAE
subsidiary undertakings, with a corresponding credit to MEMBRARES 2KE
equity in the parent entity accounts. WHHEF AR AR EEIRE
WM °
(x) Provisions (x) #81%
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present BERAE WA EMmE
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; SRBZEAENEEEE A&
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required EHRERTEABTEZEBERLE
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably REBSEEAEGBTRER -
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating AE&EBEAUTSEREE -
losses.
Where there are a number of similar obligations, the WERETHEUEE EEE@E
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is BEEME BRI H /A ge % -
determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. TiIEZERETREFANBEE -
A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow B A — R BRI 2 F ] —EIE
with respect to any one item included in the same class of BERERMLENAIEETK
obligations may be small. AR o
Provisions are measured at the present value of the BEREEENREHREET
management'’s best estimates of the expenditures required REEEMENRAIRENRE
to settle the present obligation of the end of the reporting BErEt 2 - AUNEERAENT
period. The discount rate used to determine the present value 5 R MR IR T 35 XY R R (B
is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of BRI A R B ERE R R
the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. AT b 28 o [ BSF ] 7 20 1 22 A 2
The increase in the provision due to passage of time is BB MER AN ERXE -

recognised as interest expense.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBREME (E)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(y) Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable for the sale of goods and services in the ordinary
course of the Group's activities. Revenue is shown net of
value-added tax, returns, rebates and discounts and after
eliminated sales within the Group.

(i)

(ii)

(i)

Sales of goods

Sales are recognised when control of the products has
transferred, being when the products are delivered to
the customers, the customer has accepted the products,
the collection of the related consideration is probable
and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect
the customer’s acceptance of the products.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered
as this is the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time is
required before the payment is due.

A contract liability is recognised when a customer
pays consideration, or is contractually required to pay
consideration and the amount is already due, before
the Group recognises the related revenue. The Group
recognised its contract liabilities under accruals and
other payables as receipt in advance from customers in
the consolidated balance sheet.

Rental income

Rental income from investment properties is recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease
term.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(z) Government grant

Grant from the government is recognised at its fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grant relating to costs is deferred and recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
over the period necessary to match it with the costs that it is
intended to compensate.

Government grant relating to property, plant and equipment
and service concession arrangement is included in accruals
and other payables and is credited to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis
over the expected lives of the related assets.

(aa) Lease (as the lessee for operating leases)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentive received from the lessor) are expensed in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

(ab) Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where the Company’s shares are acquired from the market
by the Scheme (Note 19(b)), the total consideration of shares
acquired from the market (including any directly attributable
incremental costs) is presented as shares held for the Scheme
and deducted from total equity.

(ac) Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors, where
appropriate.

RERMBHERRME (F)

2 EBEASTHHEHBE@

(2)

BT %8 BY

TR B 8 B T 4 I 4R 4B S B
9 B0 B AN 5 B 48 7 4 T Y
(R A T EWR -

B N A B R AT 18 B i R T -
I 7 1 7% S5 7 B B EL R A 8 AR AR
ETEEMFHEAANESZSER
Wk KRR ©

B X BE MR A RIRB R
AT BB MR T/ B 5 AT
AAERREMENRE XRE
BERNEREENTRMFHAG
NI

(aa) HE (FREEMHEENHAA

A)

HAARBHESEE 2 KD E R
kEkezHENEREERE -
2EHE 2 HE (FNERWEREEA
RH{ZEMEER) EHOFHA
REREIEFRAZHKERAX
5

(ab) AR Z<

EBRBOBAER BITHBRN
BEERESNEIMRANERES AT
E1F R P15 SRR A BR B 1R H0RL ©

i AR 4% =t & (B RE19(0)) AT 45 £
WiE A RB (D - R LTI
BROMNBEAE (BREIAEER
FEAE I INARA) TI 25 RN 8T
FAZBD YA -

(ac) RE 2K

RAERRERER QA

[ AR B RER 2R Z I SRS
BARAKRRLES (HEMR) #
B EANE B R AR Z 8%
BRTPERSEE -

—T-N\FF% 107



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBREME (E)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(a) Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk
and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall
risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group's financial performance.

(i)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s foreign currency transactions are mainly
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”), HK$ and USS$.
The majority of assets and liabilities are denominated
in RMB, HK$ and US$, and there are no significant
assets and liabilities denominated in other currencies.
The Group is subject to foreign exchange rate risk
arising from future commercial transactions and
recognised assets and liabilities which are denominated
in a currency other than HK$ or RMB, which are the
functional currencies of the major operating companies
within the Group.

As HK$ is pegged to US$, management believes that
the exchange rate risk for translations between HK$ and
US$ do not have a material impact to the Group. The
exchange rate of RMB to HK$ is subject to the rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by
the PRC government.

This currency exposure is managed primarily through
sourcing raw materials denominated in the same
currency. The Group has not considered it appropriate
to substantially hedge against currency risks through
forward exchange contracts upon consideration of the
currency risk involved and the cost of obtaining such
cover.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(1)

(ii)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2018, if HK$ had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against the RMB, with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been approximately HK$2,296,000,
higher or lower (for the year ended 31 December
2017: post-tax profit for the year would have been
approximately HK$2,545,000, higher or lower),
mainly as a result of foreign exchange differences on
translation of RMB denominated net payables.

At 31 December 2018, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against the US$, with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been approximately HK$1,389,000,
higher or lower (for the year ended 31 December
2017: post-tax profit for the year would have been
approximately HK$9,176,000, higher or lower),
mainly as a result of foreign exchange differences on
translation of US$ denominated net payables.

Interest rate risk

The Group has cash balances placed with reputable
banks and financial institutions, which generate interest
income for the Group.

Bank borrowings at variable rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest-rate risk. Bank borrowings at fixed
rates expose the Group to fair value interest-rate risk.
Details of the Group’s bank borrowings have been
disclosed in Note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.
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REBERIZERERA

Bt 7 [ B (Rl & (@)

S FE 2] B (48)

RZFE-—NEFE+ZA=+—
H WBITHARKER
F/B5% - i Fr A H b &
FAE  AFEMRBIE R
1) 145 358 00 =k 4> £92,296,000
/%E(ﬁi—? ’t¢+—
B=+—HLEEE FERK
i 18 A i 12 A0 =k m > Y
2,545,000 70) * EEH R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MBHEEME (R)

AN

iy

3

=

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group analyses its interest rate exposure on a
dynamic basis. Various scenarios are simulated taking
into consideration of refinancing, renewal of existing
positions, and alternative financing. Based on these
scenarios, the Group calculates the impact on profit of
a defined interest rate shift. For each simulation, the
same interest rate shift is used. The scenarios are run
only for assets and liabilities that represent the major
interest-bearing positions.

Based on the simulations performed, the impact
on post-tax profit of a 100 basis-point shift would
be a maximum increase/decrease of approximately
HK$440,000 for the year ended 31 December 2018
(for the year ended 31 December 2017 approximately
HK$940,000) mainly as a result of change in interest
rates on short-term bank deposits and bank borrowings.

Price risk

The Group is not exposed to equity securities price risk
and commodity price risk.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents,
short-term bank deposits, amount due from an
associated company, amounts due from joint ventures,
as well as credit exposures to trade and bills receivables
and other financial assets at amortised cost.

(1) Risk management

Credit risk is managed on a group basis.
Management has policies in place to monitor the
exposures to these credit risks on an ongoing
basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBERME (F)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MHEREE@m
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) EfisREEEZE @
(iv) Credit risk (Continued) (v) 1EE/EE &)
(1) Risk management (Continued) (1) BB & (&)
The Group has put in place policies to ensure that 7N @ B H E K R
sales of products are made to customers with an REMBEETEER
appropriate credit history and the Group performs BRIFZEP MAK
periodic credit evaluations of its customers based KEZEFRBREINE
on their past repayment patterns, latest business TR ZEEBERE
developments and other factors. The Group's REMEAZmEHAR
historical experience in collection of trade and bills FHTEHEAMNE -
receivables falls within the recorded allowances. ANEEEWEEWE
SEREEBIEZ
BAELBITEBHE
LB 2 EE -
The table below shows the credit limit and TR AKEHAD
balance of the five major debtors at 31 December AMR—ZE—NF+=
2018 and 31 December 2017. A=Z+—HBRkR=Z—+t

F+-_A=+—HZ
EERBER AR -

As at 31 December

R+t=A=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F T F

Counterparty Credit limit Utilised Credit limit Utilised
HES FERE 2R EERE 2R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FET FHET FHET

A 38,000 35,522 38,000 36,409
B 35,000 34,835 32,000 28,539
C 36,000 34,670 26,000 24,041
D 34,000 32,367 32,000 26,549
E 30,000 27,466 - -
F 26,000 24,253 26,000 25,255
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBREME (E)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iv)  Credit risk (Continued)

)

Impairment of financial assets

Trade and bills receivables, amount due from
an associated company and amounts due from
joint ventures for sales of goods of the Group
are subject to the expected credit loss model.
While cash and cash equivalents, short-term
bank deposits and other financial assets at
amortised cost are also subject to the impairment
requirements of HKFRS 9, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial.

Trade and bills receivables, amount due from an
associated company and amounts due from joint
ventures

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for
trade and bills receivables, amount due from an
associated company and amounts due from joint
ventures. The Group measures the expected credit
losses on a combination of both individual and
collective basis.

Measurement of expected credit loss on individual
basis

The receivables relating to customers with known
financial difficulties or with significant doubt on
collection of receivables are assessed individually
for provision for impairment allowance. As at
31 December 2018, the balance of loss allowance
in respect of individually assessed receivables was
approximately HK$22,274,000 (31 December
2017: approximately HK$38,735,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iv) Credit risk (Continued)

2)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Measurement of expected credit loss on individual
basis (Continued)

The following table presents the gross carrying
amount and the loss allowance in respect

iy

RERMBHERRME (F)

3 H¥EARERE@m

(a)

B &R b H & (@)

(v) 1ZE/RE &)

)

& FEEE (&)
WS E R E B
= EfEE ()
TREIR=ZZE—N\EF
+t-A=+—BRk=

of the individually assessed receivables as at E—+&+—-A=+—
31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017: H & BT fE U R 1B 2
AREAE K EERE
As at 31 December
Rt=A=+—~H
2018 2017
—B-N\F “B—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FET
Gross carrying amount REBE 22,274 38,735
Loss allowance EiE R (22,274) (38,735)
Net carrying amount REFE - -

Measurement of expected credit loss on collective
basis

Expected credit losses are also estimated by
grouping the remaining receivables based on
shared credit risk characteristics and collectively
assessed for the likelihood of recovery, taking
into account the nature of the customer, its
geographical location and its ageing category,
and applying expected credit loss rates to
the respective gross carrying amounts of the
receivables.

The expected credit loss rates are determined
based on the historical credit losses experienced
of up to past 3 years and are adjusted to reflect
current and forward-looking information such as
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the
customers to settle the receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBREME (E)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iv)  Credit risk (Continued)

)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement of expected credit loss on collective
basis (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the balance of loss
allowance in respect of these collectively assessed
receivables was approximately HK$721,000 based
on expected credit loss rates up to 5.97% applied
on different groupings.

Impairment and reversal of impairment losses
on receivables are presented as “net reversal
of impairment losses on financial assets” in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
When a receivable is uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account for receivables.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

Cash and cash equivalents, short-term bank
deposits and other financial assets at amortised
cost

There is no loss allowance for cash and cash
equivalents, short-term bank deposits and
other financial assets at amortised cost as at 31
December 2018 (31 December 2017: same).
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3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iv)  Credit risk (Continued)

)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Previous accounting policy for impairment of
trade and bills receivables, amount due from an
associated company and amounts due from joint
ventures

In the prior year, the impairment of trade and
bills receivables, amount due from an associated
company and amounts due from joint ventures
was assessed based on the incurred loss model.
An allowance for impairment of trade and bills
receivables, amount due from an associated
company and amounts due from joint ventures
is established when there is objective evidence
that the Group will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original terms of
the receivables. Significant financial difficulties of
the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or financial reorganisation and default
or delinquency in payments are considered
indication that the receivable is impaired.

When a receivable is uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account for trade
receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The impact of transition to HKFRS 9 on 1 January
2018 (date of adoption of HKFRS 9) as a result
of applying the expected credit risk model was
immaterial.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBREME (E)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

v)

Liquidity risk
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash, the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities. The
Group aims to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping
sufficient cash.

As at 31 December 2018, the cash and cash equivalents
of the Group approximated HK$272,478,000 (31
December 2017: approximately HK$367,759,000).

The following tables analyse the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the balance sheet to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the tables
are the contractual undiscounted cash flows and the
earliest date the Group can be required to pay. Balances
due within 12 months equal their carrying balances, as
the impact of discounting is not significant.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RERMBHERRME (F)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 MBEREE@
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) EfisREEEZE @
Liquidity risk (Continued) V) REEzZEE &)
Specifically, as at 31 December 2018, for bank Emm - R-ZE—N\F+_H8
borrowings which contained repayment on demand =+—H HEEAEKEX
clauses which could be exercised at the banks’ sole EEGR(FTHRITEZER
discretion, the balances had been reclassified as current BRETER) MRITEEM
liabilities. The analysis shows the cash outflow based E ORBEENOEARY
on earliest period in which the Group can be required BE - ZOMRASETA s
to pay, that is if the lender were to invoke their W E R R & F HIfE (B
unconditional rights to call the loans with immediate B A E BN o] H 4 gt
effect. RN ATFE) BRI ©
Between  Between
On  Less than 1and 2and Over
Demand 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
1228 2E5F
REREER 1R/ | 28 SFELE o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT THET THL THEL THL FAT
At 31 December RZZB-N\F
2018 +t=A=t-H
Bank borrowings RITEE
~ principal portion A=) 34,588 - - - - 34,588
Trade payables ENESER - 226516 - - - 226516
Accruals and EXERR
other payables H i EAIE - 166,771 - - - 166,771
Loans from non-controlling %8 B 3R %
interests ZEH 15,492 - - - - 15,492
Dividends payable ERRE - 176 - - - 176
At 31 December RZB-+F
2017 +-A=t-AH
Bank borrowings BRITEE
— principal portion A=) 22,170 - - - - 22,170
Trade payables ENEFED - 230,530 - - - 230,530
Accruals and EXERR
other payables e IR - 157,300 - - - 157,300
Loans from non-controlling 7€ & 3Rk 2%
interests ZEW 14,492 - - - - 14,492
Dividends payable ERRE - 102 - - - 102
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBREME (E)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 MBEREE@
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) BIEKREZE@
(v)  Liquidity risk (Continued) ) REEZERE &)
The table below analyses the bank borrowings of the THREBRBERRESH
Group into relevant maturity groupings based on the FH AT AR TAE
remaining period at the end of the reporting period [ > 5 2 A8 [ 21| B 78 Bl Y 4R
to the contractual maturity date without taking into TEE  BERUESRIRE
consideration the effect of repayment on demand KEBERTRBZE - WA e
clauses, while interest payments are computed using NFAEHFIEFTE -
contractual rates.
Between  Between
Within 1and 2 and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
1825 2855
3 28 28 S5FLE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT AT AT THT THT
As at 31 December RZZ-N\F
2018 tZA=t-8H
Bank borrowings: RITEE -
~ principal portion - K #n 7,985 7,706 14,808 4,089 34,588
— interest portion -FEHH 1,036 754 967 107 2,864
9,021 8,460 15,775 4,196 37,452
As at 31 December R-Z—t&
2017 +tZA=+-8
Bank borrowings: RITEE:
— principal portion -A&H5H 3,921 3,976 10,168 4,105 22,170
~ interest portion —F 8D 585 473 1,010 [N 2,179
4,506 4,449 11,178 4,216 24,349
(b) Capital risk management (b) E<EEREMR

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets
to reduce debt.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b) Capital risk management (Continued)

(9]

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as bank borrowings divided by total
equity. Management considers a gearing ratio of not more
than 30% as reasonable.

3

RERMBHERRME (F)

B 7% L B B BB ()
(b) E£EERK @)

AEEBFBEABEL RERE
BN o I RIZBIBITE BRI
BERTE - EEEBRAAEN
BEARBBEREETEN30% °

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—8~
2018 2017
—B-N\F —tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FH&IT
Bank borrowings RITEE 34,588 22,170
Total equity B 1,090,530 1,060,440
Gearing ratio BARBMELLE 3.2% 2.1%

Surplus cash held by the operating entities over the
requirement for working capital management are transferred
to interest bearing current accounts and time deposits, with
appropriate maturities to manage its overall liquidity position.
As at 31 December 2018, the Group maintains cash and cash
equivalents of approximately HK$272,478,000 (31 December
2017: approximately HK$367,759,000) that are expected to
be readily available to meet the cash outflows of its financial
liabilities.

Fair value estimation

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities including cash and cash equivalents, short-term bank
deposits, trade and bills receivables, other financial assets at
amortised cost, amount due from an associated company,
amounts due from joint ventures, bank borrowings, trade
payables, dividends payable, accruals and other payables and
loans from non-controlling interests, approximate their fair
values due to their short maturities.

(9]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBREME (E)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c) Fair value estimation (Continued)

See Note 8 for disclosures of investment property that is

measured at fair value at 31 December 2018.

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are

addressed below.

Impairment of trade and bills receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of trade and bills
receivables based on assumption about risk of default and expected
credit loss rate (Note 3(a)(iv)). The Group uses judgement in making
these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculations based on the Group’s past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward-looking estimates at the balance sheet

date.

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
Board. The Board reviews the Group’s internal reports in order
to assess performance and allocate resources. The Board has

determined the operating segments based on these reports.

The Group is principally engaged in manufacturing and trading of
hospitality supplies products and trading of operating supplies and
equipment. From a geographical perspective, the Board assesses
the performance based on the Group’s revenue by geographical

location in which the customer is located.

114 Ming Fai International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

B 7% L B B BB ()

() AFEMFT@
EBRA-_Z—N\F+-A=+—
ARATESEZREMENR
B LM ES -

EREH AT R A

fAEt R A TE RS - W ERBELR
EEMAR(BEREBBERTHER
BEZAREMHZIRN) MEL -

AEBMERRKAEL AT RER - REE
 BUELZEFEAREBLBERT

TERBRFEZEERABREIERFH
BB A RRREINWT -

B E SRR RERE

AEERBEWENRR MIEREEE
B ENBRMEWE SRR REET
R E (M E3a)y) - AEBRELZ
FRFLIEFTERENBABRIRRE
FHE - YARKBEBERLSR RET
MRRAEE B AT (5 RER -

TEER

EXZEeRTIBEERRE BEFERN
AEBENANBRES AT ERERIEER
R BEERRENMERERTLLDR -

AEETIZNERERFHEBEH-ER
BEMNUREELERRMERE - 1t
BEREAK EFQTHEERSKE
REBE)E P AU I 2 WA REE ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Due to continual development of the Group, management has
reviewed its internal organisational structure to align more closely
with the Group’s strategic decision and market dynamics to
better serve customers. Among others, Operating Supplies and
Equipment (“OS&E") Business has been separately disclosed in
the management reporting. The Group has adopted the new
reporting format effective for the year ended 31 December 2018
which includes (i) Hospitality Supplies Business (formerly known as
“Manufacturing and distribution business of amenity products”);
(i) OS&E Business; and (iii) Others. The comparative segment
information has been restated to reflect the current organisational
structure.

The Board assesses the performance of the operating segments
based on a measure of profit before income tax, share of profit of
an associated company, share of profit of a joint venture and fair
value gain on an investment property.

Information provided to the Board is measured in a manner
consistent with that of the consolidated financial statements.

Sales between segments are carried out at normal commercial
terms. Depreciation and amortisation charges are apportioned with
reference to respective segment revenue from external customers.
Assets and liabilities of the Group are allocated by reference to the
principal markets in which the Group operates.

RERMBHERRME (F)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBERRME (F)

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 S2¥ER@m
Geographical ith &
Hospitality Supplies Business 0S&E Business Others
B EmER EERRRREER Htty
Other
Asia
Pacific
North Hong regions  Others Others
America  Europe The PRC Kong Australia (Notei) (Noteii) Sub-total ThePRC (Noteiii) Sub-total Total
Hitr
TABE Hity Hity
b3 BOM HE B BN () (HEi) Nt HE (K it EH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TEr TFEx TEx TEx TFEx TEx TEx TFEx TFEx TEx TFEx TExZ TEx
Year ended BE-Z-N\F
31 December +=A=1-H
2018 tEE
Segment revenue ik LON 411,280 240,488 633,828 280,898 48,614 277,368 3,947 1,896,423 104,547 49,763 154,310 5,908 2,056,641
Inter-segment revenue 3 $BRIUA - - (349) - - - - (349) - - - (439)  (3,933)
Revenue from external B HMBEFH)
customers ON 411,280 240,488 630,334 280,898 48,614 277,368 3,947 1,892,929 104,547 49,763 154,310 5,469 2,052,708
Eamings before interest, K& FI 8~ F8
taxes, depreciation, E BHR
amortisation and —BREMEZ
fair value gain on an ATERRR
investment property AR 39,860 19,824 50,391 22,139 1,998 23,984 727 158,923 5,447 3,350 8,797 5561 173,281
Depreciation ik (8,859) (5180) (13,577) (6,052) (1,047)  (5,975) (85) (40,775) (24) (11) (35) (122)  (40,932)
Amortisation B (747)  (@37) (1.143)  (509) (88)  (504) (7 (3.439) - - - (170)  (3,605)
Finance income BHKA - - 388 472 - 13 1 874 - - - 3 877
Finance costs BBRA - - (13)  (1,154) - (1) - (1178) - - - (28)  (1,206)
Segment profit before K&t FT SRR
income tax A EEF 30,254 14,207 36,046 14,896 863 17,507 636 114,409 5,423 3,339 8,762 5244 128,415
Share of profit of an [EfE—F
associated kNG
company i 1,948
Share of profit of ElE-HaELE
ajoint venture et 95
Fair value gain on an —ERENEL
investment property AEERE
(Note 8) (Hizt8) 41
Income tax expenses RCTdi5 (34,850)
Profit for the year REERM 96,081
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBERME (F)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

5 o¥ER®

Geographical (Continued) & ()
Hospitality Supplies Business OS&E Business Others
B T EEAMRREER Hit
Other Inter-
Hong locations Hong  Other segment
ThePRC  Kong Australia Cambodia (Noteiv) Sub-total ThePRC  Kong locations Sub-total elimination Total
Hitrih B 288
HE 0 BN RER (HEv) Nt HE A HiE Pt e act
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
TEx TFEx TEx TEx TFExz TEx TEx TEx TEx TEx TFEx TEx TiEx
Asat RZZB-NF
31December 2018 ~ +=A=+-AH
Total assets BEEE 1,009,945 615,478 1,224 116295 48,342 1,791,284 50,122 13,817 378 64317 36,636 (187,186) 1,705,051
Include: B
Investment in an kAo
associated company ARMEE - 5408 - - - 5408 - - - - - - 5408
Investments in joint RAEEREN
ventures RE - 307 - - - 307 - - - - - - 307
Additions to FRBEE
non-current AE (BT
assets (other than FEHEE
deferred income BRoN)
tax assets) 68,145 2,539 8 104,349 384 175,425 46 - - 46 28 - 175,499
Total liabilities afEeE (421,194) (141,258) (18) (12,639) (43,721) (618,830) (12,547)  (2,327) - (14,874) (168,003) 187,186 (614,521)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBREME (E)

5

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

5 SEER@m

Geographical (Continued) i & ()
Hospitality Supplies Business OS&E Business Others
BEEERES 2ERARRREZS Hith
Other
Asia Pacific
North Hong regions  Others Others
America  Europe  The PRC Kong Australia  (Notei)  (Notei) Sub-total ThePRC  (Noteii) Sub-total Total
Hit
SRR Hith Hith
1% B H BR BN (W) (B NGt RE (Hitii) N it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
Thxr TEr TEr TExz TEx THrT TAx TEx TErT TEx TEx TET  TEx
Year ended BE-2—+F
31 December +-A=+-H
2017 IHFE
Segment revenue AEBA 399,705 193,923 529,651 287,774 49,871 266,955 3,309 1,731,188 73,640 43,628 117,268 16,334 1,864,790
Inter-segment revenue 2 HARUA - - (863) - - - - (863) - - - (368)  (1,231)
Revenue from external K ESMNBEFH)
customers WA 399,705 193,923 528,788 287,774 49,871 266,955 3309 1,730,325 73,640 43628 117,268 15966 1,863,559
Eamings before interest, K& FI &« 8 -
taxes, depreciationand ~ #7% i 447
amortisation R BF 47323 21,139 35346 26,537 4080 37411 191 172,027 1,584 5,037 6,621 2,393 181,041
Depreciation nE (8275 (4,015 (10,948)  (5958)  (1,033)  (5,527) (69) (35,825) (250) (148) (398) (514)  (36,737)
Amortisation B (528) (256) (699) (380) (66) (353) @  (2,286) - - - (337)  (2,623)
Finance income B - - 366 462 - 3 - 831 - - - 3 834
Finance cost BRI = = @) (657 = (29) = (613) - - - - (613)
Segment profit before Rzt /SR AT
income tax AEEF 38520 16,868 24,038 20,104 2,981 31,505 118 134,134 1,334 4,889 6,223 1,545 141,902
Share of profit of an EfE—F
associated 4-UN|
company A 1,344
Share of profit of EE-MaEt%E
ajoint venture bkl 2
Income tax expenses FEHEY (34,408)
Profit for the year REZHEF 108,840
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBERME (F)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 ZEER@m
Geographical (Continued) b & ()
Hospitality Supplies Business OS&E Business Other
BERERZH SERGRAEER it
Other Inter-
Hong locations Hong Other segment
The PRC Kong ~ Australia ~ (Noteiv)  Sub-total  The PRC Kong locations  Sub-total elimination Total
EfpipE PEH
i & ' (W) it il B HftRE Nt i i

HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
Térn TEr TEr TEr TRz TEr ThRr TExr TEr TEr  TEn  TEn

Asat RZE—+E+ZA
31 December 2017 =+-fA
Total assets BElE 965229 680,234 1,484 99311 1746258 4399 11,115 77 55191 56136 (207,755 1,649,830
Include: B
Investment in an R
associated company AR E - 3,602 - - 3,602 = = = = - - 3,602
Investments in joint REELE
ventures %A - 22 - - 12 - - - - = = 212
Additions to non-current FRBAE
assets (other than RE (BT
deferred income FEREE
tax assets) Bh) 24,509 2915 - 39,459 66,383 7 - - 7 20 - 66,910
Total labltes ARER (395348) (139639 (160) (51814 (S86%1)  (9311) (2199 - (11508) (198678) 207,755  (589,3%0)
Notes: Biat -
Other Asia Pacific regions mainly include the Macau Special Administrative i H b gs Kb [E = 2 6 4 FP BB P9 R R AT
Region of the PRC, Japan, United Arab Emirates, Thailand, the Philippines, HE - BA - i alEessER - TEH -
Malaysia, Singapore, Dubai and India. JEAERE - ERPEDE - FHn  HmEREE o
ii Others mainly include South Africa, Morocco and Algeria. i Hit = E@IEFIE - RS RMER L FE o
iii Others mainly include the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the iii BEMIrEEEFREEERNTHRE &
PRC, the Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC and the United BRI RITTHRE RER o
States of America.
iv Other locations mainly include Singapore and India. iv Hbih® FERFEFMBE RENE -
Additions to non-current assets comprise additions to goodwill, ERBEEABOEAEENE  £HiE
land use rights, property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, A Mm% BEAEE BEFEE -
other non-current assets and other non-current financial assets at HMIErnEERIE#HEKAYEE 2
amortised cost including additions due to business combination HEmIEnHeomEE  BHEREBLE G
(2017: additions to non-current assets comprise additions to MABE (ZE—tF  ERBDEERE
land use rights, property, plant and equipment, intangible assets BERNETHERE ME - BELE
other non-current assets and other non-current financial assets at B EEEE - HthIEREEE RiRE
amortised cost). AR B 3EmEI S BEE)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBREME (E)

6 LAND USE RIGHTS

The Group's interests in land use rights represent prepaid operating

6

+ b {5 P4

REBRN L E Rz s TaN

lease payments. MHER -
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT FAT
At 1 January n—A—H 39,888 38,006
Additions NE 33,029 105
Amortisation (Note 25) #8E (17225) (1,970) (1,059)
Exchange differences P& =58 (3,231) 2,836
At 31 December Rt+-—A=+—H 67,716 39,888

Amortisation of the Group’s land use rights has been charged to
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as follows:

AEETHEREZHHCREGAEE

WasRIMER - BT -

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—+F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Cost of sales 5 KA 236 230
Distribution costs AR 752 732
Administrative expenses TEAX 982 97
1,970 1,059

As at 31 December 2018, certain land use rights of aggregate net
carrying value of approximately HK$1,673,000 (31 December 2017:
HK$1,820,000) were pledged as securities for banking facility of
the Group (Note 21).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBERME (F)

7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7 YVE -BERRE
Furniture
Leasehold Motor and  Computer  Plantand
Land  Buildings improvements vehicles fixtures equipment  machinery Total
HENE KR BER

i BT L A RE EREE B8 &
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
AL TER  TET TR TR TEn TER  TER

At 1 January R=B-tf&

2017 -A-H
Cost KA 35,208 181,900 90,732 214177 17475 17,748 182,706 549,946
Accumulated depreciation 2iHE

and impairment RAE 2,118 (66,59 (62,490) (15,664)  (14,543)  (16,469) (106,906) (284,782)
Net book amount REFE 33,090 115,308 28,242 8,513 2,932 1,279 75800 265,164
Year ended BE-E-tf

31 December 2017 TZR=T-RALEE
Opening net book amount FNEEFE 33,090 115308 28,242 8,513 2,932 12719 75800 265,164
Additions ANE - 368 3,704 2,569 553 1,582 18,211 26,987
Disposals (Note 33(b)) & (HE330) - - - (128) ) @ (386) (520)
Depreciation (Note 25 wEMH5) (1,085  (9477) (6,443) (3063 (1,064) (1,025  (14580)  (36,737)
Exchange differences ERER - 6,479 1,749 240 225 1 5794 14,598
Closing net book amount EXRAFE 32,005 112,678 21252 8,131 2,644 1,943 84,839 269,492
At 31 December RZB-t%

2017 TZA=1-H
Cost WA 35208 193,849 99,385 25277 19,173 20342 210,118 603,352
Accumulated depreciation ZitHE

and impairment KA (3.203)  (81,171) (72,133) (17,146)  (16,529)  (18,399) (125,279) (333,860)
Net book amount REFE 32,005 112,678 21,252 8,131 2,644 1,943 84,839 269,492
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBERRME (F)

7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 7 #1%¥ - HERR®E @

Furniture
Leasehold Motor and  Computer Plantand Construction
land  Buildings improvements  vehicles  fixtures equipment machinery in progress Total
BENZ BRE HER
14 g7 £6 RE KE  EHRE BE  HRIR st

HKS'000  HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
tén  TER Tén fEx TRR  fEx  TER Tén  TEn

Year ended BE-E-N\E
31 December tzA=t-8
2018 LEE
Opening net book amount ENEEFE 32,005 112,678 21,252 8,131 2,644 1,943 84,839 - 269,492
Additions RE 1345 4471 8,016 2,231 860 512 26,051 21,216 16,774
Additions due to business RERAHMAE
combination (Note 35) (it3s) 1042 3489 - m 45 - 1540 - 57,919
Disposals (Note 33(b) L& (Hit330) - - - (14) @ B) (981) - (1,000)
Depreciation (Note 25) WEWi#25) (1,285 (10,869) (6,809)  (3,164) (890) 011)  (17,004) - (40,932)
Exchange differences EiZE (29 (4505) (1,286) (132) (139) (19 (495 (25) (11,160)
Closing netbook amount ~ EXRAFE 43458 136,671 2,113 7,380 3218 1462 99480 27,251 351,093
At 31 December R=B-NE
2018 tZAz1-H
Cost A 52946 224,441 101,945 25,044 19,687 19855 230,530 21,251 701,699
Accumulated depreciation  ZETE
and impairment Kt (4.488)  (87,770) (14772)  (17.664)  (16469)  (18393)  (131,050) - (350606)
Net book amount FEFE 48458 136,671 2,113 7380 3218 1,462 99,480 21,251 351,093
Depreciation of the Group’s property, plant and equipment has REFENME BEERERENITEDR
been charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive EEEWERME - FBOT :
income as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FA T
Cost of sales B4 AR 26,005 22,585
Distribution costs Fa = IR 4,033 4,482
Administrative expenses TR 2 10,894 9,670
40,932 36,737
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBERME (F)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 7 E -BERSE@

As at 31 December 2018, certain property, plant and equipment RZZE—N\FE+_A=+—"H &K
with aggregate net carrying value of approximately HK$62,111,000 5B 4962,111,0008 T (ZF — £ F
(31 December 2017: HK$67,154,000) were pledged as securities +=—H=+—8 :67,154,000/ 7t) Z
for banking facilities of the Group (Note 21). ETYWE BMENEKETNER  EA
REERITREE 2 BR (HFFE21) ©
INVESTMENT PROPERTY 8 REWZF
2018 2017
—E-)N\F —T—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
At 1 January n—A—H 14,289 13,285
Revaluation gain E g 473 -
Exchange differences E =R (757) 1,004
At 31 December Rt+—_A=+—H 14,005 14,289
The following amounts have been recognised in the consolidated UTHREERGEEE2EMRRER
statement of comprehensive income:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Rental income (Note 26) ME WA (Kz26) 310 278
Direct operating expenses arising from an REEAHESRAZ—IE
investment property that generates KEMEZEELERY
rental income (Note 25) (K1a£25) 50 48
(@) Independent valuation of the Group's investment property (@) AEBEKREWED HEERMFBH
was performed by the valuer, Asset Appraisal Limited, to EEETEBERMARARET
determine the fair value of the investment property as at 31 BUE UWETEREMERS
December 2018 and 2017. The following table analyses the Z-NEFER_ZE—tF+=A
investment property carried at fair value. =+—HBZAFE . TRIDEIZ

DB R Z R EMEFEDHT -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBREME (E)

J2 N =]

8 INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued)
(@)  (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy

8 REWMHEum

(a)

(&)

DFEER

Fair value measurements at
31 December 2018 using
R=ZF-—NF+=ZA=+—H

AF{E B
Quoted price Significant
in active other Significant
markets for observable unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
Description (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
i B8 HEEER HMEEH BEENAA
ERTWIENERE TREERARE BEGARE
(B—#) (B=4) (B=#)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT THET FHET
Recurring fair value EEMEANTE
measurements: =
Investment property WEYE - 14,005 -
Fair value measurements at
31 December 2017 using
RZE—+tF+=-_HA=+—8
NEBEFEMER
Quoted price Significant
in active other Significant
markets for observable unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
Description (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
&t B HRAEERE HMmEBEER BEEHAA
EETISHRE FIERBARE BREARE
(B—%&) (FE=#) (B=%)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET FHET
Recurring fair value LEMERFE
measurements: =
Investment property WEME - 14,289 -

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers
out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or
change in circumstances that caused the transfer. There were
no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.
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8

INVESTMENT PROPERTY (cContinued)

(a)

(Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RERMBHERRME (F)

8 KBEWHEwmw

(a)

Level 2 fair values of completed investment properties have
been generally derived using the sales comparison approach.
Sales prices of comparable properties in close proximity are
adjusted for differences in key attributes such as property
size. The most significant input into this valuation approach is

price per square foot.
Details of the investment property:

Address of investment property

REME it

(b)

Existing use
BAIAE

(&)

NEEEH @

ERIREMEZE-RATE
— MR LAY E L BUE B o #B3E AT
BHEMENNEEREREY ¥
HESTIBRENERTURE -
EEFEREZENG ASIEA
BEHRHER

BREMERZFS

Tenure

=R

Room 101, Chuntian Garden, No. 6,
Lane 999, Loushanguan Road,

Changning District, Shanghai City, the PRC

PR EETRERE LBAKINOE

31 December 2018: Rental
(31 December 2017: Rental)

—E-\E+-A=+—H:H#HE

65k EREE101E (Z2—tF+ZA
=t+—H:#H§g)
At 31 December 2018, the future aggregate minimum ()

lease receipts under non-cancellable operating lease of the
investment property not recognised in the consolidated
financial statements, which are receivable by the Group as

follows:

The property is held under
long term lease

NEDRERAEERSS

RZE-—NFE+A=+—8"
REBRBEAATEHREYRE
BHEZBRRARKEEERA
BB (ANEE M BHRRER) W
T

2018 2017

—E-N\E —E—+tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THERT TET

Within one year —FR 314 168
Later than one year but no later than 5 years  BR —FEETBR AE 183 -
497 168
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBREME (E)

9 GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS 9 HEREFEE
(a) Goodwiill () B8
On 27 April 2018, the Group acquired 100% of the equity RZE—N\NFEHA=-++H &
interest of Teng Xun Limited and land and properties in £ B U EETeng Xun LimitedZ 100%
Cambodia (Note 35). As a result of this acquisition, goodwill R ARfER R R RIFEZ L3 &
of approximately HK$5,371,000 was recognised in the Y% (B 5E35) © LB U EE %5 2R
consolidated financial statements during the year ended 31 Bz —_ZT—N&E+=-_A=+—H
December 2018. IEFEZHFEEVBREPERL

5,371,000/8 70 2 B & o

2018
—E-N\F
HK$'000
FHET
At 1 January R—H—H -
Addition due to business combination (Note 35) EEHBE MR E (H7:435) 5,371
Exchange differences e H =58 42
At 31 December R+-_A=+—H 5,413
Impairment test of goodwill A=Y
The relevant goodwill is allocated to the respective groups EHEEELIREERBEAER 2R S
of CGUs, which represent the lowest level within the Group ELEEMN BAEBEAFGARILE
at which the relevant goodwill is monitored for internal BmMEERREZKREKFE (PR
management purposes, and not larger than an operating R EL) o
segment.
As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s goodwill of R-EBE—N\F+-_A=+—8"
HK$5,413,000 is attributable to the operation in Cambodia. 2N £ [B]5,413,00078 7T 2 B2 Th 3R

BRIHRZRBEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RERMBHERRME (F)

9 GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 9 HEREFEE @

(a) Goodwill (Continued) (a)

Impairment test of goodwill (Continued)

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on
a value in use calculation. The calculation uses pre-tax cash
flow projection based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period. Thereafter, the cash
flows are extrapolated using the terminal growth rate not
exceeding the long-term average growth rate of the countries
in which the CGU operates.

BHE @
EEREA (&)

ReEERL Y RES AR
8 P BB R AR o M EH
HEERRNR S REYERE
I RS R A A
HECAFBENRERERT
BHRSELEEEFEAR
R HRENREERER

b

E_ [}
The key assumptions are as follow: FERKWOT :
2018
ZE-N\F
Pre-tax discount rate BrAR AT IR & 20.2%
Compound annual growth rate BAEFIRER 15.6%
Terminal growth rate IR & 3.0%

The recoverable amount calculated based on value in use
exceeded carrying value as at 31 December 2018. A decrease
in compound annual growth rate by 3.2% would remove the
remaining headroom.

BREEREEAESHOHTED
TRBAR-_ZT—-NF+H
=t+t—HAZKREE - BEAFHE
RERMD3.2% & HREHERD
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VRN

N

=

MEmEAME (F)

9 GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 9

(b) Intangible assets

EHEREFEE@

(b) BEEE

Investment
in club Software  Operating
Trademarks  debentures  Brandname licences licence Total
HE BREFRE RERE  RAETE TR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THT THT THT
At 1 January 2017 RZZ-t%-5-H
Cost KA 1,588 968 15,555 7,082 - 25,193
Accumulated amortisation and 258
impairment RfE (962) (968) (15,555) (5,856) - (23,341)
Net book amount ERFE 626 - - 1,226 - 1,852
Year ended BE-Z-tfE
31 December 2017 TZE=1-ALEE
Opening net book amount ENEEFE 626 - - 1,226 - 1852
Additions NE 20 - - 1,546 - 1,566
Amortisation (Note 25) Bt (Wi205) (179) - - (1,385) - (1,564)
Exchange differences ERER - - - 32 - R
Closing net book amount ERREFE 467 - - 1419 - 1,886
At 31 December RZB-tf
2017 tZA=t-H
Cost A 1,608 968 16,731 8,628 - 27,935
Accumulated amortisation and ZErEE
impairment TRfE (1,141) (968) (16,731) (7,209) - (26,049)
Net book amount REFE 467 - - 1419 - 1,886
Year ended BZ-3-N\E
31 December 2018 TZR=t-ALEE
Opening net book amount FOREEE 467 - - 1,419 - 1,886
Additions AE 3 - - 594 - 637
Addition due to business REBAHMAE
combination (Note 35) (Hi#35) - - - - 1,728 1,728
Amortisation (Note 25) B35 hH25) (185) - - (875) (575) (1,635)
Exchange differences ERER - - - (14) @ (18)
Closing net book amount EXREEE 325 - - 1124 1,149 2,598
At 31 December RZE-NE
2018 +ZA=1-H
Cost KA 1,651 968 - 9,222 1,728 13,569
Accumulated amortisation and ZEHEH
impairment RAfE (1,326) (968) - (8,098) (579) (10,971)
Net book amount RERE 325 - - 1,124 1,149 2,598
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBERME (F)

9 GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 9 HEFEE @)

(b) BEEE @)

AEEEVEENBHEERER
2EKERMGE - FHEET

(b) Intangible assets (Continued)

Amortisation of the Group’s intangible assets have been
charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\F ZE—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FATT
Cost of sales SHE R 575 -
Distribution costs 2 8H A AR 215 -
Administrative expenses ITERAX 845 1,564
1,635 1,564
10 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 10 EEFRE

BAAE AR BTN A BV R A
EENBHEAERE  MELHER
W Rl — R - Al KRBTSR
BEHEBEIREN - KHESB|OT

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes related to the
same fiscal authority. The offsetting amounts are as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T T
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTEME E 3,610 6,111
Deferred income tax liabilities BEFSHAaE (7,460) (2,792)
Deferred income tax (liabilities)/ EEFBR (AE)
assets, net BEFEE (3.850) 3,319

EEFBHRRS ZZEFHMT

The net movement on the deferred income tax account is as

follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET AT
At 1 January n—A—H 3,319 3,407
Additions due to business combination AEESHMAE

(Note 35) (#1#£35) (4,871) -

Recognised in the consolidated statement NEE2EmlERARER
of comprehensive income (Note 30) (B17#30) (2,175) (396)
Exchange differences fEH =% (123) 308
At 31 December Rt+—_A=+—H (3,850) 3,319
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBREME (E)

10 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 10

The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during
the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of
balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

EEFTSH @

TEBRF — B AR R E LR R
EREHNER  FRAREMEHREE
RAEZEEHMT

Deferred income tax liabilities EEFEBEE
Accelerated  Revaluation Additions Total
tax of an due to
depreciation  investment business
property  combination
—HRE ES S
MERERE MEER AHMAE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT TAT THET TAT
At 1 January 2017 i (902) (1,710) - (2,612)
Recognised in the consolidated REA2EHE
statement of comprehensive KRR AER
income (51) - - (51)
Exchange differences BE i =50 - (129) - (129)
At 31 December 2017 R-B-+t5+=A=1+-H (953) (1,839) - (2,792)
Additions due to business REBEHMAE
combination (Note 35) (Hf:235) - - (4,871) (4,871)
Recognised in the consolidated REGEAE2E
statement of comprehensive Wk AR
income 97 - - 97
Exchange differences fEHER - 9 10 106
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NE+=ZB=+—H (856) (1,743) (4,861) (7,460)
Deferred income tax assets EEFEHERE
Decelerated
tax
depreciation
WEBETE
HK$'000
FHET
At 1 January 2017 R=-ZF—+tFE—A—H 6,019
Recognised in the consolidated statement REra 2ElEE
of comprehensive income NHER (345)
Exchange differences ME W R 437
At 31 December 2017 R-ZB-—tH+-A=1+—H 6,111
Recognised in the consolidated statement RiEre2mERER
of comprehensive income N R (2,272)
Exchange differences ME W R (229)
At 31 December 2018 R=ZB-NF+=A=+—8 3,610
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

10 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

1"

Deferred income tax liabilities of approximately HK$12,228,000
as at 31 December 2018 (31 December 2017: approximately
HK$10,529,000) have not been recognised for the withholding
tax that would be payable on the remittance of earnings of
PRC subsidiaries. The related unremitted earnings totaled
approximately HK$244,552,000 at 31 December 2018
(31 December 2017: approximately HK$210,588,000), and the
Group does not intend to remit these unremitted earnings from the
relevant subsidiary to the Company in the foreseeable future.

10

RERMBHERRME (F)

IE 3L FT 18 8 ()

R—ZE—N&E+=-_A=+—H A&
& 37 2K Tt A B R BB A B A BE &R A
EAENRERECHEHAEEDN
12,228,000 L (ZE—tF+ = H
=+—H : #10,529,000/8T) - R=-F
—\F+=-—A=+—H HBEREHA
A& H£49244,552,0008 T (Z T —+4F
+=A=+—H :#9210,588,000/T)
R & B B2 P] B R 2R A5 2R & AR R Y
BRARNMLSERELBIIEHERRAR -

INVENTORIES 11 BE
2018 2017
—E-N\E —ZT—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Raw materials B E 100,184 107,518
Work in progress ERE 11,017 10,895
Finished goods RIRY oh 150,167 160,715
261,368 279,128
Less: Provision for obsolete inventories W REFERE (17,551) (17,433)
Inventories, net FEF5E 243,817 261,695

The cost of inventories included in cost of sales during the year
amounted to approximately HK$1,135,305,000 (for the year ended
31 December 2017: approximately HK$1,044,838,000).

Direct written off of and provision made for obsolete inventories
for the year ended 31 December 2018 amounted to approximately
HK$2,760,000 (2017: approximately HK$2,979,000) and
approximately HK$7,484,000 (2017: approximately HK$2,473,000)
respectively. These were recognised as an expense and included
in “cost of sales” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

RAERRERER QA

RERFGTABEBERK AN FEKARN
#431,135,305,0008 T (BHEZE =&
—+tF+-_A=+—"HLEFE: 4
1,044,838,000/ 7T) °

HE_ZTZ—N\FE+_-_A=t+—BIF
B BEEMEEMREFETIRNES
5 511492,760,0008 7T (ZF — £ 4F : 4
2,979,000/ 7t) M #97,484,0007% T (=
T — L4 : #92,473,0005 7T) ° It HHE
RAEME Wit AfGFE2EKEER T H
[EHERA] °

—T-N\FFH 131



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBERRME (F)

12 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 12 EWESRAREE

2018 2017

—E2-N\F —E—+F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FET

Trade receivables JEUE 5 BRI 684,716 616,689
Bills receivables JERZE & 4,687 2,619
689,403 619,308

Less: provision for impairment of receivables & : Ji& Uk 5% 18 )i (8 B4 4 (22,995) (38,735)
Trade and bills receivables, net JERE SRR R EEF5E 666,408 580,573

The credit period granted by the Group ranges from 15 days to 120 AEEMETHOEESRNFI158E1208 °

days.

Ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables by invoice date is as BWESERRZEFRREZ A HANKRER

follows: ST
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TFHE T FET
1-30 days 1£30H 399,708 322,842
31-60 days 31%260H 121,691 136,471
61-90 days 61%£90H 76,875 50,667
91-180 days 912 180H 67,633 62,853
Over 180 days 180H A £ 23,496 46,475
689,403 619,308
2018 2017
—g-N\F Bt
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT

Denominated in: BUATE®EIE :
- RMB —AR¥ 349,271 319,358
- US$ —%£7 257,422 226,290
— HK$ — BT 58,799 52,497
— Other currencies —HEmtEE 23,911 21,163
689,403 619,308
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

12 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

The fair value of trade and bills receivables, net are as follows:

RERMBHERRME (F)

12 ERESZRIAREE @)

UEZEFREBFENDFENDT

2018 2017

—E—N\EF —F—+F

HK$'000 HK$’'000

FET FET

Trade and bills receivables, net JEUNE SRR R EHFRR 666,408 580,573

As at 31 December 2018, trade and bills receivables of
approximately HK$22,995,000 (31 December 2017: approximately
HK$38,735,000) are impaired and have been provided for. See
Note 3(a)(iv) for information about how impairment losses are
calculated. Net impairment losses on trade and bills receivables
are presented as “net reversal of impairment losses on financial
assets” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously impaired and provided
for are credited in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. Receivables for which an impairment provision was
recognised are written off against the provision when there is no
expectation of recovering additional cash. As at 31 December 2018,
the individually impaired receivables mainly represent receivables of
approximately HK$22,086,000 (31 December 2017: approximately
HK$38,015,000) from PRC customers which have remained long
overdue and management considered the recoverability is remote.

As at 31 December 2018, trade and bills receivables of
approximately HK$236,680,000 (31 December 2017: approximately
HK$221,011,000) were past due but not impaired. These relate
to a number of customers for whom there is no recent history of
default. The ageing analysis of these trade receivables by due date
is as follows:

R-E—-NE+-_A=+—H EK=Z
SR F K EE 422,995,0008 ¢ (=
—t&F+=-A=+—H : #38,735,000%
J0) B IR RERELEE - BETER
EEEMNERB2EWE3GE) ) - BUKE
SERREBRZBREBEFERES

A2V AIEHEERBEEERRD
SFRE ] o BE1R IR Bl AL BT B R E I 5T IR B AR
MREGRALEEZEKER - HBEH
ER W EIFEINR S 0 B E BRI E B
MERFEBREETRHE RN
F+-—A=+—8 BARHRBRENE
WHRBEFEHEERTFREZFAHE AN
FRIE#22,086,0008 L (ZF —+F + =
BA=+—H : 438,015,000 7t) A & 12
[ 3R 5 0] el M E A o

MN-ZBE—-—NE+-_A=+—H 28
BrEBRENEREZERRZRLY
236,680,000 T (Z T — &+ = A
=+ —H :%221,011,000/8 7T) ° Itk &
HEAVERNLENZEEFEAE -
ZEPBELEEKE S RRARR DT
LUNNE

2018 2017

—EBE-—N\EF —E—+tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FAT

Up to 90 days 0B SHIA T 198,923 178,836
91 to 180 days 91%£180H 27,340 28,999
Over 180 days 180H M k£ 10,417 13,176
236,680 221,011
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBREME (E)

12 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

13

134 Ming Fai International Holdings Limited

Movements on the provision for impairment of trade and bills

12 ERESZRIAREE @)

FEWE 5 BR R R R R BB R0 B

receivables are as follows: AR
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
At 1 January n—A—H 38,735 51,529
Net reversal of provision of trade and bills FNEKE SRR

receivables recognised during the year REBHBEREITE (11,351) (214)

Write-off of provision for impairment of MEEEWE ZEFRZEDN
trade and bills receivables AR (2,931) (15,835)
Exchange differences &5 =% (1,458) 3,255
At 31 December R+-_A=+—H 22,995 38,735

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables have
been included in net reversal of impairment losses on financial
assets in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally written
off when there is no expectation of recovering additional cash.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date is
the fair values of trade and bills receivables disclosed above.

AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATED
COMPANY

The amount represents trade receivables from an associated
company. The carrying value of the amount approximates its fair
value. The amount is mainly denominated in HK$. The credit period
granted is 90 days. The ageing analysis of amount by invoice date is
as follows:

B BB & W R B ) AT 1R R MR FR E T
AFEEHARBERAZEREERERS
BEOFER SFABRBRPHOFE R

RIEEH & Y E B HNR & B isH -

REEENEREERRD EXHAKE
MEWE SRR REBENAFE -

13 B —EBE QAMIE

ZREBEE—EHEL

AIHE SRR °

ZHBAZEHEEELRFEERSE &K
BEZUETFE - B TFHEEHRO
H-REZHRAZREIFTET

2018 2017

—E-N\E —E—+F

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FAT

1-30 days 1%230H 3,103 3,006
31-60 days 31£60H 22 2,107
61-90 days 61£90H - 1,266
Over 90 days 90H A E - 1,759
3,125 8,138
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBERME (F)

14 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED

14 BMEHKA T Rz H 5 B

COST BE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Current; E :
Deposits & 2,774 2,650
Other receivables Hh U EIA 9,089 20,628
11,863 23,278
Non-current: FERE
Long-term deposits RERe 371 38,383
12,234 61,661
The carrying value of the amount approximates its fair value. ZH A REHEREARNTERS -
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FATT
Denominated in: RUATE®RIE
- RMB - AR 9,765 7,968
- HK$ -7 363 13,683
— Other currencies —HihEH 2,106 40,010
12,234 61,661

REREERERARAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RERBHERRME (F)

15 OTHER ASSETS HttEE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Current: S Ep -

Prepayments FE FIE 27,480 16,879
Others Efy 7,550 9,469
35,030 26,348

Non-current; JERE -
Prepayments (Note) T FRIE (B at) 16,923 6,317
51,953 32,665

Note: Kt -

Included in non-current prepayments, an amount of approximately HK$78,000
(31 December 2017: approximately HK$94,000) represents prepayment to
iBridge Technology (Shenzhen) Limited, a joint venture of the Group, arising from
purchases of information technology services. Such balances are unsecured in

nature, bear no interest and denominated in RMB.

16  SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS

As at 31 December 2018, short-term bank deposits of
approximately HK$521,000 (2017: approximately HK$78,000)
represented bank deposits of the Group with original maturity over
three months which are denominated in Indian Rupee.

16

@% ﬁ'tﬂ& i%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ$‘§@m%ﬁ %
BRI CRYD) R D Al 2 508 o %% 481
BEER - N ERAARKE -

BHERTEXR

R-ZBE—NE+-_A=+—8 SH#f
T1F 5K #521,0008 T (ZE—+EF - 4
78,000/ 70) AR 2| HI B B = & 5 LA
EELTEZAEERITTER

17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 17 BERBEEEER

2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cash at banks and on hand RITHEHERE 272,478 262,615

Short term bank deposits (original maturities %2 Hi$R 17 (REIEA A
of less than three months) LR=MA) - 105,144
272,478 367,759

Denominated in: RUTE®EIE

- US$ —-%T 89,007 56,463
- RMB - AR¥ 71,447 105,388
- HK$ —BTT 73,765 153,266
— Other currencies —HEmEtk 38,259 52,642
272,478 367,759
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18

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

The Group’s cash and bank balances and short-term bank
deposits as at 31 December 2018 amounted to approximately
HK$101,656,000 (31 December 2017: approximately
HK$108,237,000) and approximately HK$1,113,000 (31 December
2017: approximately HK$1,419,000) are deposited with banks in
the PRC and India respectively, where the remittance of funds is
subject to foreign exchange control.

17

RERMBHERRME (F)

HehkBEEEEEH @

R-_ZE—N\F+_A=+—8 K£E
ZHEESRBITEHAREHRITER
#9101,656,000 T (=T —EF + =
A=+—H:%108,237,0008 T) &
#91,113,0008 L (ZE—+t &+ = A
=+ —H8 :#1,419,000& 7T) » Al ER
REREEMRT BESERIINEE
Bl AR R ©

RESERVES 18 f#f&
Other reserves H i f#
Share-based
Merger Statutory ~ compensation Other Exchange Retained
reserve  reserve fund reserve reserves reserves eamings Total
EE WRAXEH
aEE ffee  HeRE  HtHEE  EiRE  RERA @3t
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TR TR TET TAT TAT
Balance at RZB-t%
1 January 2017 -B-HHER 61,510 33,728 23,660 5233 23,049 242,421 389,601
Comprehensive income 2EKE
Profit for the year REERR - - - - - 108,923 108,923
Other comprehensive income  E 2 E i
Currency translation differences  &HHE =% - - - - 19,956 - 19,956
Total comprehensive 2ENE
income ag - - - - 19,956 108,923 128,879
Final dividend relating “E-REEY
102016 AERE - - - - - (28,930) (28,930)
Interim dividend relating “TtEEY
t02017 PERE - - - - - (14,500) (14,500)
Exercise of share options TR RE - - (1,39) - - 13% -
Balance at RZE-tE+ZA
31 December 2017 =t-RMLE 61,510 33,728 22,264 5233 43,005 309,310 475,050

RAERRERER QA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RERBHERRME (F)

18 RESERVES (Continued)

18 fi#&fE @)

Other reserves (Continued) Hfth f# 8 (@)
Statutory  Share-based
Merger reserve compensation Other  Exchange Retained
reserve fund reserve reserves reserves  earnings Total
EE  HRAZAN
U] e Hefte  EtRE  ENEE  REEA @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAn TAn TAn TAR ThR ThARL TER
Balance at RZB-N\§
1 January 2018 -A-BiEe 61,510 33,728 22,264 5233 43,005 309,310 475,050
Comprehensive income 2EKE
Profit for the year REERF - - - - - 100,249 100,249
Other comprehensive loss ~ Efti2HEERE
Currency translation differences ~ E&FEZE - - - - (12,823) - (12,823)
Total comprehensive 2E (BB i
(loss)/income an - - - - (12,823) 100,249 87,426
Final dividend relating I
t0 2017 (Note 32) RERE (Writ32) - - - - - (36,206 (36,206)
Interim dividend relating “E-\EEZ
02018 (Note 32) nERE (Wi - - - - - (14492) (1449
Exercise of share options TERRE - - (820) - - 820 -
Balance at RZE-NE+ZA
31 December 2018 S+-AMEs 61,510 33728 21,444 5233 30,182 359,681 511,778
Representing: fR&:
Reserves B 475,350
Final dividend proposed BERIRE
(Note 32) (Wit32) 36,428
Balance at RZE-NE+ZA
31 December 2018 =t-Rfkt 511,778
Nature and purpose MR i
Merger reserve S EE

Merger reserve of the Group represents the difference between the
cost of investments in subsidiaries and nominal value of the share
capital and share premium of the subsidiaries in 2007 arising from
the application of merger accounting in consolidating the financial

information of the affected entities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

18 RESERVES (continued)

19

Other reserves (Continued)

Nature and purpose (Continued)
Statutory reserve fund

Under the relevant PRC laws and regulations, PRC companies
are required to allocate 10% of the companies’ net profit to the
fund until such fund reaches 50% of the companies’ registered
capital. The statutory reserve fund can be utilised, upon approval
by the relevant authorities, to offset against accumulated losses
or to increase registered capital of the companies, provided that
such fund is maintained at a minimum of 25% of the companies’
registered capital.

Share-based compensation reserve

The share-based compensation reserve is used to recognise the
grant date fair value of options issued to employees but not
exercised (Note 19).

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT COMPENSATION

(a) Share options

As at 31 December 2018, 10,378,000 share options (31
December 2017: 12,134,000 share options) were outstanding
and all of them are exercisable (as at 31 December 2017:
same). Among the outstanding share options, 6,723,000 (31
December 2017: 8,167,000), 2,946,000 (31 December 2017:
3,046,000) and 709,000 (31 December 2017: 921,000) share
options will lapse on 23 June 2019, 9 September 2021 and 4
September 2022, respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, 1,656,000 share
options (for the year ended 31 December 2017: 2,676,000
share options) were exercised at proceeds of approximately
HK$1,027,000 (for the year ended 31 December 2017:
approximately HK$1,660,000). Share options exercised during
the year ended 31 December 2018 were issued at a weighted
average exercise price of HK$0.62 (2017: HK$0.62) per share.
The related weighted average closing price at the time of
exercise for the year ended 31 December 2018 was HK$1.15
(2017: HK$1.19) per share.

18

19

RAERRERER QA

RERMBHERRME (F)

EREEC D)

Hib @ @

M E R A (&)

JEERIE S
BEABEREE2REHN  FERQ NS
BEDTBHENI0%DBEREES -
EEZEBECEZ AT EMERH50%
Bl - EZEHBLEABERIERT
ARENSHEER MR NEME
K HZEESEOAEBER A AR
BA25%H) KT o

LR G 118982

MR Z e @FEDRARERER T
EEEHATEMNBERENREHANA
(B (Hf5E19) ©

AR 42 3249 9 B <&

B

RZE—NEFE+_A=+—8"
10,378,000 Gk #E (== — &
F+=ZA=+—H:12,134,000
MERE) MARTFE BEE2EH
AFITE(R=_ZE—tF+=A
=+—B:iR) - EEKRITEE
fE#Edh - 6,723,0001) (=& —+ 4
+=—HA=+—H :8,167,000{3) -
2,946,000 (ZE—tF+= A
=+—H : 3,046,00013) }709,000
Hm(ZE—+tF+=A=+—8:
921,0001n) EREA AR =T — 1
FXA-+=0 —FB=-—FhA
hBR-ZZE-—FhAMBKEL
R o

(a)

BE-_Z - N\F+=ZA=+—8H
IEEE - 1,656,00010 L # (B =
T +tF+-_A=1+—HLHF
£ :2,676,00010 88 I #E) L FT 13
FIF#91,027,00008 T (B E—-F
—tE+-_A=t+-—HBLEFE: ¥
1,660,000 7T) B 1T « REZE =
E-NE+-_A=+—BHItFEFR
TEZEREZNEFTHITEES
f%0.628 L (ZF — £ F : 0.628
T)ET - BE-_ZE—N\FE+_A
=t—HIEFE  TERBENE
FHWRTEESRIASE T (ZF
—+F11987T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBREME (E)

19 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT COMPENSATION

(Continued)

19 UGB E @

(a) EBARFE (@)
HE-_Z—NE+=-A=+—8H1I
FE 100,000 B % 45 )82 I (&

(a) Share options (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, 100,000 share
options were forfeited (for the year ended 31 December

2017: Nil).

As all the share options were fully vested, no share-based
payment expense was recognised during the year ended 31
December 2018 (for the year ended 31 December 2017: Nil).

E_T—+tF+A=+—HIF
B &) o

MRATEBREDERRSEE W
BE_ZT—N\F+_A=+—H81t
FEE I EER AR BB (&

E_FT—LFF+-_A=t—HLF
B &) o

WARITEREARE 2 2B R EERETT

Movements in the number of share options outstanding and

their related exercise prices are as follows: EESFHMT :
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
Average  Number of Average Number of
exercise share exercise share
price in HK$ options  price in HK$ options
per share (thousands) per share  (thousands)
THTEE BREKE FHTEE  BREHA
BRET (F4) BRET (F1)
At 1 January W—A—H 0.62 12,134 0.62 14,810
Granted & - - - -
Forfeited eEid 0.62 (100) - -
Exercised 171 0.62 (1,656) 0.62 (2,676)
Expired S HA - - - -
Cancelled T3 - - _ _
At 31 December R+=—R=+—8H 0.62 10,378 0.62 12,134
(b) Shares award (b) K2R

R-E—RFAA-+=H AR
R M2 LNi)A A& E
B8 ZEZ ZHANEBR(RE

On 23 September 2016, the Company has adopted the
Scheme, to (i) recognise the contributions by employees,
directors, consultants or advisers of or to the Group (the

“Eligible Persons”); and (ii) offer suitable incentives to attract
and retain targeted talents and personnel for the continuance
of operations and future development of the Group. Subject
to the rules as set under the Scheme, the Board may at its
absolute discretion to elect any Eligible Persons to participate
in the Scheme (the “Selected Persons”) and to award the
Company’s shares (the “Awarded Shares”) to these Selected
Persons, subject to vesting conditions, if any. These Awarded
Shares will be transferred to the Selected Persons upon their
fulfillment of all relevant vesting conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBERME (F)

19 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT COMPENSATION

(Continued)

19 UGB E @

(b) {72 E (@)
HHMTHETS  AEEC BB
NEZH (RETFEBRGESR L
B/REBH  EARREAEER
BEALHALSRHOIEA
([ZHEADETEERE - A%£E
A 78BS 45 7R 5 5T A T2 B 3% B T 95 B
BARATMRG I LR A+ Fl2%
BIREIAS TR E ARG

(b) Shares award (Continued)

In connection with the implementation of the Scheme, the
Group has signed a trust deed with an independent third
party to act as the trustee (the “Trustee”) to hold certain
shares on behalf of the Group and the Selected Persons
before these Awarded Shares are granted and/or vested.
The Group may from time to time instruct the Trustee to
purchase the Company’s shares from the market on the Stock
Exchange and to hold them in trust for the benefit of the
Selected Persons.

BE_ZT—N\F+-_A=+—H81t
& - 3,550,0000% (=ZF — L F
1,010,0000%) fx 5 E A X 7t AR
= A B % K (83,962,000 T (=
T — 4 : 1,051,000/ 7T) R B R
FEE #H#zz—_Z—N\&+_-H4
=+ —HILEFE  BERGOBRES
ERMEERALTRE(ZT—tF:

During the year ended 31 December 2018, 3,550,000
shares (2017: 1,010,000 shares) were purchased on the
Stock Exchange at a consideration of HK$3,962,000 (2017:
HK$1,051,000) by the Trustee on behalf of the Group. No
shares were granted to Eligible Persons under the Scheme
during the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: same).

HR) o
20 SHARE CAPITAL 20 A
Number of shares HK$'000
2B FHL
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BRO.IETHERR
Authorised: JETE
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017, R-Z—-t5—-A—-A8"
1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018 —B—tF+=ZHA=t—-H"
—Z-N\F-AF—-HRK
—E-N\E+=ZA=+-H 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITREE
At 1 January 2017 R=-Z—tF-A—H 723,843,697 7,238
Exercise of share options 1L R R 2 2,676,000 27
At 31 December 2017 R=ZB—tH+=A=+-H 726,519,697 7,265
Exercise of share options Gy 1,656,000 17
At 31 December 2018 R-ZB-N\F+=A=+-—-H 728,175,697 7,282
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBREME (E)

21 BANK BORROWINGS

21 SRITEE

2018 2017
—B-N\F —F—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FET
Bank borrowings, secured BERZRTEE
Current: e
With repayment on demand clauses BEBREREEEK 34,588 22,170

At 31 December 2018, the Group’s bank borrowings are
denominated in HK$. The repayment terms of the bank borrowings
without taking into account the effect of repayment on demand
clauses are as follow:

R-_ZE—N\FE+_A=+—H8 K£E
WIRITEE T A TEHE - EIL EET
REREEBRRNTZET RITEE®D
BIHME

2018 2017

—E-N\F T —+4F

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET AT

Within 1 year MER 7,985 3,921
Between 1 and 2 years 1226 27 [ 7.706 3,976
Between 2 and 5 years 2&E5F 7 4 14,808 10,168
Over 5 years HBiB5F 4,089 4,105
34,588 22,170

The weighted average effective interest rate per annum of the
Group's bank borrowings at 31 December 2018 and 2017 are set

KR=Z-NFR-F—LF+=F
=+— B ARERTEEH0ETS

out as follows: ERFERNERHFHIWOT
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$ (Note) Bt (hat) 2.95% 2.19%
Note: HraE

In September and October 2015, the Group obtained two HK$ denominated
mortgage loans and certain banking facilities, which bore interest at the higher of
1.7% per annum over one-month HIBOR or the cost to the bank of funding the
facilities, for acquiring certain properties in Hong Kong. As at 31 December 2018,
the outstanding bank borrowings of these mortgage loans and banking facilities
amounted to approximately HK$14,589,000 (31 December 2017: approximately
HK$16,504,000). These properties were pledged against the mortgage loans
and certain banking facilities and included in property, plant and equipment in
the consolidated financial statements of the Group, with net carrying values of
approximately HK$50,144,000 as at 31 December 2018 (31 December 2017:
approximately HK$52,438,000).
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HERBEREBRITREZABEREREY
14,589,000 L (ZE—+tF+=A=+—8":
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

21 BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

Note: (Continued)

In October 2015, the Group obtained a HK$ denominated loan from a banking
facility which bore interest at 1.7% per annum over one-month HIBOR for its
working capital. In January 2018, the Group further drew down HK$20,000,000
from this banking facility for its working capital. As at 31 December 2018,
the outstanding bank borrowings of this facility amounted to approximately
HK$19,999,000 (31 December 2017: approximately HK$5,666,000). This banking
facility was secured by property, plant and equipment in the consolidated
financial statements of the Group, with net carrying values of approximately
HK$3,425,000 as at 31 December 2018 (31 December 2017: approximately
HK$3,630,000).

Save as disclosed above, other banking facilities of the Group were secured
by land use rights and property, plant and equipment in the consolidated
financial statements of the Group, with net carrying values of approximately
HK$1,673,000 (31 December 2017: approximately HK$1,820,000)
and approximately HK$8,542,000 (31 December 2017: approximately
HK$11,086,000), respectively as at 31 December 2018.

The Group has complied with the financial covenants of its
borrowing facilities during the year ended 31 December 2018 and
2017.

Interest expenses on bank borrowings for the year ended 31
December 2018 was approximately HK$1,206,000 (for the year
ended 31 December 2017: approximately HK$613,000).

The carrying amounts of bank borrowings approximate their fair
values as the impact of discounting is not significant.

At the balance sheet date, the following is the undrawn banking
facilities of the Group:

21

RERMBHERRME (F)

BITEE @m

Hrax - (&)

RZZE—AF+A AEERHEEELESH—
BHRTHENESUATHEZER  E—@
BREBRITAERBEENENEKITET B -
RZE—N\F—A AEBEGRELEESHI
IH $R 17 Bh & i — # 12 BX20,000,000/8 TTE K
R-ZE—NF+_A=+—HB: WETMmE
2 AREEEE 419,999,000 T (ZF — L4
+=BA=+—H : 45,666,000/ 7T) ° Lt ETT
MEURNEBEZREVBERERZME - BER
BEEER R=T—N\E+=-_A=+—A80~2
BREF(E 493,425,0008 T (=T —EF+=A
=+—H : #3,630,000/ ) °

BRUA LR BEEIN  NEBEHMBITHENERSE
BiRAMERER T ERAEARDE K
ERREEER R N\F+-_A=1+—
HZEEmFED BI41,673,0008 T (—F—+
F+_-_A=+—H8 :#1,820,0008 7t) K&
8,542,000 T (—TE—+%+-HFA=+—8:
4911,086,000/8 7T) °

BEe_T—N\FEk_ZFT—+tF+=_A
=+—BLEFE AEBEETHEEE
B & BB TS 2L o

HE—Z-—NFE+-_A=+—BIFE
RIER1T & B B 5 X 491,206,000/ 7T (B
EE—+E+-_A=+—HIEFEE: &
613,000/ 7T) °

HRFTENFELTEAN RITEEN
FREEEEAFERES -

REER  AEEZHARERORTE
BT

2018 2017
—B-N\F —T—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx THET
Floating rate: SEENFR
Expiring within one year N—EREH 358,947 242,660
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBERRME (F)

22 TRADE PAYABLES

The ageing analysis of trade payables by invoice date is as follows:

22 EHEZERM

e B ZARFIZ T B B fRE DT

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TFHET FET
1-30 days 1£30H 192,197 218,017
31-60 days 31%60H 15,088 6,632
61-90 days 61%290H 15,778 4,251
Over 90 days 90H A 3,453 1,630
226,516 230,530
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Denominated in: BT EREYE :
- RMB — AR 189,563 181,602
- HK$ — BT 12,158 12,076
- US$ —%7T 21,684 35,016
— Other currencies —Eh g 3,111 1,836
226,516 230,530
23 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 23 EotEARHEMEMNRIE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$000
THExT FAT
Current: E -
Advance from customers (Note) ZRENER ) 16,465 16,578
Other payables H Ath JE T 5018 124,715 136,461
Accruals JEEtE A 158,066 136,930
299,246 289,969
Non-current; JERE
Other payables H e IR 2,879 -
302,125 289,969
The carrying values of these balances approximate their fair values. U EAARNREEEEL A FERS °
Note: Vi

Revenue recognised during the year ended 31 December 2018 that was included
in the advance from customers balance at the beginning of the year amounted to
approximately HK$13,026,000 (2017: approximately HK$14,118,000). The Group
expects to deliver the goods to satisfy the remaining performance obligations of
these contract liabilities within one year or less.

BE-_ZE—" \F+-_A=+—"BILFE"
REMFARFEEMNREHB 2 ERRBKRAL
13,026,000/ 7T (= — £ 4F : 414,118,000
BIL) c AKBEHR —FREEREERARA
ERUBTHSEEGHNEBEZHRTBEOET -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBERME (F)

24 LOANS FROM NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 24 R EFEiERER S
FEEEEBEN Y R ABER %8
RAREREE  HEAGNETER
HATERE -

Loans from non-controlling interests are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand. The carrying value of these liabilities
approximate their fair values.

The balances are denominated in HK$. R AB LR E ©
25 EXPENSES BY NATURE 25 BMEERY 2%

AAABERA DA THHAX R
CREEREBREBRFEANNMA
(Wzs) It e T -

The following expenses/(gains) are included in cost of sales,
distribution costs, administrative expenses and net reversal of
impairment losses on financial assets:

2018 2017
—E-N\F Tt
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHER FAT
Changes in inventories (Note 71) FEE® (K1) 1,135,305 1,044,838
Auditor’s remuneration = ELRD BN &
— Audit services — R 2,680 2,680
— Non-audit services — IR B AR TS 381 761
Amortisation of land use rights (Note 6) + b B RE RS (A 5F6) 1,970 1,059
Depreciation of property, plant and Y BB MRENTE
equipment (Note 7) (H1et7) 40,932 36,737
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 9(b)) & EHBESS (/7729(0b)) 1,635 1,564
Operating lease rental in respect of buildings BFHEEHREHRS 14,603 14,101
Provision for obsolete inventories (Note 11)  FBREFE B (H711) 7,484 2,473
Direct written off of obsolete inventories BEEMEREFS
(Note 11) (BtzE11) 2,760 2,979
Net reversal of impairment losses on financial 4 & & /& il (B &5 18 5 B ) F 28
assets (Note 12) (Kat12) (11,351) (214)
Employee benefit expenses (Note 27) BE®RAMBEZ (HiE27) 437,939 378,633
Transportation expenses BREH 79,544 70,985
Exchange loss/(gain), net BE N E51E, (e ) ¥ 88 17,096 (18,594)
Advertising costs E &R 14,857 11,885
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE  BEMEED
equipment (Note 33(b)) & 18 (H15733b)) 532 22
Direct operating expenses arising REEERS KA
from an investment property that 2 —IHIEEWMEL
generates rental income (Note 8) BEEREERX (Hi78) 50 48
Utilities expenses N R 24,416 23,024
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RERBHERRME (F)

26 OTHER INCOME 26 HbW A
2018 2017
—E—N\E —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET AT
Rental income (Note 8) e WA (K:E8) 310 278
Income from sales of scrap materials HE RS A 1,778 1,359
Government grant AT 48 B 2,898 1,777
Others Hih 1,070 1,060
6,056 4,474
27 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 27 EERABBEX
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FATT
Salaries, wages and bonuses e LENIELD 390,222 343,426
Pension costs — defined contribution plans BRKREHR A — RERKEE 1,695 1,781
Welfare and other expenses B R A 46,022 33,426
437,939 378,633
Five highest paid individuals TEREHFMAL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 include five directors
(for the year ended 31 December 2017: five directors) whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in Note 38.

No emoluments have been paid to the individual or the directors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office for the year ended 31 December
2018 (for the year ended 31 December 2017: Nil).

28 FINANCE INCOME AND FINANCE COSTS

38 °

HE_2—NE+-_A=1+—HItEE "
AEEREAGERTWALBERZES
(BE-_Z—+tEt+-_A=t+—"HILEE:
AEES)  EHEMHTE RBER K

BE_ZEZ—\E+-_A=1+—BHIEE -
AEETELSREM@AALTHESNEA
7N &8 [E 5k 7E B 0 BB AN 5 B R S A B < sk

AELREBUMNERBEBE-Z
—tFF+ZA=t+—HLEFE:8) -

28 FFFSUR A K B 5 A AR

2018 2017

—E-N\F —EF—tF

HK$°000 HK$'000

THET FAT
Finance costs on bank borrowings RITIEE ZH B (1,206) (613)
Finance income B U A 877 834
Finance (costs)/income, net B (B A) /IR F 58 (329) 221
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBERME (F)

29 SUBSIDIARIES 29 B AT

R=ZZE—N\FE+_A=+—H ' K27
RTIEBWBAREE B K EEER:

As at 31 December 2018, the Company had direct and indirect
interests in the following principal subsidiaries:

Proportion of ordinary

Particulars Proportion of
Place of Principal ofissued  shares he‘ld directly ordinary shares
incorporation activities share capital/ B Bm L bl held by non-
Name of and kind of and place of registered by by the controlling
company legal entity operation capital parent Group interests
BRITRE/ FERESR
AMRIEHE  ETEEBR dfExe HBLAE HAEE FEEER
REEH ERERER ez #fF  EHERE HEER 2 hl
Ming Fai Holdings British Virgin Islands,  Investment holding; Us$100 100% - -
Limited limited liability Hong Kong
company
REERERAA RERUAS REER 100%7T 100% - -
BREMAT B0
Ming Fai Asia Pacific Hong Kong, limited ~ Trading of hospitality HK$10,000,000 - 100% -
Company Limited liability company supplies products
and operating
supplies and
equipment;
Hong Kong
RESAERAF BA HEEEHREME 10,000,0007 7T - 100% -
BREERF EmREERMK
B3
BB
Ming Fai Enterprise Hong Kong, limited  Trading of hospitality HK$ 1,000,000 - 100% -
International liability company supplies products
Company Limited and operating
supplies and
equipment;
Hong Kong
REEZER BA HEEEHREME 1,000,000% 7T - 100% -
BRAT BREARF EmRkEERMK
B3
BE
Ming Fai Industrial The PRC, limited Manufacturing and HK$50,000,000 - 100% -
(Shenzhen) liability company trading of hospitality
Company Limited supplies products
and trading of
operating supplies
and equipment;
the PRC
REEX (R hE BERHEEEME  50,000,000% 7T - 100% -
BARAT BREARF mEERREE
EERAmRZ
i
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBREME (E)

29 SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 29 M2 7 um
Particulars  Proportion of ordinary Proportion of
Place of Principal ofissued  shares held directly ordinary shares
incorporation activities share capital/ B ERL A held by non-
Name of and kind of and place of registered by by the controlling
company legal entity operation capital parent Group interests
BRTRE/ FERER
AF A 3L it B FEEBR dftExz HMEAR HEAKE FiEER
AR EW ERERER BemEh #fF  ERBE HEBRE 2 hl
Ming Fai Innovative Hong Kong, limited ~ Manufacturing and HK$100,000 - 100% -

Skin Care Lab Limited  liability company trading of hospitality
supplies products;

Hong Kong
RELFERWESR BE HEREEBEMRE 100,0007% 7T - 100% -
BRAT BREERF mEEm
Quality Amenities Singapore, limited  Trading of hospitality $G$100,000 - 100% -
Supply Pte. Limited liability company supplies products
and operating
supplies and
equipment;
Singapore
Quality Amenities N HEBEHREME 100,003 7 - 100% -
Supply Pte. Limited BREERF EnkEERmk
BLK
AR
Teng Xun Limited Cambodia, limited ~ Manufacturing and US$4,000,000 - 100% -

liability company trading of hospitality
supplies products
and trading of
operating supplies
and equipment;
Cambodia
Teng Xun Limited REE- SERHEEEME  4,000,000% 7T - 100% -
BREERF mEEMKIEE
EEAm RS
FRE
Oriental Lotus Hotel India, limited Manufacturing and Indian Rupee 51% 49%
Supplies Private liability company trading of hospitality 338,300,530
Limited supplies products
and trading of
operating supplies
and equipment;
India
Oriental Lotus Hotel g - Rt R HE R R 38,300,530 - 51% 49%
Supplies Private BREERF mEERREE HEEL
Limited LERmRRE
&
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

INCOME TAX EXPENSES

The amount of income tax charged/(credited) to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income represents:

30

RERMBHERRME (F)

Fit 1§ Bi B <

RizazmERERNK, (BE) BTG
MERS

2018 2017

—E-N\E —E—+F

HK$'000 HK$'000

TE T TAT

Current income tax: BIEAFTIS L -

- Hong Kong profits tax — BB 18,588 17,551
- PRC enterprise income tax — B EER 12,783 17,867

— Other overseas profits tax — HE MG INF R 1,404 656
Adjustments in respect of prior year BAEFERAE (100) (2,062)
32,675 34,012

Deferred income tax (Note 10) EIEFTISRL (B 10) 2,175 396
34,850 34,408

Taxation has been provided at the appropriate rates prevailing in
the countries in which the Group operates.

Hong Kong profits tax, PRC enterprise income tax, Singapore
corporate income tax and Cambodia corporate income tax are
calculated at 16.5% (2017: 16.5%), 25% (2017: 25%), 17%
(2017: 17%) and 20% on the estimated assessable profits for the
year ended 31 December 2018 respectively.

Taxes on other overseas profits have been calculated at the rates
of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates,
based on existing legislation, interpretations and practices in respect
thereof.

The difference between the actual income tax charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income and the amounts
which would result from applying the enacted tax rates to profit
before income tax can be reconciled as follows:

I8 Jh 12 7K 5 (B 4% ‘& P £ B 558 A O
R R -

EBFER  RECEMRSHR - FMEL
XS RERBECEMSHR DIREE
2T NF+-_A=+—"HBItFEH
SHEZRBUEF D BIA16.5% (ZB—+4 -
16.5% ) + 25% (= FE — 4 : 25%) -
17% (ZZ—+45 : 17%) %20%:TH o

H NG M 2 BB TR AN B L&
AR ZERBZEMREREEHRITE
B 2EREHFE -

=)
e

AREKERPERASH X HEIZ
A BB K gt oK 5t 1S B A& M AT EPT
BB ZBHENT

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Profit before income tax RETETS L AT 3 A 130,931 143,248
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates iR & BB = A
applicable to profits in the respective i ) 8 8 A 2
countries STERBIA 23,939 27,553
Income not subject to tax B AR WA (6,020) (3,391
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes AR IE ) 5 2 7,724 7,882
Utilisation of prior year tax losses PFABEFECBBERE (111) (293)
Adjustments in respect of prior year BEFERAE (100) (2,062)
Tax losses for which no deferred income PHERELEFEHEE
tax asset was recognised BT IE &8 9,418 4,719
Tax charge HIA 34,850 34,408
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

= A
I%/-.r\lzl

30

31

150

MEmEAME (F)

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 18% per annum
for the year ended 31 December 2018 (for the year ended 31
December 2017: 19% per annum). The change is caused by a
change in the profitability of the Group’s subsidiaries in respective
countries.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried
forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit
through the future taxation profits is probable. The Group has
unrecognised tax losses of approximately HK$188,823,000 (31
December 2017: approximately HK$176,928,000) as at 31
December 2018 to offset against future taxable income. These tax
losses expire in the following years:

30

FrEBie X wm

REZE_Z—N\F+=ZA=+—HLF
ERMEFHERTEAEF18% (B E
—E—+E+_f=+—HItFEE:
F19%) - MERE TR ABNEEKHBR
RITEA R R A F LR o

BT TS & B TY R R AR B 7R 7S Al 2 Al
BRRRERT RSB MBmEE 2
REABEEER R-_E—NF+_A
=t+—H AEEZRERHEEBBELD
#9188,823,000 L (ZE —tF + = A
=+ —H : %176,928,000 7t) ' A &
SHARRERBUWA o IL ERITHE BB R
T3 FHER

2018 2017
—2-\F T +fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAT
In the first to fifth years inclusive E—FEZFENF (BREEENF) 117,524 127,966
No expiry date fR 2w B EA 71,299 48,962
188,823 176,928
EARNINGS PER SHARE 31 SRER
(a) Basic (a) &EX

Basic earnings per share attributable to owners of the
Company is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to
owners of the Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

ARARHENEESRERNEF A
ARRIHAEANEBEZFBRAFAR
BITEBRZ NETFHHGE -

2018 2017
—E-)N\F —T—+F
Profit attributable to owners of the RARIHEEB AEL BT
Company (HK$'000) (F%7T) 100,249 108,923
Weighted average number of ordinary = 21T & A% N4 715 &
shares in issue (thousands) (FH) 723,477 723,696
Basic earnings per share attributable 72 F]#H A E1S
to owners of the Company EREXEF
(HK cents) (GEAl) 13.9 15.1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBERME (F)

31 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 31 8RERN @
(b) Diluted (b) #58

Diluted earnings per share attributable to owners of the
Company is calculated by adjusting the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The Company has
share options as dilutive potential shares. A calculation was
done to determine the number of shares that could have
been acquired at fair value (determined as the average
annual market price of the shares) based on the monetary
value of the subscription rights attached to the outstanding
share options. The number of shares calculated as above was
compared with the number of shares that would have been
issued assuming the exercise of the share options.

ARRHEE AL SEEER N A
REBAEITHENEEE BRI
‘iR HEBD BT EBRAMEF
BHEFTE - ARR 2B RER A #
SBHBERD - St R ARREH
RITEBBRERMHORBENES
BE BERAVFE(EE/KM
MFH2FEMHER) 7 EANRK
MEE - WA LT A ERRNDE
B EERREREEITEmERET
BB n BU B EH L ER ©

2018 2017
—E-N\%F —T—+fF
Profit attributable to owners of the AR AEL R T
Company (HK$'000) (F%7T) 100,249 108,923
Weighted average number of BT E mARE) I
ordinary shares in issue (thousands) EHE(TFAR) 723,477 723,696
Adjustment for: FHE
— Share options (thousands) - (Fr) 4,886 5,984
Weighted average number of FREE RN TR
ordinary shares for diluted 2 INFEF 8
earnings per share (thousands) (FH) 728,363 729,680
Diluted earnings per share KABEE AEM
attributable to owners of the BREEEF
Company (HK cents) (FBAl) 13.8 14.9

RAERRERER QA

-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RERBHERRME (F)

32 DIVIDENDS

On 30 May 2018, a final dividend of HK5.0 cents per share for the
year ended 31 December 2017 was approved by the Company’s
shareholders. Total dividend of approximately HK$36,390,000 was
paid out, including dividend paid to the shares held for the Scheme.

On 29 August 2018, the Board resolved to approve an interim
dividend of HK2.0 cents per share for the six months ended 30 June
2018. Total dividend of approximately HK$14,556,000 was paid
out, including dividend paid to the shares held for the Scheme.

The final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2018
of HK5.0 cents per share, amounting to a total dividend of
approximately HK$36,428,000 was resolved by the Board to
propose on 27 March 2019, which is subject to approval at the
annual general meeting of the Company to be held on 29 May
2019. This proposed dividend is not reflected as a dividend payable
in the consolidated financial statements, but reflected as an
appropriation of retained earnings for the year ended 31 December
2018.
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RS

RZZE-—NFRA=Z+TH A2aK
REMEREBEEZE-_Z—tF+=A
=+ —HIEFER RIS F 5071l -
#936,390,000/8 7L 2 IR B AR REE IR 3 -

BRERTE TIHAEZRMNERE ZIRE -

RZZE-—NFNAZ-_+tNLH EEg
mAEBRE-ZT-NFEAAA=1H
WEAREAZFHRKREFR2.08 MW - 4
14,556,000/8 7T 2 ik 2 B FE E B K %&
BRERTE TIHEZRMNERE ZIRE -

R—_ZE—h&F=A=-++tH E=Fg
EARAEZREBE_ZT—/\F+=A
=+ HLEFENRPRE ATRS.0E
il - % B 4858 49 536,428,000 T 1
AFBER=_ZE—hLhEFRA=-F+NLBRE17T
WMARBIREBFERS EEMER  F
AEE - WEZEREMARRLES VKR
ERBAEENKE ERBMABE=-Z
—N\NE+=-A=t+—BLEENDEF

BRA -



33 NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 33

CASH FLOWS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBERME (F)

RERTRERME

(a) Rt EBAIEFNEEE

(a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to

cash generated from operations

EBRERTNHER

2018 2017
—E-N\EFE —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx T
Profit before income tax RETFT1S T AT = 7 130,931 143,248
Adjustments for: BEEL TR
— Amortisation of land use rights — T PR 85
(Note 6) (Htzte6) 1,970 1,059
— Depreciation of property, plantand —#% - HiE RREITE
equipment (Note 7) (B13£7) 40,932 36,737
— Amortisation of intangible assets — BB E
(Note 9(b)) (K17F9b)) 1,635 1,564
— Loss on disposal of property, —HEWE - WE REE
plant and equipment (Note 33(b)) B ES1R (A77733(b) 532 22
— Finance income (Note 28) — BT (B 7£28) (877) (834)
— Finance costs (Note 28) — BRSNS (B 7£28) 1,206 613
— Provision for obsolete inventories —REFENEE 7,484 2,473
— Direct written off for obsolete —BEEMERERE
inventories (Note 11) (BaE11) 2,760 2,979
— Net reversal of impairment losses —2MEERAEBERL
on financial assets (Note 12) FEE(MiE12) (11,351) (214)
— Share of profit of an associated — L —E8 & R A
company gl (1,948) (1,344)
— Share of profit of a joint venture —EE—HEEERT (95) (2)
— Fair value gain on an investment ——HEREMEZLTVE
property (Note 8) Weas (H7328) (473) -
Changes in working capital: EEESEE
— Inventories - FE (3,421) (16,488)
— Trade and bills receivables - BB SERREE (81,574) (32,011)
— Other assets — HitnEE (18,814) (14,101)
— Other financial assets at — R AR
amortised cost EMomEE (1,001) (6,089)
— Trade payables — ERE SRR 5,435 6,941
— Accruals and other payables — st ER M HMENKIE 31,580 8,809
— Amount due from an associated — UL — R = R R
company KIE 5,013 (2,963)
— Amounts due from joint ventures — ERAETERE (206) (5)
Cash generated from operations KEEENSNIR G 109,718 130,394

REREERERARAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBREME (E)

33 NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)

33 SKEBEEARERME @

(b) Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment

(b) HENX BMERREMRS
K
REERSRERT HENE.
BiE RREABRERSE

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from
disposal of property, plant and equipment comprise:

2018 2017
—8-NF  ZF—t%
HK$000 HK$'000
THERT FAT
Net book amount: BRE#E 1,000 520
— Property, plant and equipment (Note 7)  —#1% « B R 3548 (A157)
Loss on disposal of property, HYEYE . BRERREY
plant and equipment (Note 25) IE598 (B7t25) (532) (22)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE  BEEEE
plant and equipment PSSR 468 498
(c) Net debt reconciliation (c) BEBZHER
Liabilities from
Other assets financing activities
HitEE RERNEETHZAE
Bank Bank
Cashand  borrowings  borrowings  Loans from
cash due within due after non-controlling
equivalents 1year 1year interests Total
RERRE 1FREE  1FRIE  FERER
EEEE MRTEE MNROTEE NEX st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THT TR THET TR
Net debt as at RZB-t%#

1 January 2017 -B-RAZE8f 508,616 (4,083) (22,161) (13,592) 468,780
Cash flows RHeTE (149,790) 162 3,912 (900) (146,616)
Foreign exchange adjustments HNEFE 8,933 - - - 8,933
Net debt as at RZE-t%+=A

31 December 2017 =t-HZBEf 367,759 (3.921) (18,249) (14,492) 331,097
Cash flows HemeE (89,236) (4,064) (8,354) (1,000) (102,654)
Foreign exchange adjustments IMEFE (6,045) - - - (6,045)
Net debt as at RZE-N5+=A

31 December 2018 =t-AZEAR 272,478 (7,985) (26,603) (15,492) 222,398
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBERME (F)

34 COMMITMENTS 34 EE
(a) Capital commitments (a) EARFEIE
As at 31 December 2018, the capital commitments of the RZEBE—N\F+_A=+—H ' &
Group were approximately HK$38,298,000 (31 December & Bl #) & 7N F ¥E 4938,298,0007% T
2017: approximately HK$24,810,000). (Z2—+tF+ZA=+—H:%

24,810,000/ 7T) °

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ZT—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHETT
Contracted but not provided for in the & T4 KRR A BT
consolidated financial statements wRNEE 38,298 24,810
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) EEHEHRIE
The future aggregate minimum lease payments under BIETAHIEEERS  AKER
non-cancellable operating leases of the Group are as follows: RROFERENREHEAT ¢
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —T—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
No later than one year TER—F 7,797 11,392
Later than one year and no BR—F
later than five years BTNERSF 3,519 7,186
11,316 18,578
35 BUSINESS COMBINATION 35 ¥BaH
On 27 April 2018, the Group acquired 100% equity interest in RZE-NANFEAZ++R - AEE
Teng Xun Limited and land and properties located in Cambodia at a #97,017,0003% 7T (4855 7 4954,977,0007%8
total cash consideration of approximately US$7,017,000 (equivalent oL) 2 #IR & REUWEETeng Xun Limited
to approximately HK$54,977,000). Before acquisition, Teng Xun Z100% AR RURRIBRE 2 LR
Limited was principally engaged in the manufacturing of handbags Y13 o MULRERT © Teng Xun Limited=® 2
business on the acquired land and properties. RATWEE 2 T R EREREFRS
EF
According to the sale and purchase agreements signed among the BEAEEHEEFEZEZEEHZ K
Group and the vendors, the acquisitions of Teng Xun Limited and fTeng Xun Limited & T RWEAE A
the land and properties are inter-dependent on each other, and i AR AFEBEH T2 —BRS °
therefore, they are accounted for as one transaction under business

combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBREME (E)

35 BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 35 ¥&K4S 6t
The consideration paid and the provisional fair values of assets ENRERMAMKEEERMAEAGBR
acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date are WEEANEEATFER TRMSI

summarised in the table below:

HK$'000
T
Consideration KE
Cash paid ENEE 54,977
Provisional fair value of recognised amounts of BRI EERFIRESEBZ
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed CERALEZTEELFE
Cash and cash equivalents ReMBFeFBEIEE 435
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries SN B 167
Property, plant and equipment - Land (Note 7) M - BB K& — i (M iE7) 10,422
Property, plant and equipment - Buildings (Note 7) ME - BE LRE—EF (H7E7) 34,890
Property, plant and equipment - Others (Note 7) M B MR — E A (B A7) 12,607
Intangible asset (Note 9(b)) | & (K13290b)) 1,728
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary e —RRRME R FFIE (3,629)
Trade payables FERE SRR (1,231)
Accruals and other payables FET B B I At FE < 5K0E (912)
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 70) EEBEAE (MF10) (4,871)
Total identifiable net assets AR FEEEMAE 49,606
Goodwill (Note 9(a)) B (fiE9(a)) 5,371
54,977
Cash consideration paid ENBEeRE 54,977
Deposit paid in prior year RE—FEENEZS (38,252)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FrigismiRle RIREFEIAE (435)
Net cash outflow on acquisition during the year FRREERHIE IR FE 16,290
Acquisition related costs included in administrative RERNGFALGEREA
expenses in the consolidated statement of WS RITHAZ®
comprehensive income for the year LAz B 4R B8 B AN 1,447
The goodwill of approximately HK$5,371,000 is attributable to 2 #95,371,0007% 7T 3 55 A A % TH 8%
a number of elements, which cannot individually be quantified. BrlgttzBAER - EAKREEZ DRt
Most significant amongst these is the synergy attributable to the SEEBERZHE M - HEE #®
Group's business. None of the goodwill recognised is expected to RE P ETE AR ET EFTS R T LAFIBR ©

be deductible for income tax purposes.
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35

36

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

The gross contractual amount for amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries is approximately HK$167,000, of which none is
expected to be uncollectible.

The revenue and loss included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income since 27 April 2018 contributed by Teng
Xun Limited were approximately HK$2,000 and approximately
HK$28,185,000 respectively. Had Teng Xun Limited been
consolidated from 1 January 2018, there are no material impact on
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income of the Group.

The fair value of the acquired identifiable assets is provisional
pending receipt of the final valuations for those relevant assets.
Deferred income tax liabilities of approximately HK$4,871,000
have been provided in relation to the fair value adjustments of
property, plant and equipment and intangible asset arising from the
acquisition.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties are those parties that have the ability to control the
other party or exercise significant influence in making financial and
operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they
are subject to common control.

The ultimate controlling parties of the Group are Mr. CHING Chi
Fai, Mr. CHING Chi Keung, Mr. LIU Zigang and Ms. CHAN Yim
Ching.

(a) Significant related party transactions

The Group has carried out significant transactions with the
following related parties:

Name of related party

HMBLBE £8 ERRBED

35

36

Principal business activities

RERMBHERRME (F)

¥EKE6twm

ERERXMBARKBZANBELY
167,000 7T * TEHAE P BEET A M [E 2
FKIE o

Teng Xun LimitedB =& — \NF M A
ZTEBERBEFAGEEERERZBA
K & 18 5 51l 492,000 7T & 4928,185,000
P& 7T ° fldTeng Xun Limitedd =& — /\F
—A—BREHE AR HAKEELKRE
FHRGRBEEALE -

FTE R R EEZ AFERETE '
WEZEHRBEE R KHE BB
MELEYE BERSBEEFREEZ
BN FAEFAELSL871,000% TE A
BEFTSTHAE -

E

fild (7] — T REFEHI 5 —J7 - R E BB
RBERRETREEARTE N DA
By o XBIARESOEBT REER
BARE T o

AEBZEEEFRTRBEELLE 2
HORELE - BIFMIEERRYS L -

(a) EXBEBERXZ
REBBEP TS ETEAR
5

Relationship with the Group
BEAREEZBER

Ming Fai Plastic Industrial
Company

Manufacturing of plastic products
(Ceased manufacturing of plastic

products since April 2003)

HEBBEXR AR

SEBRER(BE-TZT=

MARRKIEREBBER)

Quality Amenities
Supply (M) Sdn. Bhd.
and equipment
Quality Amenities
Supply (M) Sdn. Bhd. Am k&
Provision of information
technology services

iBridge Technology
(Shenzhen) Limited
(“Ibridge Technology"”)

BEHRER ORI BR AR
(TBIEE R )

RHE AR SRS

Trading of hospitality supplies
products and operating supplies

HEREHERBERKEE

Partnership owned by Mr. CHING
Chi Fai, Mr. YEUNG Tin Loi and
Mr. CHING Chi Keung

MIEEESEE BRREER
BEREEMBERNEBEE

Associated company of the Group

Joint venture of the Group

AEBHEERE

JiE}

o)
i

RAERRERER QA

—T-N\FFH 157



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBREME (E)

36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Significant related party transactions
(Continued)

(a)

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group had the following significant
transactions with related parties:

36 B XRSZ @

BEXBBAIRS @)

E5h

5

GAMBREEMESFHE
A EEEE TR TOEA
m -

2018 2017
—E-N\E Tt
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET T
(i) Sales of goods () HEEm
—to Quality Amenities — FQuality Amenities
Supply (M) Sdn. Bhd. Supply (M) Sdn. Bhd. 16,094 19,817
— to iBridge Technology - FEEBARE 201 123
(i) Purchase of goods (iy BEEM
— from iBridge Technology - BRIEERE 150 182
(iii)y Rental charged (i) NFEFWEAEE
— by Ming Fai Plastic — R
Industrial Company EEUNG 1,474 844
(iv) Purchase of services rendered from (iv) BB T332 4t 8RS
— information technology - BEERE
service charges from REEZ B
iBridge Technology BHE R 3 111
(v) Purchase of intangible assets v) BBEEFEE
— software from iBridge - BREERE
Technology EOEIE - 158
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBERME (F)

36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 36 BEEE R RS @)
(a) Significant related party transactions (a) EXRBEBAIRS (@)
(Continued)
Sales of goods are transacted at prices mutually agreed HEBEMDIRTOA 2B ERBE
between the parties. ERETRS o
Purchases of goods are services are transacted at prices BEEMERB RN 2HEHE
mutually agreed between the parties. HHENEBRETRS °
Purchase of intangible assets are transacted at prices mutually BEEREEDNKRIANA Z2HABE
agreed between the parties. WHEZBIREITRS o
The Group leased certain properties from Ming Fai Plastic AEERPABLEBREXARERSE
Industrial Company as one of its production bases in the PRC. THEER/REN PR EP —E4
The transaction is carried out at prices agreed between the EEM R NIRTAT 2EE
parties. 115 TE BB IR HEAT o
(b) Key management compensation (b) TEEBAEMSE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—LF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Basic salaries, housing allowances, EE - (EEEA - HiER R
other allowances and benefits-in-kind L ERNR 10,330 10,329
Contributions to pension plans BIRE IR 114 115
10,444 10,444
(c) Year end balances arising from sales and (c) HERBEERNWFEARLER
purchases of goods
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Prepayment to iBridge Technology  F& /< B & 4 &l 718
(Note) (Bat) 78 94
Amounts due from FEU LA R & 75 3B
— Quality Amenities Supply (M) — Quiality Amenities Supply (M)
Sdn. Bhd. (Note 13) Sdn. Bhd. (/727 13) 3,125 8,138
— iBridge Technology (Note) - BEH R (i) 168 59
Note: The balance represents prepayment to iBridge Technology of Wi #EHRBEEAMB KR M E
approximately HK$78,000 (31 December 2017: approximately 5 B 18 1 7 550 IR £978,0008 7T
HK$94,000) arising from purchases of information technology (Z2E—+tF¥+=-—A=+—8":
services and amount due from iBridge Technology of approximately #994,000% 7t) & & Ik B g & &
HK$168,000 (31 December 2017: approximately HK$59,000). B R IA#1168,000/8 7T (—F—+
These balances are unsecured in nature, bear no interest and F+=-A=+—8 : 459,000
denominated in RMB. TC) o LEAERMEBEER T
FFERAARKEEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBREME (E)

37 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 37 AAOEEEBRKHEE

OF THE COMPANY 5B E)
Balance sheet of the Company as at 31 December 2018 R=-=TB-NE+=-HB=+—H
ZEADNBEEEERX
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
k=3 THET FAT
ASSETS BE
Non-current asset FRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—EHBRRHEE 235,673 235,673
Total non-current assets FRBEELTE 235,673 235,673
Current assets REBEE
Other current assets Hime) & E 282 172
Other financial assets at REHEKAT R
amortised cost Hip o ahdE 50 59
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUT B B A R F B 766,500 719,628
Amount due from a joint venture B —HeEERIE 38 12
Cash and cash equivalents BHeRkBE4SEEER 22,615 74,525
Total current assets REEEHAE 789,485 794,396
Total assets BEELE 1,025,158 1,030,069
EQUITY i
Equity attributable to the owners AKX TEE A
of the Company B
Share capital e 7,282 7,265
Shares held under the Scheme HEITHEHE RN (6,051) (2,089)
Share premium vyt 609,548 608,538
Other reserves Hofth 41 A 404,452 405,941
Total equity s 1,015,231 1,019,655
LIABILITIES =L
Current liabilities hBEE
Accruals and other payables PR B A R E A BT FIE 501 1,047
Amounts due to subsidiaries EN B EIFIA 9,104 9,119
Tax payable e FIE 146 146
Dividends payable RS 176 102
Total current liabilities REEEAE 9,927 10,414
Total liabilities BEH4E 9,927 10,414
Total equity and liabilities HEZREE 1,025,158 1,030,069

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of

Directors on 27 March 2019 and was signed on its behalf.

ARBEEBBERNZ

T-nE=A

THEHKREESERETHATESEK

REE °

CHING Chi Fai CHING Tsun Wah
RS RHE
Director Director

EE EF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBERME (F)

37 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

37 AR EEEEBXREMHEE
2B (@)

MaEA: BE=-ZF—-NF+=
A=+ —HBLEEXR

Note A: Reserve movement of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2018

NEREED
Merger  Share-based
reserve compensation Retained
(Note) reserves earnings Total
afRE UROIAH
(Hzt) MemkE REEA @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT FHT FHET
Balance at R-E—+&
1 January 2017 -B—-HBz&&% 224147 33,728 17,767 275,642
Comprehensive income 2HNE
Profit for the year NEFHA - - 173,729 173,729
Total comprehensive income  2HEKHHE - - 173,729 173,729
Final dividend relating to 2016 T -RERZRERE - - (28,930) (28,930)
Interim dividend relating to 2017 —Z—+EEzHHKE - - (14,500) (14,500)
Exercise of share options TEERRE - (1,396) 1,396 -
Balance at R-Z—-+%&
31 December 2017 TZR=+-B2&& 224,147 32,332 149,462 405,941
Balance at R-Z-N§¥-8-H
1 January 2018 it 224,147 32,332 149,462 405,941
Comprehensive income 2HEKH
Profit for the year KERRF - - 49,209 49,209
Total comprehensive income  2HEWZEAHE - - 49,209 49,209
Final dividend relating to 2017 “ELFEZRBES
(Note 32) (Hrit32) - - (36,206) (36,206)
Interim dividend relating to 2018  —Z—N\EEzhH#iik 2
(Note 32) (Hrit32) - - (14,492) (14,492)
Exercise of share options IR - (820) 820 -
Balance at RZE-N\§
31 December 2018 TZA=t-Az&H 224,147 31,512 148,793 404,452
Representing: RE:
Reserve f#fE 368,024
Final dividend proposed BERGRE 36,428
Balance at RZE-N\E
31 December 2018 TZRA=t-Az&H 404,452
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBREME (E)

37 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note A: Reserve movement of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2018
(Continued)

Note:

Merger reserve of the Group represents the difference between the cost of
investment in subsidiaries and nominal value of the share capital and share
premium of the subsidiaries in 2007 arising from the application of merger
accounting in consolidating the financial information of the affected entities.

38 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS

The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid/payable to Directors of
the Company by the Group are as follows:

37

38

APBEERERKRE
-3¢ )

MEA: BZE=-F—-—NHE+=
A=+ —BLEEXR
NElREERE @)

Kiat -

AEEMNEHREEERNBARNIZRERA R

BRAEESLEMBATGNR -_EE+EEAHITE

ERVBERBRAA HEIDEME NN
BRI ZEHE -

EERFTETHRAEZHMZ

AEEEHN BENARARIEZEENHE 2
R ¢

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET AT

Fees ok 1,350 1,320
Basic salaries, housing allowances, other EE - (EEEA - EfER R

allowances and benefits-in-kind e ENR 9,730 9,969

Contributions to pension plans BREETEIH I 114 115

11,194 11,404
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBERME (F)

38 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 38 EERFETHAEZHME
EMOLUMENTS (continued) (&)
The emoluments of each Director and chief executive of the HE_ZT-NF+A=+—HILFE
Company for the year ended 31 December 2018 are as follows: RAFBBERFETHRAENMSLAT
Employer's
Share-based contribution to
Discretionary payment  aretirement
Name of Directors Fees Salary bonuses expense benefit scheme Total

RE#  BEREHK

XHE BAEEW
ESps k2 i MERA 53 R L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
ThER TERL TER TER TER ThER

Executive Directors (Note () SV{TEE (#/2H())

Mr. CHING Chi Fai BEELE 120 1,263 1,200 - 18 2,601
Mr. CHING Chi Keung BEREE 120 764 717 - 18 1,619
Mr. LIU Zigang BFHIEE 120 919 963 - Iy} 2,044
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah REELE 120 764 717 - 18 1,619
Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung ZEBSAE 120 1,367 1,056 - 18 2,561
Independent BUFHTES

Non-Executive

Directors
Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan 71883t 50 150 - - - - 150
Mr. MA Chun Fung Horace 1R %4 150 - - - - 150
Mr. NG Bo Kwong RERFEE 150 - - - - 150
Mr. SUN Yung Tson Eric BEBLYE 150 - - - - 150

Non-Executive Director ~ FHITEE
Ms. CHAN Yim Ching BReE Tt 150 - - - - 150

Total fH 1,350 5,077 4,653 - 114 11,194

ARERERERAR —T—N\FFHK 163



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBREME (E)

38 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 38 EERFETHRAEBZHME
EMOLUMENTS (continued) (%)
The emoluments of each Director and chief executive of the HE-_Z—t+tH&+-_A=T—HILFE
Company for the year ended 31 December 2017 are as follows: RAFBBERFETHRAEHMSLAT
Employer's
Share-based  contribution to
Discretionary payment  a retirement
Name of Directors Fees Salary bonuses expense  benefit scheme Total

AR BERERK

AL =Y Uiy )
ERfA ik i Rt Fi 58 it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TBT TR TR THBT

Executive Directors (Note (i)  $WTEE (472()

Mr. CHING Chi Fai BEELE 120 1,224 1,201 - 18 2,563
Mr. CHING Chi Keung BEREE 120 739 743 - 18 1,620
Mr. LIU Zigang 2FRI%E 120 896 1,003 - 43 2,062
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah RERELE 120 739 753 - 18 1,630
Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung ZEIELE 120 1,325 1,106 - 18 2,569
Independent BUFHITES
Non-Executive Directors
Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan i85t 5 4 150 - - - - 150
Mr. MA Chun Fung Horace SiRELE 150 - - - - 150
Mr. NG Bo Kwong RERAEE 150 - - - - 150
Mr. SUN Yung Tson Eric BEELE 150 - - - - 150
Non-Executive Director FUTES
Ms. CHAN Yim Ching R&ERT 120 240 - - - 360
Total ek 1320 5,163 4,806 - 115 11,404
Note: izt -
(i) The role of chief executive officer has been performed collectively by all (i) THREBZBER2EBHATES (B2H
the Executive Directors, including the Chairman of the Company. RARERE) LRELT -
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